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Group Structure

REBEREE

Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Ltd.

RiImB A (ER)BRAF]
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RASRETMKIHERAR)
Listed on the Main Board of SEHK (Stock Code: 2348)
BB ER B (RHASE : 2348)

100%

A4

v

100%

Dawnrays International Co. Ltd.

RinEFRAR AR
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)
(REBEBRESTMRIOERRF])

100%

A4

Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Ltd.
R AR & R ()

\

VBR A A]

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(REBTMRZOERARF])

Dawnrays International Company Limited
RiImBIFRAR D AR AR
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(REBTMAIHER AT

AD Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd
RS (ER)ELESR AT

100% 100% 100%

100%

100%

100%

Dawnrays (Nantong)
Pharmaceutical
Science and

Fujian Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.*

TR R I B B
BRAR*

Dawnrays Pharma
(Hong Kong) Ltd.
FIm# % (BEE)
BRATF

Technology Co., Ltd.
R 30 (F 1) B B
BRAR

Cinmed Medical

Equipment (Putian)
Co., Ltd.
L2 BRI
(BE)BRAR

* The original name was Cinmed Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. It was renamed as Fujian
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. on 2 March 2020. Details are stated in the
“Substantial Investment” of the Management Discussion and Analysis in this report.
REARBEREXERAR  R-Z_TF=A_PEEZRBERHHBERR AR - FE
EAREEREN BRI [ERRE] B8 -

# Lanzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was established on 30 December 2019.
Details are stated in note 42 to financial statements — “Event after the Reporting Period”.
WINRIRRBESRARN T NF+ - A=+TBRIYL « FIEEFBREMT2 — [R
HHREBIR] B -
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Lanzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.*

TR0 3R B £
BRARN

Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
BN IR SRR AR

Nanjing PharmaRays Science
and Technology Co., Ltd.
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Guangzhou PharmaRays
Science and Technology
Co., Ltd.
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Dear SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”) of
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), I'm pleased to present
the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“reporting period”).

GROUP RESULTS

The Group has recorded revenue of approximately RMB950,007,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB948,938,000), representing
an increase of 0.1%, basically flat as compared to 2018. Profit attributable
to owners of the parent was approximately RMB255,430,000 (2018:
RMB303,960,000), representing a decrease of 16.0% over 2018.

The decrease in profit was mainly due to a significant decrease in sales of
Entecavir Dispersible Tablets, a specific medicine of the Group, as
compared with last year.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.043 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2019, amounting to the total sum
of approximately HK$66,681,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB61,358,000), to the shareholders whose names appeared in the
register of members as of Wednesday, 3 June 2020 subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming 2020 Annual General
Meeting (the “2020 AGM”). The annual dividend payout ratio remains
approximately 32.4%.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHRE
BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

After the publication of a series of medical and pharmaceutical policies
involving payment under the medical insurance scheme, medicine research
and development, medicine circulation, group purchasing organization,
and essential drug list in the past few years, the government promulgated
the revised Pharmaceutical Administration Law in 2019 and further
promoted centralized procurement of drugs nationwide. The revised law,
together with the continuously deepened mechanism for centralized
procurement of drugs, has imposed new operation standards and
requirements on the pharmaceutical industry in China. In the high-pressure
atmosphere, businesses are continuously changed and get more in line
with international markets. Therefore, in terms of product market access,
research and development, and business model for medicines, industry
stakeholders must adapt to the industry changes and make a rapid

response to seek room for sustainable development.

So far, China’s pharmaceutical industry is still dominated by enterprises
that are mainly engaged in research and development, production and
sales of generic drugs. As one of the market players, the Group has always
taken cephalosporin antibiotics and specific medicines as the core
business products, which have generated considerable revenue and
profits. According to the policies of the state on the quality and efficacy
consistency evaluation of generic drugs published several years ago, the
Group has advanced relevant work in a timely manner. Up to now, a total
of four core products have passed the evaluation. With such products, the
Group participated in recent two rounds of centralized procurement
organized by the state and won the bid for Amlodipine Besylate Tablets,
Entecavir Dispersible Tablets and Levocetirizine Dihydrochloride Tablets
respectively, thus confirming the sales and market shares of the products
during the period of supply specified in contracts, which is conducive to
stabilizing the revenue of the Group during that period of time.

During the reporting period, the Group actively promoted the consistency
evaluation of many existing varieties, so as to increase the recognition of
their product quality and make them possessing basic condition required
in centralized procurement, with a view to increase the Group’s opportunity
in participating the centralized procurement in the future so as to expand
the source of revenue. In addition to focusing on normal centralized
procurement markets, in terms of non-centralized procurement markets,
the Group will continue to use its internal resources and brand advantages
to strengthen its overall marketing arrangements and operations to grab a
market share, and strive for maximizing revenue with a higher gross profit
margin, to mitigate the impact of a decrease in the gross profit of products

selected for centralized procurement.
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As is known to all, the government’s policies of group purchasing
organization and negotiation on the inclusion of drugs in the medical
insurance scheme have caused a decrease in the supply prices of major
drugs to their basic values, for more effective use of resources for which
payment is made under the medical insurance scheme, and for
improvement in the accessibility of high-quality medicines, thus benefiting
the general public. As far as pharmaceutical enterprises are concerned, in
such a policy environment, the gross profits of related products will
inevitably and continuously be squeezed, thus increasing the uncertainty of
corporate operation and the difficulties in achieving business targets.

Despite the increasing challenges in market operation, the Company has
adopted targeted product development and investment strategies in
response to the future development of the market according to the
financial resources of the Group. It has strengthened the product mix of
the Group and pipelines of products under development, with a view to
stabilizing the business size of the Group and maintaining moderate
growth after various plans pay off. During the reporting period, Dawnrays
International Company Limited (3 ¥ B BX A% {5 G BR A &), a member of the
Group, acquired the entire equity interest in Top Field Limited (“TFL”) in
cash, thus owning all assets of TFL and its subsidiaries, including
cardiovascular drug business with but not limited to Atorvastatin Calcium
Tablets, which enriches the Group’s product line and enhances the
Group’s strength in the field. During the year, upon obtaining the
management right of TFL's subsidiary, the Group got into its business
operation proactively with satisfactory progression, the Group won the bid
for Atorvastatin Calcium Tablets in the centralized procurement of drugs
organized by the state. In addition to the aforementioned acquisition,
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a member of the Group, as
the transferee, accepted the transfer of the marketing authorization holder
in respect of Febuxostat tablets (40mg, 80mg), a drug for gout treatment,
and bulk medicines, in order to expand the range of products the Group
can offer in the future.

In order to facilitate the Group’s technological innovation in the research
and development of preparation products, especially specific medicines,
Nanjing PharmaRays Science and Technology Ltd., a joint venture
enterprise established by the Group and external entities, started operation
during the year. The company focuses on the innovation of pharmaceutical
science and technologies, especially the development of new drug
products, using new technologies of drug delivery systems. The company
is independent and self-sustaining. The Group has the priority to acquire
and use research and development results of the company for a fair
consideration, under fair conditions.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

In addition, Phase Il and Phase | pre-clinical preparations have been
carried out respectively for clinical trials for Class | new drug registration of
AK102 (proposed to be used for lowering cholesterol levels) and AK109
(proposed to be used for treating gastric cancer, lung cancer and rectal
cancer), both of which are monoclonal antibody agents developed by AD
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., a joint venture enterprise of the Group.

Due to land replotting requirements of the local government, Suzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, is making
efforts to advance the plan for relocating the plants located at Tianling
Road. In addition, based on the land and environment reorganized
requirements of the local government and the long-term development
strategy considerations of the Group, the Group will phase out the
production facility of Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Dawnrays (Nantong)”) and plan to establish a new
production base in Chemical Industry Park, Lanzhou New District, Gansu
Province. Lanzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary incorporated by the Group at the end of December 2019, is
responsible for relevant work of the project. The Group expects that the
relocation of the plants will not materially and adversely affect the existing
conventional production. The Group will take this opportunity from the
relocation, to optimize the technologies and production facilities for
intermediates and bulk medicines, with a view to creating cost and quality
advantages of downstream products, giving full play to the corporate
strength in the integration of bulk medicines and preparations, and
improving the probability of business success in the long run.

Looking ahead to the market development, the Group is fully aware that
under the policy of centralized procurement and group purchasing
organization, the continuous decrease in the drug price has been an
irreversible trend of the market, and the inter-industry competition will be
fiercer. However, under the policy environment of in-depth advancement of
the “big health” strategy by the state, and with rapid population ageing in
China, there is a continuous increase in the citizens’ demand for drugs,
and resultantly huge room for the development of the pharmaceutical
market, as well as expected continuous growth in the market capacity.
The Group will continuously invest resources through various channels to
accelerate the research progress of the existing products under research.
At the same time, the Group will strive to pursue product and technology
upgrades, extend the existing product line and form a number of
technically accomplished product portfolios. The Group expects that
subject to the successful implementation of relevant plans, new products
will be granted marketing authorization in the foreseeable future, and even
become a new source of revenue for the Group after launching.
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APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks to the
shareholders, directors of the Company, partners, managers and
employees of the Group for their support and contributions in businesses
in the past year.

By Order of the Board

Li Kei Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DA

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the review period, in a highly competitive market environment, the
Group’s sales volume of anti-hypertensive drug in “An” (%) series
medicines increased by 18.2% as compared with 2018. The sales volume
of Entecavir Dispersible Tablets increased by 32.5%, while the sales
volume of anti-allergic drug “Xikewei” (78 7] &) (Cetirizine Hydrochloride
Tablets) remained unchanged as compared with last year. The sales of
cephalosporin finished medicines were relatively stable. The
competitiveness of cephalosporin intermediates and bulk medicines was
enhanced significantly due to continuous improvement in product quality
and production cost reduction by the Group. The sales volume increased
by 7.5%.

During the period, the Group’s marketing management personnel adjusted
the Group’s product marketing ideas and sales strategies appropriately in
response to the rapid changes in the market, strengthened the allocation
of resources, optimized the supply and marketing system, and developed
new markets. The Group actively seized the opportunity brought about by
centralized procurement of drugs in national alliance member regions. In
centralized procurement of drugs in alliance member regions, the Group
won bids with regard to its three main products, namely “Anneizhen” (% 1A
H) (Amlodipine Besylate Tablets, 5mg), “Ruifuen” (i k< &) (Entecavir
Dispersible Tablets, 0.5mg), “Shumaitong” (%7 &3 ) (Atorvastatin Calcium
Tablets, 10mg), which plays an active role in securing a market share for
its products and brand building. The marketing management personnel of
the Group will take this opportunity to continuously deepen the market
work, so as to improve the organizational control for all levels of markets
and make every effort to ensure that there will be reasonable growth in
sales of the above products by 2020, thus contributing to profits of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ANTI-HYPERTENSIVE PRODUCTS

Hypertension is the most common chronic non-communicable disease.
According to medical statistics, the prevalence rate of hypertension among
Chinese residents aged 18 and above is over 25%, so anti-hypertensive
drugs have a broad market prospect. The Group paid special attention to
market development in this field, and participated in the national “Chinese
Hypertension Intervention Efficacy Study” (CHIEF). The Group cooperated
with more than 150 medical institutions to provide anti-hypertensive drugs
for over 10,000 patients, so the Group enjoyed favourable brand reputation
among doctors and hypertension patients.

During the period, considering the tendency that the product market of
common anti-hypertensive drugs extended downwards from the first
terminal, the Group’s marketing management carried out precise design
and control of the key marketing impact points such as sales channels and
sales price of major product “Anneizhen” (% N &) (Amlodipine Besylate
Tablets), strengthened allocation of resources, and attached importance to
reinforcing the promotion activities of the second and third market
terminals, thereby ensuring the continual sales of such products on the
market and guaranteeing the stability of market shares. Based on the
Group’s integration of the survey data of market research institutions, the
sales of “Anneizhen” (% N HE) was placed the leading position among
similar products on the second and third market terminals in many cities
and provinces, and occupied considerable market shares. Moreover, in
terms of sales of another anti-nypertensive drug “Anneixi” (% KW =)
(Losartan Potassium and Hydrochlorothiazide Tablets) of the Group, it
ranked among the top domestic brands. Along with the further refined
management in the future, it is anticipated that “Anneixi” (% W =) wil
become the Group’s second star product for anti-hypertension. In the
future, the Group’s marketing management team will focus more attention
on brand planning, channel planning, price planning and academic
promotion of the “An” (%) series products, strengthen the access design
of products to different markets by closely following up national policies
related to chronic disease management, and further expand the new
market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DA

ANTIHYPERLIPIDEMIC PRODUCTS

Hyperlipidemia is the most commmon chronic non-communicable disease,
and is one of main pathogenic risk factors in the occurrence and
development of atherosclerotic cardiovascular disease (ASCVD) in Chinese
residents. According to statistics, the awareness rate, treatment rate and
control rate of dyslipidemia for the people aged at or above 18 years old in
China are 31.0%, 19.5% and 8.9% respectively, and thus the market
prospect of antihyperlipidemic drugs is promising. In order to enrich the
cardiovascular product line, the Group indirectly owned Cinmed
Pharmaceuticals Company Limited (“Cinmed Pharmaceuticals”) through
acquiring a 100% equity interest in Top Field Ltd. during the year. Cinmed
Pharmaceuticals obtained the approval for the production of atorvastatin
calcium (10mg) in February 2019. The management and sales personnel
of the Group made a timely response. After the delivery of Cinmed
Pharmaceuticals in May, the product was quickly launched in large
quantities, with better-than-expected sales performance. During the
reporting period, the sales volume of the product reached 150 million
tablets.

ANTIVIRAL PRODUCTS

According to market information, Entecavir is currently “basic” medicine for
clinical treatment of hepatitis B, accounting for more than half of the
nucleoside drugs. There was a steady increase in the domestic market
share of Entecavir Dispersible Tablets of the Group by virtue of the “unique
cyclodextrin inclusion technology”. During the period, under the full efforts
of the Group’s sales teams, all the market promotion work was
successfully implemented, and by virtue of winning the bid for centralized
procurement of drugs in national alliance member regions, better domestic
sales results than expected were obtained, remarkable growth in sales
volume as compared to 2018 was recorded, and the long-term stable
market foundation was laid for Entecavir. Meanwhile, in response to
change in national medical insurance policies and the implementation of
centralized procurement of drugs, the Group adjusted marketing strategies
in a timely manner, enhanced promotion to retail terminal, and further
tapped the market potential of the product. However, due to the extended
impact arising from the 4+7 centralized procurement of drugs carried out
in 2018, the sales unit price of Entecavir dropped significantly during the
reporting period, thus a greater impact on the Company’s performance in
2019 caused.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ANTI-ALLERGIC PRODUCTS

Cetirizine Hydrochloride and Levocetirizine Dihydrochloride are
antihistamine drugs without central nervous sedation. They are the first
choice for community clinics to treat allergies and are included in the
national list of low-price drugs. During the period, the Group’s marketing
management deeply researched into “Xikewei” (7§ B &) (Cetirizine
Hydrochloride Tablets) and “Xikexin” (78 7] %) (Levocetirizine
Dihydrochloride Tablets), the competitive products, business customers,
etc., and made a corresponding adjustment to marketing policy, thereby
ensuring its stable market shares. As the selling price of such products
was too low, many competitive enterprises paid less attention to similar
products. Therefore, the Group spared no effort to promote the quality and
efficacy consistency evaluation of generic drugs, for “Xikewei” (75 7] &)
(Cetirizine Hydrochloride Tablets) and “Xikexin” (78 7] #F) (Levocetirizine
Dihydrochloride Tablets), and took the lead in acquiring the quality
advantages of consistency evaluation, so as to further reinforce and
enhanced the sales volume and market share of “Xikewei” (78 7] &) and
“Xikexin” (78 B #71). During the reporting period, “Xikewei” (78 7] &) and
“Xikexin” (78 7] #7) of the Group passed the consistency evaluation. The
Group won the bid for “Xikexin” (Z8 ] #7) in the second round of national
centralized procurement of drugs.

FINISHED CEPHALOSPORIN PRODUCTS

The finished cephalosporin product has had a significant share of China’s
antibiotics market for a long time due to its good efficacy and safety, and
there will always be broad market space for the product due to factors
such as environmental pollution (e.g., haze) and enormous social
population. In recent years, the restriction on the use of antibiotics, tenders
and other factors have inhibited the R&D, production and sales of the
Group’s products. In view of this, the Group’s management optimized the
product mix based on the actual market circumstances and corporate
strengths, and made certain achievements in satisfying capacity and sales
needs. Meanwhile, consistency evaluation has been actively carried out,
which will lay a good foundation for the subsequent development of the
products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DA

INTERMEDIATES AND BULK MEDICINES

During the review period, for its business of intermediates and bulk
medicines for cephalosporin antibiotics, the Group actively carried out
related review and filing work to further consolidate its market share. In
order to improve the market competitiveness of its products and realize
the integrated production of raw materials and preparations, the Group
took the opportunity brought about by the relocation of Dawnrays
(Nantong), to invest in the construction of a production base for bulk
medicines and intermediates in the Chemical Industry Park of Lanzhou
New District. For the project, it has applied to the Management Committee
of the Lanzhou New District for the purchase of 250 mu of land to be
developed as a production base with annual capacities of 650 tons of
cephalosporin bulk medicines and intermediates, 116 tons of system
specific bulk medicines, 250 tons of raw materials of enzyme inhibitors and
230 tons of raw materials of health supplements, with the phase |

investment of approximately RMB430 million.

DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW PRODUCT FIELD

Gout is a crystal-related arthropathy caused by monosodium urate (MSU)
deposition, which is directly related to hyperuricemia caused by purine
metabolic disorder and/or uric acid excretion reduction. Gout may be
complicated with renal diseases, and joint damage and renal function
damage may occur in severe cases. It is often accompanied by
hyperlipidemia, diabetes, arteriosclerosis, coronary heart disease, etc.
Public data show that with the continuous improvement in people’s living
standards, the incidence rate of hyperuricemia or gout is getting higher
and higher, and there is an increasing number of young patients with
hyperuricemia or gout. The number of hyperuricemia patients in China has
reached 120 million, of which nearly 80 million are gout patients, and the
incidence rate of gout has risen sharply at a rate of 9.7% every year. In
order to enrich the Group’s product line, on 24 December 2019, Suzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, signed an
agreement with Nanjing Haina Medical and Pharmaceutical Technology
Company Limited (3 5% /8 44 & 22 5} 5 j% 19 A BR 22 5]), an independent
third party, with regard to the transfer of marketing authorization holder of
Febuxostat Tablets (40mg, 80mg) and bulk medicines for gout treatment.
Details of the transaction have been published in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 December 2019. Accepting the transfer of the
marketing authorization holder of Febuxostat Tablets (40mg, 80mg) and
bulk medicines will bring about a new source of profit growth for the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Apart from the description in the following section of “NEW PRODUCTS
AND PATENT LICENSING”, the Group’s ongoing research projects cover
the therapeutic areas of circulatory system, digestive system, endocrine
system, antiviral drugs, etc. The Group will continue investing more
resources in production technology and product R&D and innovation, and
seek after various scientific research cooperation opportunities so as to
strengthen our product mix and profitability foundation.

CONSISTENCY EVALUATION

As at 31 December 2019, the Group carried out quality consistency
research into 18 varieties. Clinical research into the bioequivalence (BE) of
7 varieties had been completed and applications for their consistency
evaluation were submitted to the Center for Drug Evaluation, NMPA.
Applications for 4 varieties (Amlodipine Besylate Tablets 5mg, Entecavir
Dispersible Tablets 0.5mg, Cetirizine Hydrochloride Tablets 10mg and
Levocetirizine Dihydrochloride Tablets 5mg) were approved. In addition,
clinical research into the bioequivalence (BE) of 2 varieties and

pharmaceutical research into 9 varieties are being carried out.

IMPACT OF CENTRALIZED PROCUREMENT OF DRUGS

Following the bidding for the 4+7 centralized procurement of drugs in
2018, the state carried out another centralized procurement of drugs in
national alliance member regions in September 2019. Centralized
procurement of drugs presents great challenges to the original drug sales
model and an opportunity. Under the group purchasing organization
policy, the prices have been greatly reduced, which makes it difficult for
generic drug enterprises to obtain high profit margin as before. In addition,
with the in-depth promotion of consistency evaluation and group
purchasing organization, the arrangements for generic drugs are
reconstructed. For the generic drug industry, the accessibility of bulk
medicines of generic drugs, production costs, product quality and brand,
and diversified product pipelines will be the key to the competitiveness of
an enterprise. Future procurement and sales depend on market access.
The Group has actively responded to the challenges in the industry, given
full play to its comprehensive competitive advantages such as production
cost, product quality and brand, and participated in centralized
procurement of drugs. At the same time, with its brand influence, it has
integrated resources, formulated personalized product marketing strategies
and developed product sales channels to ensure the revenue of the

Group’s products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DA

OTHER MATTERS

During the period, the Group continued improving production, product
quality, human resources, internal audit etc., and endeavored to enhance
the risk control capability and improve the operating level of various
systems, in an attempt to maintain the Group’s sustainable development in

the fierce business competition environment.
PRODUCTION AND SALES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s production volume
and sales volume of intermediates and bulk medicines respectively
decreased by 9.4% and increased by 7.5% as compared to that in 2018.
The production volume and sales volume of cephalosporin powder for
injection decreased by 20.1% and increased by 1.7% respectively, as
compared with last year. The decrease in the production volume of powder
for injection was mainly due to dropped processing agency businesses.
The production volume of solid-dosage-forms increased by 25.5% as
compared with last year, while the sales volume increased by 34.2% as
compared with last year. As for the international business, the Group kept
expanding its overseas market, in spite of the failure to win the bid in
respect of “Entecavir” (B < &) in the Hong Kong market. The sales in
the overseas market accounted for 9.5% of the overall sales of the Group,
representing a decrease of 3.7 percentage points as compared with last

year.

16 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED HEe#I% (J2R%) AR A7)

Htb=H

HR > AREREE  EREE  ANERKARNE
AETETTENE  RERBREZEENRTES
BREBHEKTE  UEFRASERHUNEBHRFR
BHRREFAURHERE -

EEHERR

HE-Z-NAFE+_A=1+—ALtEE KEEH+P
MERRHENEESRBESH T — \FHER -
DRREEERD 4% SHESERT7.5% - BBAEE
EMHBINAEEEREAF D 201%  HEEREF
FF1T7% c BHBEEEENRIETBRRINITER
W e BREMAEESL AFIRR25.5%  HEEL
EFEM34.2% - BIRERKHE  BXBERESS
RIERE - AEBDTE RGNS - FINTTS
EEAEEAREENIEMNS% b FFRA 3.7
ERak



Management Discussion and Analysis

NEW PRODUCTS AND PATENT LICENSING

(1)

In 2019, applications including three Abbreviated New Drug
Application (“ANDA”) documents and two supplementary
applications for consistency evaluation were submitted to the
National Medical Products Administration. Two drug production
approvals and two supplementary approvals for consistency
evaluation were granted by National Medical Products
Administration. Six other supplementary approvals were granted by
Jiangsu Medical Products Administration.

Three invention patents obtained in 2019

(i) The invention patent (Patent No.: ZL201510256115.1) was
granted for “A kind of Cetirizine Hydrochloride Tablets and
Preparation Technology thereof ” on 11 June 2019.

(i) The invention patent (Patent No.: ZL201710137236.3) was
granted for “A kind of Telmisartan Tablets with Stable
Dissolution Performance and Preparation Process thereof” on
5 November 2019.

iy The invention patent certificate (Patent No.:
Z1.201710668517.1) was granted for “A kind of Pyridoxal
Phosphate Intermediate and Preparation Process thereof” on
19 November 2019.

A total of three utility model patent certificates obtained in 2019

(i) A utility model patent (Patent No.: ZL.2018209481583.2) was
granted for “A Metformin Hydrochloride Tablet Tableting
Device” on 18 January 2019.

(i) A utility model patent (Patent No.: ZL201821421660.7) was
granted for “A Particle Screening Device for Preparation of
Azithromycin Tablets” on 29 March 2019.

(i) A utility model patent (Patent No.: ZL201820948111.9) was
granted for “A Granulator Mixer for Clarithromycin Tablets” on
29 November 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DA

HONORS AWARDED IN 2019

Time of Awards Honors

April 2019

May 2019

June 2019

September 2019

October 2019

November 2019

December 2019

January 2020

18

Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and

Technology Co., Ltd. obtained the “Work Safety

Standardization Grade Il Enterprise (Hazardous

Chemicals)” certificate.

Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and

Technology Co., Ltd. obtained the “Work Safety

License”.

Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (research

and development center) was recognized as one of the

“First Foreign-Invested Research and Development

Centers Meeting the Import Tax Policy in 2019 in

Jiangsu Province”.

Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was

recognized as “2017-2018 Trustworthy Enterprise in

Suzhou”.

— Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. obtained
the certificate of “Informatisation and Industrialisation
Integration Management System Assessment” from
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology.

— Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ranked
among “2019 Top 100 Industrial Enterprises in
Chemical-Pharmaceutical Industry in China in terms
of Comprehensive Strength”.

— Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. won the
title of “2019 Excellent Anti-Hypertensive Product
Brand in Chemical-Pharmaceutical Industry in China”
for Amlodipine Besylate Tablets.

Cinmed Pharmaceuticals Company Limited was

recognized as “Fujian High and New Technology

Enterprise (SG20190819)”.

Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and

Technology Co., Ltd. was approved to renew the

certificate of “Work Safety Standardization Grade Il

Enterprise (Hazardous Chemicals)”.

— Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was
recognized as “Top Ten Star Enterprises (Industrial)
in Suzhou Wuzhong Economic Development Zone”.

— Cinmed Pharmaceuticals Company Limited won the
“First Prize for Top Taxpayers of 2019” from Licheng
District People’s Government, Licheng District Party
Committee, CPC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB950,007,000, increased by RMB1,069,000 or 0.1%
compared with last year. Of which the turnover of intermediates and bulk
medicines was RMB236,246,000, increased by RMB25,727,000 or 12.2%
compared with last year. The turnover of finished drugs was
RMB713,761,000, decreased by RMB24,658,000 or 3.3% compared with
last year. Overall turnover is comparable to last year.

Sales amount of finished drugs, comprising system specific medicines,
powder for injection and tablets of cephalosporin and other oral solid-
dosage-form of antibiotics, reached approximately RMB713,761,000.
Taking into account of the total turnover, sales amount of finished drugs
was approximately 75.1%, decreased by 2.7 percentage points compared
with last year. Sales amount of system specific medicines accounted for
91.7% of sales of finished drugs.

Gross profit was approximately RMB535,869,000, decreased by
RMB59,160,000 compared with last year, representing a decrease of
9.9%. Gross profit margin decreased by approximately 6.3 percentage
points to 56.4% from 62.7% as in last year. It was mainly affected by the
decrease of Entecavir’s sales unit price.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN
EXPENSES

During the year, the total expenses incurred were approximately
RMB258,017,000, equivalent to 27.2% of turnover (2018: 26.5%). The
total expenses increased by approximately RMB6,891,000 compared with
last year which was RMB251,126,000. The selling and distribution
expenses decreased by RMB22,042,000 compared with last year due to
adjustment in sales model. Administrative expenses increased by
RMB13,903,000 compared with last year mainly due to the addition of
Cinmed Pharmaceuticals’ administrative expenses. Finance expenses was
RMB5,309,000, mainly loan interest of working capital. Other expenses
increased by RMB10,873,000 compared with last year, mainly due to the

increase in research and development expenses.
SEGMENT PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the segment profit of finished
drugs segment was approximately RMB418,035,000, decreased by
RMB71,648,000 when compared with 2018 which was RMB489,683,000
mainly attributable to the effect of decrease in Entecavir’s gross profit. The
segment results of intermediates and bulk medicines segment recorded
loss of approximately RMB1,267,000, while it was a gain of
RMB2,912,000 in 2018. The increased loss was mainly attributable to the
provision of various losses for Dawnrays (Nantong)’s relocation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INTERESTS AND RIGHTS IN ASSOCIATE

During the year, AD Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., which was invested by the
Group’s subsidiary Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Ltd., has
launched Phase |l clinical trial and Phase | pre-clinical preparation for
registration of Class | new drugs of monoclonal antibody agent AK102
(proposed to be used to lower cholesterol levels) and AK109 (proposed to
be used to treat gastric cancer, lung cancer and rectal cancer) respectively.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, AD Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.
reported loss for the year of RMB33,797,000 including the R&D and
administrative expenses. As a result, the Group shared, in proportion to
the investment percentage, an investment loss of approximately
RMB11,829,000 in 2019 (2018: RMB14,049,000). At 31 December 2019,
the Group had carried out impairment test and assessment for the
investment in the associate and was of the view that it was unnecessary to

make provision for impairment.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

For the year ended 31 December 2019, profit attributable to owners of the
parent amounted to approximately RMB255,430,000, representing a
decrease of RMB48,530,000 or 16.0% compared with RMB303,960,000
in last year. The primary reasons of decrease of profit were the drop in
gross profit of Entecavir, a system specific medicines, and the increased

research and development expenses.

ANALYSIS ON THE RETURN ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, net assets attributable to owners of the parent
were approximately RMB2,026,312,000. The return on net assets, which
is defined as the profit attributable to owners of the parent divided by net
assets attributable to owners of the parent was 12.6% (2018: 15.8%). The
current ratio and quick ratio was 2.77 and 2.48 respectively. Turnover days
for trade receivables were approximately 77 days. The turnover days for
trade receivables including bills receivables were 136 days. Turnover days

for inventory were approximately 143 days.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DA

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

As at 31 December, 2019, the Group had financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (comprising certain listed shares investments)
including:

(i) invested in certain Hong Kong public listed shares amounted
approximately RMB9,557,000 (31 December 2018: approximately
RMB8,149,000);

(i) invested in financial bonds issued by China Development Bank
amounted approximately RMB37,087,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB70,000,000) with expected yield amounting RMB543,000 (31
December 2018: RMB478,000);

(i)  purchased certain wealth management products of approximately
RMB455,000,000 (including “Sui Xin E” (B& L E) with principal amount
RMB40,000,000, “Ben Li Feng Tian Tain Li” (4 F| 2 X X F) with
principal amount RMB60,000,000, and structured deposits of
RMB355,000,000 from seven other banks) (31 December 2018:
RMB110,000,000) of floating interest rate principal-preservation type
with annual interest rate from 1.05% to 6.2% from several good credit
worth banks in China. The expected yield would be approximately
RMB3,643,000 in total. The wealth management products were
mainly relatively lower risk of default. All principal and interests will be
paid together on the maturity date. The Board believes that the
investment in aforementioned wealth management products can
strengthen the financial position of the Group and bring the fruitful

contribution to the profit of the Group.

The above mentioned financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
amounted to approximately RMB505,830,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately RMB189,3983,000), representing approximately 18.2% (31
December 2018: 8.0%) of the total assets of the Group. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded the realized gain of
approximately RMB11,466,000 (2018:RMB1,400,000) on the disposal of
the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and unrealized fair
value gains (net) of approximately RMB2,396,000 (2018:RMB236,000) for
the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The Board believes
that the investment in equity investments and financial assets can diversify
the investment portfolio of the Group and achieve a better return to the
Group in future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and bank balance
approximately RMB471,461,000 (as at 31 December 2018:
RMB645,363,000). For the purpose of operating the idle funds more
effectively and improve returns, the Group has purchased wealth
management products and bonds from several banks in Mainland China.
Apart from principal-preservation type of structured deposits and the
bonds from China Development Bank mentioned in “Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” section above, an amount of RMB140,000,000
of other receivables was fixed interest rate principal-preservation type of
wealth management products. The annual interest rate is between 3.7% to
3.8%. The principal and interest of these principal-preservation type of
wealth management products and bonds can be received on maturity
date. During the year, the net cash inflows from operating activities was
approximately RMB275,837,000 (2018: RMB274,294,000). Net cash
outflows used in investing activities was approximately RMB598,859,000
(2018: RMB12,736,000). Net cash inflows from financing activities was
approximately RMB66,087,000 (2018 net cash outflows:
RMB204,193,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had aggregate bank facilities of
approximately RMB1,307,585,000 (as at 31 December 2018:
RMB1,402,762,000), of which, bank facilities of RMB223,238,000 were
secured by corporate guarantee of the Company. As at 31 December
2019, the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings was
RMB216,776,000, consisted of bank loans RMB197,377,000 and undue
discounted notes RMB19,399,000 (as at 31 December 2018: Nil). Interest
rate of all borrowings fixed respectively from the lowest 2.85% p.a. to the
highest 3.75% p.a. As at 31 December 2019, the debt ratio (defined as
sum of interest-bearing bank borrowings over total assets) of the Group
was 7.8% (as at 31 December 2018: no interest-bearing bank borrowings).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB207,379,000 (as at 31 December 2018:
RMB199,614,000), slightly increased by 3.9% compared to 2018, mainly
due to the impact of increased proportion of bulk medicine in the sales
structure.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had inventory balance of
approximately RMB180,759,000 (as at 31 December 2018:
RMB148,043,000). Increased inventory is mainly for stocking of the
national centralized procurement of drugs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s contracted but not provided for
plant and machinery capital commitments and capital contributions
payable to an associate amounted to approximately RMB64,919,000 (as
at 31 December 2018: RMB84,130,000), which was mainly related to
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.’s relocation construction
project and capital investment in an associate.

SUBSTANTIAL INVESTMENT

During the reporting period, Dawnrays International Company Limited (5
BB RS ABR A |)), a subsidiary of the Group, acquired a 100% equity
interest in Top Field Ltd., at a price of HK$436,470,000, thus indirectly
owning Cinmed Pharmaceuticals Company Limited (“Cinmed
Pharmaceuticals”). In order to streamline the group structure, the Group
has commenced to close Top Field Ltd. and its subsidiary Cinmed (Hong
Kong) Investment Limited in accordance with statutory requirements.
Therefore, during the reporting period, holding of the whole equity interest
in Cinmed Pharmaceuticals was changed to Dawnrays International
Company Limited and the formalities processed in changing the name of
Cinmed Pharmaceuticals into Fujian Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(fBE R Im B %A R A 7). The acquisition enriches the Group’s product
line and is conducive to enhancing the Company’s future profitability. From
7 May 2019 when the delivery of the transaction took place to 31
December 2019, the sales revenue of Cinmed Pharmaceuticals was
RMB60,683,000, and net profit was RMB23,329,000. The acquisition of
Top Field Ltd. on 7 May 2019 generated goodwill of RMB241,158,000
(“Cinmed Goodwill”) and the Group is required to perform the impairment
test for Cinmed Goodwill at each reporting period end. Impairment
assessment is carried out by determining the value in use of the cash-
generating unit under Cinmed Pharmaceuticals. The Group assessed that
there was no impairment on the Cinmed Goodwill at 31 December 2019,
for the reason that in relation to the cash-generating unit under Cinmed
Pharmaceuticals, the recoverable amount calculated based on value in use
exceeded the carrying value at 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the reporting period, in order to develop new independently-
operated research and development platforms and focus on developing
new drug products by the use of new technologies of drug delivery
systems for meeting the market demand for drugs in innovative dosage
forms, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical entered into a joint venture
agreement with two independent third parties, to acquire 65% of the
shares of Nanjing PharmaRays Science and Technology Ltd. (F R48 %
Z R A B A 7)) (“Nanjng PharmaRays”, a research and development
enterprise). The registered capital of Nanjing PharmaRays is
RMB50,000,000, and Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical has contributed
registered capital of RMB20,000,000 for the first instalment, in accordance
with the joint venture agreement. Nanjing PharmaRays officially

commenced its operation on 12 January 2020.

Due to the urban planning adjustment of Wuzhong Economic Development
District by Suzhou Municipal People’s Government, Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical entered into the Relocation Compensation Agreement with
the government where it operates on 20 December 2017. Both parties
agreed the relocation compensation amount was approximately
RMB351,200,000. In January 2018, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
received the first relocation compensation of RMB70,238,000. On 14 August
2019, through public auction by Suzhou Natural Resources and Planning
Bureau (& /M T B X & JR #1 18 &/ /), Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
acquired the industrial land with an area of 100 mu located in Hedong
Industrial Park in Suzhou Wuzhong Economic Development Zone, for the
relocation project. Relocation project was started in September 2019.

As a result of the planning adjustment of Yangkou Chemical Industrial Park
of Rudong County People’s Government of Nantong City, Dawnrays
(Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group, signed a relocation compensation agreement with the local
government on 30 December 2019, pursuant to which Dawnrays
(Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd. will terminate
its operations on 31 December 2020 and relocate its assets. It is estimated
that the net loss from the relocation will be less than RMB5,000,000 which
has been accrued as at 31 December 2019.
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Considering that Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and
Technology Co., Ltd. will terminate its operation, the Group has made an
overall plan to avoid the impact on the supply of intermediates of the
Group and also to conform to new national medical insurance and
medicine policies, further improve the market competitiveness of its
products and integrate raw materials and preparations, the Group has
invested in the construction of a production base for bulk medicines and
intermediates in the Chemical Industrial Park of the Lanzhou New District.
“Lanzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (B M B i 5L 255 R A 7))
was established on 30 December 2019 with a registered capital of US$25
million. With regard to the project, an application has been submitted to
the Management Committee of the Lanzhou New District for the purchase
of 250 mu of land, with the Phase | fixed asset investment of RMB287
million. The main products are cephalosporin bulk medicines and
intermediates, system specific bulk medicines, raw materials of enzyme
inhibitors, and raw materials of health supplements.

On 24 December 2019, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical signed an
agreement with Nanjing Haina Medical and Pharmaceutical Technology
Company Limited (Fd /8 N E R KR HBR A F
third party, with regard to the transfer of the marketing authorization holder

A]), an independent

of Febuxostat tablets (40mg, 80mg) and bulk medicines for gout treatment.
The total consideration is up to RMB240 million (including a fixed payment
of RMB40 million and 4% of the Group’s revenue from the sale of
Febuxostat Tablets for 10 years from the date of obtaining the marketing
authorization holder and starting the sale of Febuxostat Tablets (up to
RMB200 million)). Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical paid the first
instalment of RMB20 million for the transfer in accordance with the

agreement in January 2020.

Save as aforesaid disclosures, the Group had no significant external
investments or material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and

associated companies during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND TREASURY POLICIES

As the Group adopted foreign exchange forward contract to hedge against
foreign exchange rate risk, as a result, as at 31 December 2019, the gain
in exchange difference was RMB2,298,000 (2018: loss of RMB182,000) .
The Group’s substantial business activities, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi, so the risk derived from the foreign exchange to
the Group is not high. The treasury policy of the Group is to manage any
risk of foreign exchange or interest rate (if any) only if it will potentially
impose a significant impact on the Group. The Group continues to observe
the foreign exchange and interest rate market, and may hedge against
foreign currency risk with foreign exchange forward contracts and interest
rate risk with interest rate swap contracts if necessary.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed approximately 989
employees and the total remuneration was approximately
RMB139,658,000 (2018: RMB126,904,000). The Group regards human
resources as the most valuable assets and truly understands the
importance of attracting and retaining high-performance employees. The
remuneration policy is generally based on the references of market salary
index and individual qualifications. The Group provides its employees with
other fringe benefits, including defined contribution retirement schemes,
share option scheme and medical coverage. The Group also offers some
of its employees stationed in the PRC with dormitory accommodation.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had not pledged any assets to banks
to secure credit facilities granted to its subsidiaries (as at 31 December
2018: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.
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BEENmRE DM

PLANS FOR SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND EXPECTED
SOURCE OF FUNDING

Save for those disclosed above in connection with capital commitments,
increase of registered capital in subsidiaries, capital for relocation plans
and investment in associated company under the section “Liquidity and
Financial Resources” and “Substantial Investment”, the Group does not
have any plan for material investments or acquisition of capital assets.

The Group has sufficient financial and internal resources to pay the capital
commitments, capital expenditure for relocation plans, investment projects
and increased registered share capital described above. However, it is still
possible to pay the above capital expenditure commitments with bank

loans or internal resources of the Group.
SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s segment information for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) believes that corporate governance is
essential to the success of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). Good corporate governance can safeguard the
interests of all shareholders and enhance corporate value. Therefore, the
Board has adopted various measures to ensure that a high standard of

corporate governance is maintained.

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended
31 December 2019.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct for dealings in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Based on specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Company confirms that all the Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code, throughout the
accounting period covered by the 2019 annual report.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The management has been delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board

committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

No corporate governance committee has been established and so the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct to employees and directors such as inside information
disclosure regulations and assuring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.
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The Board held 29 board meetings including 6 regular meetings and 23 BEEEREBE_ZE-NFT_A=+—RHLEER
ad-hoc meetings during the year ended 31 December 2019. The regular BRI ThREFEEH  BENACTHESS
board meetings were to consider, among other things, reviewing and R TZABERESEIH - %ﬁﬁ@%%%)@

approving the interim and annual results of the Group, overall group (B e B REAEEF IR EFEE -
strategy, annual budgets, approval of major capital transactions and other BOERE FEEE - ﬁt/&iﬁézﬁi%&ﬁﬁﬂi

significant operational and financial matters. The ad-hoc meetings were AEEBERMBERE BRNEEREBELABEEZERI
convened when circumstance required such as reviewing and approving QD%F&M/EMZ B AERENERAAE - BIER
acquisition, capital expenses for production facilities, share repurchases, CRTHEBREGEIRAEIEE VIESMER ©

grant options to employees, set up of research and development project
and etc.

Details of the attendance of Directors at board meetings, annual general RIZZ—NF  SEEREFTEEH  ARRREA
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), extraordinary general meeting of the FRE(HRFHAFRE])  BRERE RS ([IRER
Company (the “EGM”) and other three board committees’ meetings (the MRgHEEIN=—AEEZEee# (ExEEe -
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration REZEGRFTHEZEES) WERFBEINHNTE
Committee) during the year 2019 are set out in the following table:

No. of meetings attended/held

BRLENY/BTRY
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board AGM EGM Committee Committee Committee
RE RE
Name of Directors EEfS Bxg BEAE BRAE ENZEY RHZEE ¥MEES
Executive Directors HiTEE
Ms. Li Kei Ling (Chairman) ~ ZH% 40+ (/) 29/29 N N - 4/4 2/2
Mr. Hung Yung Lai BRRIE A 29/29 1 il - - -
Mr. Chen Shaojun RAEFA 22/29 7 01 - - -
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Mr. Leung Hong Man DEREAE 17/29 N 01 - - -
Independent Non-executive BV #iTEE
Directors

Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony SRBEAE 20/29 11 11 5/5 4/4 2/2
Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi Ede, Ronald Hao Xi %t 4 18/29 1M 11 5/5 3/4 2/2
Ms. Lam Ming Yee Joan  #REEZr+ 21/29 N il 5/5 4/4 2/2
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At least 14 days’ notice of regular board meeting is given to all Directors.
The agenda and board papers are sent to the Directors at least 3 days
before the meetings of the Board and board committees so that the
Directors have the time to review the documents. Directors can include
matters for discussion in the agenda if the need arises. Minutes of
meetings of the Board and board committees are recorded in sufficient
details that matters considered and decisions reached. The draft and final
versions of the minutes will be sent to Directors within a reasonable time
after the meetings. Minutes of meetings of the Board and board
committees are kept by the company secretary of the Company and open

for inspection on reasonable notice by any Director.

All Directors are entitled to have unrestricted access to the advice and
service of the company secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Upon
reasonable request and appropriate circumstances, Directors can seek
independent professional advice to assist them to discharge their duties, at
the Company’s expenses.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board had determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by holding a board meeting with
the presence of disinterested Independent Non-executive Directors or a
meeting of a board committee set up for that purpose pursuant to a

resolution passed in a board meeting.

BOARD COMPQOSITION

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, of whom three are
Executive Directors, one is Non-executive Director and three are
Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition meets the
requirement of the Listing Rules for the Board to have at least one-third in
number of its members comprising Independent Non-executive Directors.
The three Independent Non-executive Directors are persons of high
caliber, with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
accounting and business management respectively. With their experience
gained from senior positions held in other organizations, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board. The biographies of the Directors are set out in
pages 47 to 50 to the 2019 annual report, which demonstrates the skills,

expertise, experience and qualifications of the Directors.
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The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the
three Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and
concluded that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are

independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Ms. Li Kei Ling, the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Hung Yung Lai, one of
the Executive Directors, are directors and ultimate shareholders of several

private companies incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands.

Save as disclosed above, the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. The
balanced Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board which can effectively exercise independent

judgement.
DIRECTORS’ CONTINUQOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Directors understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are willing to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution into the Board remains

informed and relevant.

The Directors are committed to complying with the CG Code A.6.5 on
Directors’ training. All Directors had participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they received for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended
31 December 2019 is set out below:

Briefings and updates on

Corporate Governance Report
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B2

Attending or participating
in seminars/conferences

the listing rules, business, relevant to

operations, and corporate the management

governance matters or business

BERLHRE - %5  EER HERSMEEER

Directors BE CEEREHEZEBRREN EREREE B3

Ms. Li Kei Ling THB L+ v v

Mr. Hung Yung Lai ARENIE S A 4 -

Mr. Chen Shaojun PRARE So 4 v

Mr. Leung Hong Man ZEREREE v v

Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony MRS A v -

Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi EDE, Ronald Hao Xi 4 v -

Ms. Lam Ming Yee Joan MEAE L+ 4 -
APPOINTMENTS AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS EEFERESE

The nomination committee will consider the appointment of new Directors
first by reviewing the profiles of the candidates and making
recommendations to the Board. New Directors appointed by the Board
during the year to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first general meeting

immediately followed their appointment.

Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of two years and
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”).

According to the Company’s Articles, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years at the annual general meeting. All retiring

Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his first appointment to have a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he is fully aware of
his responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules,
applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the
business and governance policies of the Company. The Directors
endeavour to give sufficient time and attention to the Group’s affairs and
are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, business
and market changes and the strategic development of the Group to

facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

The Independent Non-executive Directors take an active role in Board
meetings, contribute to the development of strategies and policies and
make sound and independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standard of
conduct. They will take lead where potential conflicts of interests arise.
They are also members of various board committees and scrutinize the
overall performance of the Group in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The management has the obligation to supply the Board with monthly
updates and adequate information to enable it to make informed decisions
on matters placed before it. Where any Director requires more information
than is volunteered by the management, each Director has separate and
independent access to the Group’s management to make further enquires
if necessary. Where queries are raised by Directors, management will

respond as promptly and fully as possible.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision of the CG Code A.2.1, the roles of the chairman (the
“Chairman”) and the chief executive officer (the “CEQ”) should be
separated and should not be performed by the same individual. The Board
has appointed Ms. Li Kei Ling as the Chairman. She has executive
responsibilities and provides leadership to the Board such as ensuring all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and
received complete and reliable information in a timely manner so that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities. Mr. Chen
Shaojun was appointed by the Board as the CEO of the Company and has
been delegated with the authority and responsibility for implementing the
Board’s policies and the Group’s daily business operations and
management. The CEO will periodically present the updated market
situation, long term strategies and objectives of the Group, quarterly results
variances analysis between the actual performances and the budget
targets to the Board at the Board meeting. This helps the Board to monitor
the Group’s business operations and to adjust the targets when required.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The management provides explanation and information to the Board so as
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the approval by the Board.

The Directors and CEO acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim and annual
financial statements and announcements to shareholders. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board
therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the
accounts.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules,
and reports to the regulators as well as the information required to be

disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements.

The responsibilities of the auditors to the shareholders are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 72 and 78.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness
at least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance roles
in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk management and
internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance and internal audit
functions.

The CEO and senior management of the Group is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. Appropriate policies and controls have been set
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in
accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group’s performance
are appropriately identified and managed. However the systems and
internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and unauthorized disposition and to manage
operational risks. Of which including:

(1)  establishing written policies and work flow for major operations and
production cycles to ensure compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, and industry standards;

(2) clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each
business and operational unit, having in place appropriate
segregation of duties and setting proper authorization levels to

ensure adequate checks and balances; and

(8) Rules and guidelines are set to control treasury activities, financial
and management reporting, human resources functions and
computer systems’ operations.
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The Group’s risk management framework includes the following elements:

(i) identify significant risks in the Group’s operation environment and
evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group’s business;

(i)  develop necessary measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such
risks; and

(i) monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the core
operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, business and
operational units assess and identify their potential risks which may impact
on their ability to achieve their business objectives and/or those of the
Group. The head of each unit has to complete relevant risk and control
self-assessment questionnaires and confirm to the CEO that appropriate
internal control policies and procedures have been established and
properly complied with. CEO conducts review of the effectiveness of risk
management annually and presents report to the Audit Committee after
review.

In addition, the Board monitors and reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control systems through a programme of
internal audit. The internal audit department is set up by the Company to
review the major operational and financial control of the Group in
compliance with the established processes and standards on a continuing
basis and aims to cover all major operations of the Group on a rotational
basis. The internal audit department reports directly to the Chairman of the
Board and the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee examines the
internal audit department’s review and opinions about operational
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and reports to the
Board.

During 2019, based on the internal audit report and the risk management
report presented by internal audit department and CEO respectively, the
Audit Committee and the Board were not aware of any areas of concern
that would have a material impact on the Group’s financial position or
results of operations and considered the risk management and internal
control systems to be generally effective and adequate including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.
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INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Company has established policy to ensure that inside information is
disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations. Access to inside information is at all
times confined to relevant senior management executed on “as needed”
basis, until proper disclosure or dissemination of inside information is made
in accordance with applicable laws and regulation. Relevant personnel and
other professional parties involved are reminded to preserve confidentiality
of the inside information until it is publicly disclosed.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The day-to-day management of the Group is delegated to the
management by the Board, with division heads responsible for individual
department’s daily operations.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to the
management include the preparation of interim and annual reports and
announcements for the Board’s approval before publishing, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and

regulations.
BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the nomination committee, remuneration
committee and audit committee. The committees’ terms of references
defined their functions and responsibilities have been posted on the

Company’s website.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2019, the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) had Ms. Li Kei Ling as the committee’s
chairman, and the three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lo
Tung Sing Tony, Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi and Ms. Lam Ming Yee Joan as
the committee’s members. The Nomination Committee’s terms of

reference are summarized as follows:

(1)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the skill,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
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(2)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and to select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(8)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors;
and

(4)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive officer.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Nomination Committee adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to ethnicity,
working experience, professional skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Company believes that increasing diversity at the Board level is an
important part of achieving its strategic objectives and to attract and retain
the best people. Appointments to the Board shall be on merit, in the
context of the skills and experience the Board as a whole requires to be
effective, and against objective criteria and with due regard for the benefits
of diversity. There are many considerations that factor into the Nomination
Committee’s nomination process including legal requirements, best
practices, and skills required to complement the Board’s skill set and the
number of Directors needed to discharge the duties of the Board and its
Committees. But it will not set any restrictions like gender, age, cultural or
educational background when short listing candidates. The Company
believes that a truly diverse Board will include and make good use of
differences in the skills, regional and industry experience, background and
other qualities of Directors. The Nomination Committee shall review the
diversity of the Board at least annually taking into account the Group’s
business model and specific needs and shall monitor the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy and, if appropriate, make recommendations
on proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s

corporate strategy.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee recommends candidates for nomination to the
Board, which approves the final choice of candidates. The Nomination
Committee was responsible to maintain the nomination policy of the
Company (the “Nomination Policy”) and review the same from time to time.
The objective of the Nomination Policy is to assist the Company in fuffilling
its duties and responsibilities as provided in its terms of reference. This
Nomination Policy sets out, inter alia, the selection criteria and the
evaluation procedures in nominating candidates to be appointed or
reappointed as Directors of the Company. The Nomination Committee
shall consider any and all candidates recommended as nominees for
Directors to the Committee by any Directors or Shareholders of the
Company in accordance with the Articles. The Nomination Committee may
also undertake its own search process for candidates and may retain the
services of professional search firms or other third parties to assist in
identifying and evaluating potential nominees. The Nomination Committee
shall endeavour to find individuals of high integrity who possess the
qualifications, qualities, skills, experience and independence (in case of
Independent Non-executive Directors) to effectively represent the best
interests of all Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability to
exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights and diverse
perspectives. The Nomination Committee may use any process it deems
appropriate for the purpose of evaluating candidates including personal
interviews, background checks, written submission by the candidates and
third party references. As far as practicable, nominees for each election or
appointment of Directors shall be evaluated using a substantially similar
process. The Nomination Committee believes that independence is an
important part of fulfilling the Directors’ duty to supervise the management
of the business and affairs of the Company. Non-executive Directors and
Executive Directors are required to disclose his/her competing businesses
to the Company. Cross-directorships in Hong Kong or overseas between
Directors are also reviewed annually. The Nomination Committee is
accountable for assessing whether any competing businesses or
interlocking directorships could materially interfere with the exercise of
objective and unfettered judgement by relevant Directors or their ability to
act in the best interests of the Group.

During the year 2019, the Nomination Committee had four meetings to
review the independence of independent non-executive directors, the
renewal of Directors’ letter of appointment and the qualification of
candidate for re-election in the AGM.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2019, the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) had Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi, an
Independent Non-executive Director, as the committee’s chairman, Ms. Li
Kei Ling, and two Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lo Tung Sing
Tony and Ms. Lam Ming Yee Joan as the committee’s members. The
Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference are summarized as follows:

(i) to recommend to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure of
all Directors and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing

remuneration policy;

(i)  to determine with delegated responsibility from the Board, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management;

(i)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment;

(iv) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

(v)  to ensure that no Director or any of her/his associates is involved in
deciding her/his own remuneration;

The Group’s remuneration policy bases on the market practice, the
qualification, duties and responsibilities of Directors and employees. In
order to attract, retain, and motivate high-performance persons, the
Company has adopted share option scheme to reward those participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
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The Board considers that the executive directors of the Company, CEO
and the financial controller are the key management personnel of the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate emoluments
payable to directors, CEO and the financial controller were within the

following bands:
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Details of the amount of Directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments are set out in note 7 to the financial statements and the
details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

The Remuneration Committee had two meetings in 2019 to determine the
bonus of senior management and discuss granting options to a director as
an incentive for further contribution to the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) which was
established in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company who among
themselves possess a wealth of management experience in the accounting

profession, commercial, medical and pharmaceutical sectors.

As at 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee’s chairman was Mr. Lo
Tung Sing Tony, Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi and Ms. Lam Ming Yee Joan
were the committee’s members. The Audit Committee’s terms of reference

are summarized as follows:

()  to consider and recommend to the board the independence,

appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors;

(i)  to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors, and to deal with any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;
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(i) to review financial information; and

(iv)  to oversee financial reporting system, risks management and internal

control system.

During the year 2019, the Audit Committee had five meetings, two of
which were held with external auditors without presence of executive
directors. The work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended
31 December 2019 is summarized below:

—
—

) reviewed the external auditors’ independence, the terms of
engagement and approved the remuneration of the external auditors;

(2)  reviewed the annual audit plan of the external auditors and discussed
with them about the nature and scope of the audit;

(8) reviewed the Group’s interim financial information and annual
financial statements, before submission to the Board, discussed the
financial reporting matters and any areas of concerns during the
audits, including but not limited to the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices, and on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements;

(4)  reviewed internal audit report and annual audit plan of the internal
audit department and the effectiveness of internal audit function, risk
management and internal control systems.

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee before
recommending them to the Board for approval.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst and Young has been reappointed as the Company’s external
auditors at the AGM on 24 May 2019 until the conclusion of the next AGM.
During the year 2019, the remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s

external auditors in respect of services provided is as follows:

Fees for statutory audit service amounted to RMB1,980,000
Fees for non-statutory audit service amounted to RMB690,000
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pang Kit Ling, the company secretary of the Company, is a full time
employee of the Group. During the year, the company secretary of the
Company confirmed that she had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of

association during the year ended 31 December 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one
or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the shareholder(s) by the Company.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting

following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards, proposing a person for election as a director, please refer to
the procedures available on the website of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Units 3001-02, 30/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company establishes and maintains different
communication channels with its shareholders through the publication of
annual and interim reports. Our corporate website which contains
corporate information, corporate governance practice, interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars issued by the Company enables the
Company’s shareholders to have timely and updated information of the

Company.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board attends the
AGM and arranges the chairman of the committees or in the absence of
the chairman of such committees, another member of the committees to
be available to answer questions at the AGM. The Chairman proposes
separate resolutions for each issue to be considered, including the election
of Directors, and put each proposed resolution to the vote by way of a poll.
Voting results are posted on the Company’s website on the day of AGM.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. LI, Kei Ling, aged 71, is an Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company. Ms. Li is one of the founders of the Group. She founded the
Group in December 1995 and was appointed to the Board in October 2002.
She was also the chief executive officer of the Company from 1 March 2015
to 17 April 2016. Ms. Li is also the Chairman of Dawnrays International Co.
Ltd., Dawnrays International Company Limited (5 3% B BX I 15 B R A &),
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong)
Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Fujian Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Cinmed Medical Equipment (Putian) Co., Ltd.,
Nanjing PharmaRays Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Guangzhou
PharmaRays Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Lanzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., Cinmed
(Hong Kong) Investment Ltd. and Top Field Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of
the Company. She is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Li has over twenty years of
experience in corporate management, strategic planning, business
operations and finance, in particular for pharmaceutical enterprises in the
PRC. She is responsible for supervising the strategic management decisions
to ensure good corporate governance practices and business policies are
established, and executing the overall developmental strategies of the
Group.

Mr. HUNG, Yung Lai, aged 75, is an Executive Director of the Company
and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Hung founded the Group in
December 1995 and was appointed to the Board in October 2002. Mr.
Hung also holds directorship in Dawnrays International Co., Ltd., Dawnrays
Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Ltd., Dawnrays International Company Limited
(BRI AR (D AR A 7]), Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su
Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd.,
Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd.,
Lanzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., and Dawnrays Pharma
(Hong Kong) Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hung
holds a degree from _E/& & £4E3[7 (Shanghai Conservatory of Music). He
has over twenty years of experience in corporate management and
corporate development, and has participated in founding and managing of
pharmaceutical and high-tech enterprises. Mr. Hung is an executive
director and the chairman of Sing Lee Software (Group) Ltd., a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung is
a director and chairman of AD Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., an associate of
the Group.
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EENGHREEEBE

Mr. CHEN, Shaojun, aged 42, is an Executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. He joined the sales and marketing
department of Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, in August 2002 as area manager and was
responsible for developing area market of the Group’s new specific
medicines and managing sales business. Mr. Chen has long specialized in
sales promotion, network building, brand upgrading, planning and
managing of business development in China pharmaceutical market. He
has accumulated almost twenty years of experience in pharmaceutical
sales and marketing and corporate development and management. Mr.
Chen was appointed as executive vice president of the Company in
December 2014 and became the chief executive officer of the Company
on 18 April 2016 to take charge of daily business operations of the Group.
Mr. Chen was appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 8
January 2018. Mr. Chen also holds directorship in Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and
Technology Co., Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and
Technology Co., Ltd., Fujian Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Lanzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Nanjing PharmaRays Science and
Technology Co., Ltd., and Guangzhou PharmaRays Science and
Technology Co., Ltd. which are all subsidiaries of the Company. He is also
the general manager of Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEUNG, Hong Man, aged 45, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group and was appointed to the Board in
November 2005. Mr. Leung has started his business career in knitting
machinery since 1993. He has over ten years experience in sales and
management and also over ten years experience in finance and property
investments. In recent years, Mr. Leung has strived to exploit business in
hi-tech agriculture and arts and cultural industries. Mr. Leung currently is
the shareholder and the director of Toyo International Investment Ltd.,
which has been one of the substantial shareholders (as required to be
disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) of the
Company since September 2005.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LO Tung Sing Tony, aged 51, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group in October 2010. He is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company respectively.
Mr. Lo has extensive experience in financial management and business
development in Hong Kong and multinational companies. He obtained his
Bachelor degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong and Master of Science in Financial Management from The
University of London. Mr. Lo is an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a full member of CPA
Australia. He currently holds the position of the Head of Corporate
Accounting and Taxation at The Hong Kong Jockey Club.

Mr. EDE, Ronald Hao Xi, aged 61, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Ede joined the Group in June 2015 and was
appointed as a Non-executive Director. He was re-designated as an
Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company with effect from 1 July 2017. Mr. Ede has
extensive experience in financial and business management in multinational
companies. He obtained his Bachelor degree in Business Administration
from The University of Hawaii and a Master of Business Administration
degree from The University of Washington. He is also a fellow member of
the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants. Mr. Ede was appointed
as Mindray Medical International Ltd’s independent director and chairman
of the audit committee in January 2017. Mr. Ede currently holds the
position of executive director and chief financial officer of Innovent
Biologics Inc. (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited).
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
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Ms. LAM, Ming Yee Joan, aged 52, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Ms. Lam joined the group in May 2018. She is a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company respectively. Ms. Lam earned her
bachelor degree in accountancy from City University of Hong Kong. She is
a certified public accountant in Hong Kong. Ms. Lam has extensive
experience in the finance and accounting field, gained from major
international financial institutions and listed company in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WU Yi Jun, aged 56, is the Financial Controller of the Group. Mr. Wu
is responsible for the Group’s financial management including financial
planning, capital budgeting, execution of costing, budget planning and
monitoring. Mr. Wu holds directorship in Fujian Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd., Nanjing PharmaRays Science and Technology Co., Ltd. and
Guangzhou PharmaRays Science and Technology Co., Ltd. which are all
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wu obtained a Bachelor degree of
Accountancy from Nanjing Audit Institute (renamed as Nanjing Audit
University in 2015). He attained economist and senior accountant
qualification in the PRC. Mr. Wu has over thirty years’ experience in
auditing, budgeting, financial management, corporate banking, economic
management and PRC’s taxation regulations. Mr. Wu joined the Group in
December 2002.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) herein present their report and the
audited financial statements of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company aims to provide its shareholders with a target annual
dividend payout ratio between 25% to 50% of the profit after tax
attributable to owners of the parent in any financial year subject to the
following factors:

1. the Company’s actual and expected cash flow positions and financial

performance;

2. projected capital expenditure, future expansion plans and growth
opportunities;

3. the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant
financial covenants;

4. general economic conditions and business cycle of the Group’s core
business;

5. general expectation of shareholders and investors of the Company;
and

6. any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will declare dividends semi-annually. The payment of final
dividend is subject to the approval of Shareholders and scrip dividend
distribution option also may be provided for the election of the
Shareholders in relation to the payment of final dividend in any financial
year. This dividend policy and the declaration and/or payment of dividends
under this policy are subject to the Board’s continuing determination that
this dividend policy and the declaration and/or payment of dividends would
be in the best interests of the Group and the Shareholders, and are in

compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
audited financial statements on pages 79 to 209.

An interim dividend of HK$0.015 per ordinary share was paid on 10
October 2019. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.043 per ordinary share in respect of the year, to shareholders on the
register of members on 3 June 2020. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits
within the equity section of the statement of financial position.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
presented in “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 5 to 9 and pages 10 to 18 respectively. The “Financial
Review” on pages 19 to 28 also includes an analysis of the Group’s
financial key performance indicators during the year. Future developments
in the Group’s business are disclosed in “Chairman’s Statement” on page
6 to 8 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 16.

The applicable discussion and analysis as cross-referenced above shall
form an integral part of this Report of the Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Cinmed Pharmaceuticals Co. Ltd. has been renamed as Fujian Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. since 2 March 2020.

In August 2019, Cinmed Pharmaceuticals and Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical”), a
subsidiary of the Group, as defendants received a writ. On 2 November
2019, the Intermediate People’s Court of Putian City, Fujian Province
dismissed the plaintiff’s claim. The plaintiff filed an appeal but finally
withdrew it to end the lawsuit, on 2 March 2020. Cinmed Pharmaceuticals
and Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical were not required to pay any legal
costs or compensations. As at 31 December 2019, certain of Cinmed
Pharmaceuticals’ buildings and bank accounts with net carrying amounts
of RMB7,272,000 and RMB2,840,000 were attached or frozen according
to the order of the court. The buildings and bank accounts were
unattached and unfrozen on 25 March 2020 and 26 March 2020

respectively.
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The outbreak of novel coronavirus pneumonia in January 2020 has varying
degrees of impact on industries in China. In response to the call of the
state, the Group has promptly established the outbreak prevention and
control headquarters and coordinated all aspects of work. It has
formulated an outbreak prevention and control management system and
has prepared sufficient prevention and control materials required for
resumption of work. It has actively coordinated with government
departments for the return of employees to work in a timely manner, and
has strived to carry out both outbreak prevention and production. Through
the joint efforts of all employees, the production and supply of products for
national centralized procurement and main products of the Group have
been basically ensured. Sales dropped significantly from January to
February 2020, due to the logistics during the Spring Festival holiday and
the outbreak, and returned to normal gradually in March. According to the
current situation, the impact on sales for the year is expected to be
approximately 10%. In terms of research and development, the main
impact is on the progress of clinical projects for products under research.
In addition, affected by the outbreak, the construction periods for the
Lanzhou Dawnrays project and the Suzhou Dawnrays relocation project
have been delayed by one month. Other systems have not been affected

basically.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Details about the Group’s financial risk management objectives and
policies are disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements. The following
risks and uncertainties may affect the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent to pharmaceutical sector and some
are from external sources.

(1) DRUG APPROVAL PROCESS IN RELATION TO PRODUCTS

UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The actual timing of the market launch of products under
development could vary significantly from our estimates due to a
number of factors including delays or failures in our pre-clinical
studies or clinical trials, the lengthy approval process and the
uncertainties in the outcome of regulatory approval process. If any of
the necessary approvals in relation to products under development
is delayed or not obtained, this could adversely affect the timing of
the market launch of the products. The Group is committed to
investing in research and development of new drugs in order to
ensure a rich product pipeline.
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TENDER AND PRICE CONTROL

The Group has to participate in a government-led tender process
every year or every few years. In the event that the Group fails to win
the tender in a tender process, the sale of the Group’s products to
public hospitals in such provinces will be prohibited and the Group
will lose market share of that part. In addition, certain new methods
have been recently adopted in the tender process for centralized
procurement of drugs, which may exert further downward pressure
against the price of pharmaceutical products and the Group’s market
share, revenue and profitability may be adversely affected. The
Group has a team of staff monitoring and handling the drug tenders
with the objective of winning the tenders for the Group’s products at

a desirable price level.

HEALTHCARE REFORM IN CHINA

The healthcare system in the PRC is undergoing a crucial reform
period, where laws, regulations and policies in effect governing the
medical, healthcare and pharmaceutical industry are constantly
evolving. New policies implementation may have material effects to
the Group. It may also incur significant costs, divert the resources
and attention of the management and thus leading to more
uncertainties and risks in respect of the Group’s business and

operation.

PRC ENVIRONMENTAL AND SAFETY REGULATIONS

The PRC government amends relevant laws, rules and regulations
from time to time in order to impose a more stringent standard for
environmental and safety protection. The Group is subject to such
laws, rules and regulations including but not limited to those in
relation to the discharge of gaseous waste, liquid waste and solid
waste, noise pollution and the safety of the workers during the
manufacturing process. Any violation of these laws, rules or
regulations may result in substantial fines, criminal sanctions,
revocation of operating permits, shutdown of the production facilities

and obligations to take corrective measures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Board is well aware of the importance of environmental protection on
the Group’s sustainability and stable development. The Group strives to
improve product quality while achieving the best balance between cost
control and environmental protection, devotes to be a resource-saving and
environment-friendly enterprise with low energy and resources
consumption and low level of discharge on wastages. The Group has
established an environmental management system to promote clean
production, to reduce pollution and to reduce the risk of environmental
accidents. The Group also evaluates environmental and social risks of its
suppliers on a regular basis to ensure the safety of its supply chains.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The environmental, social and governance report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will be
announced on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Company’s website within three months after the publication of the annual
report of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the directors and management are aware, for the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group has complied in all material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operations of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(1) EMPLOYEES
Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonable
remunerated and also continues to improve and regularly review and
update its policies on remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety. The staff and remuneration policy are
presented in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 27.
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SUPPLIERS

The Group has established a supplier management system to
handpick suppliers through a screening and evaluation process
based on quality and price. Furthermore, the Group also carries out
field audit on its suppliers when necessary, with a view to make
endeavor to ensure its suppliers are equipped to provide guarantees
on quality, as well as safety and other environmental issues that
require managerial skills. Such audit cover a number of areas,
including productivity, technical standards, quality assurance, supply
capability, as well as safety and environmental management
credentials.

DISTRIBUTORS

The Group sells some of products to customers through third-party
distributors. The Group works closely with distributors to ensure that
the Group shares the view for upholding brand value and customer
services, specifically focusing on attracting and retaining customers
in order to drive sales growth. The Group also requires distributors to
comply with the Group’s policies and promotional activities
standards. The Group also monitors the financial condition and

repayment history of distributors.

CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
constantly endeavours to deliver quality products and services to its
customers. The Group also directs dedicated efforts to deal with
complaints about relevant products and has established relevant
processes to handle complaints. In addition the Group has assigned
staff to investigate customers’ complaint cases and provide timely
feedbacks in order to safeguard customers’ benefits.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report on pages 29 to 46 of the annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy bases on the market practice, the

qualification, duties and responsibilities of Directors and employees. Other

fringe benefits, including defined contribution retirement schemes, share

option scheme and medical cover are also provided.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals
during the year are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out on page 210. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable donation amounting to
RMB32,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND LEASE

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and land lease of
the Company and the Group during the year are set out in notes 13 and

14 to the financial statements, respectively.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

Details of interest-bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December

2019 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED

SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company repurchased 33,394,000 shares of the

Company’s listed securities on The Stock Exchange at an aggregate

consideration of HK$47,967,420 before expenses. The Directors believe

that the repurchases reflect the Company’s confidence in its long term

business prospects and would ultimately benefit the Company and for the

enhancement of shareholder value in the long term. The repurchased

shares, of which 29,801,000 shares were cancelled in 2019 and the

remaining 3,593,000 shares were cancelled on 17 February 2020. The

monthly breakdown of shares repurchased during the year was as follows:

Month of Repurchase

May 2019

June 2019

July 2019
August 2019
September 2019
October 2019
November 2019
December 2019

Total

e A4

—ZE-NEFRAHG
ZE-NhFRAM
ZZE-NFEAH
—ZE-hFNAM
ZZE-NFhAH
—E-hF+AMm
—E—-hF+—AMm
—ZE-NF+ZAh
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FAN - ARAE

Fft 8 B 33,394,000 f R A 7]+
MESH - Rt HMERA 2 BRE BB 47,967,420
T BEERA RONEEERMAAFAHERRER
BIEZED  &EBARARTBREZERARSR
REEMZEMIED o BB &H H A+ 29,801,000 i
ERZZE-NFAFTH - FI#3,593,000ER=F
ZTEFA+EHFEHE RNFABABERG ZF

EREOT

The highest The lowest Aggregate
Number price paid price paid consideration
of Shares per share per share paid
repurchased (HK$) (HKS) (HK$)

sREM sRER[
BeE® BRIEER BRE
BEROHAE (B%) (B¥) (B)
1,156,000 1.42 1.35 1,596,270
5,869,000 1.49 1.38 8,407,710
8,313,000 1.51 1.45 12,206,910
695,000 1.36 1.27 899,010
5,288,000 1.53 1.35 7,720,320
4,076,000 1.49 1.39 5,876,420
4,259,000 1.46 1.38 6,028,770
3,738,000 1.43 1.37 5,232,010
33,394,000 47,967,420
BEXEREEN BEZ_T-NF+ZA=+—H

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities for
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity
and note 33 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2019 the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB196,705,000, of which RMB61,358,000 has been

proposed as a final dividend for the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 21.94% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 6.27%. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 30.59% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 10.63%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest

in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Li Kei Ling

Mr. Hung Yung Lai

Mr. Chen Shaojun

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Leung Hong Man

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony

Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi

Ms. Lam Ming Yee Joan

In accordance with the article 87 of the Company’s articles of association
(the “Articles”), Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Mr. Leung Hong Man and Mr. Lo Tung
Sing Tony will retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).

Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony (“Mr. Lo”) has served as an independent non-
executive Director for more than nine years. The nomination committee of
the Company has assessed the independence of Mr. Lo and considered
that he meets the independence factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Mr. Lo is not involved in the daily management of the Company nor
in any relationships or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of his independent judgment. In addition, he continues to
demonstrate his ability to provide an independent, balanced and objective
view to the affairs of the Company and there is no evidence that his tenure
has had any impact on his independence. The Board is of the opinion that
Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony remains independent notwithstanding the length of
his service and it believes that his valuable knowledge and experience will

continue to generate significant contribution to the Group.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony, Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi and Ms. Lam Ming Yee
Joan and as at the date of this report still considers them to be

independent.

60  DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED HEe#I% (J2R%) AR A7)

5%

ARBARFARBERRETH 2B ILNERNT ¢

BITES
FHELL
RRRRIE B
RATELLE

FUITES
REREE

BUFHITES
BRELEAE

EDE, Ronald Hao Xi %t 4
ML =

REBARRARMAGERAR((AEEZAR ) E
8716 FREMEE L RERAERBRBLERR
RERFRBFAG((RRBEBFAG)) LHESE -
W& BIRFREEEE -

BRBLECETELIFNTESTANF - ARA
REZBEENGERBEEZHIE AR
WA EMARANEIASEAE 2 BIERE - &

EYJ|BEARBZAEEE MBS KA B
R 8 B IR EE - MRS RPESN
RARFANEBRMBYL - TEREHNER - M8
BBEBEIENEZEFEHNBLIEAEAZE - EF
ERREABELHEARBRREARFENAS
VERBEZEENMNE R ERGEE S AREER
EXER -

AARIEES S R4 - EDE, Ronald Hao X%t A4
DMEAELZTNFEEBIIERE IR ARS T3
ZBRINEEERBLAL -



DIRECTORS’ AND KEY MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

The Board considers the executive directors of the Company, CEO and
the financial controller are the key management personnel of the Group.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the financial

controller are set out on pages 47 to 50 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Li Kei Ling entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Ms. Li's service contract
was renewed for a term of three years which commenced on 1 July 2005
and will continue thereafter for successive terms of three years. Her
appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not less than
three months’ written notice. Ms. Li is currently entitled to director’s fee
and other remuneration from the Group totally HK$1,162,800 per year.

Mr. Hung Yung Lai entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Mr. Hung’s service
contract was renewed for a term of three years which commenced on 1
July 2005 and will continue thereafter for successive terms of three years.
His appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not less
than three months’ written notice. Mr. Hung is currently entitled to
director’s fee and other remuneration from the Group totally HK$742,800

per year.

Mr. Chen Shaojun entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 8 January 2018 and will continue
thereafter for successive terms of two years. His appointment is subject to
termination by either party giving not less than two months’ written notice.
Mr. Chen is currently entitled to director’s fee and other remuneration from
the Group totally HK$1,829,184 and a discretionary bonus payable at the
absolute discretion of the Board from time to time.

Mr. Leung Hong Man entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of two years which commenced on 1 November 2005
and will continue thereafter for successive terms of two years. Mr. Leung is
currently entitled to a basic annual remuneration of HK$300,000. Mr.
Leung’s appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than one month’s written notice. Save for the above director’s fee, Mr.
Leung is not entitled to any other remuneration.
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Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of two years which commenced on 1 October 2010
and will continue thereafter for successive terms of two years. Mr. Ede,
Ronald Hao Xi entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of two years commenced on 15 June 2015. As Mr. Ede was re-
designated as independent non-executive director, he entered into a new
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of two years
commenced on 1 July 2017 and will continue thereafter for successive
terms of two years. Ms. Lam Ming Yee Joan entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of two years which commenced
on 25 May 2018. Each of Mr. Lo’s, Mr. Ede’s and Ms. Lam’s appointment
is respectively subject to termination by either party giving not less than
one month’s written notice. Each of Mr. Lo, Mr. Ede and Ms. Lam is
currently entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$360,000. Save for the
above directors’ fees, the three Independent Non-executive Directors are

not entitled to any other remuneration.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group. There was no
contract of significance between the Group, its controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into

or were in existence during the year.
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COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

According to the Company’s competition and conflict of interest policy, a
board member’s serving as a director and/or officer of an entity that
competes with the Group’s business is involving a conflict of interest. A
director involves in such kind of conflict of interest shall not be present in
the meeting and participate in or be permitted to hear the board’s
discussion of related matters. A director who has a conflict of interest with
respect to a contract or transaction that will be voted on at a meeting shall
not be counted in determining the presence of a quorum for purposes of
the vote.

Mr. EDE Ronald Hao Xi (Mr. EDE), an independent non-executive director
of the Company, has been serving as executive director and chief financial
officer of a listed company in Hong Kong. Part of that listed company’s
business is competing with the business of the Group’s associate and so
Mr. EDE is involving a conflict of interest under the Group’s competition
and conflict of interest policy. To avoid such a possible conflict, during the
year under review, upon agreement with Mr. EDE, he was not present in
meetings when the board discussed, decided and voted on the matters
and business with respect to the Group’s associate.

Except abovementioned, in the opinion of the Directors, none of the
Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company and any of their
respective close associates has engaged in any businesses that competes
or may compete, either directly or indirectly with the business of the Group
or has any other conflict of interests with the Group during the year under
review which are required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director is entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses
and liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution and/
or discharge of his duties and/or the exercise of his powers and/or
otherwise in relation to or in connection with his duties, powers or offices,

to the extent as permitted by laws.

The Company has acquired insurance coverage on Directors’ and officers’
liabilities which provides certain indemnities against liabilities incurred in
respect of any legal actions which may be taken against Directors and
officers in the execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year or
subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

After the expiry of the Company’s 2003 share option scheme, the
Company adopted another share option scheme which was approved by
the shareholders at the annual general meeting on 24 May 2013 and was
effective on 21 June 2013 (the “2013 Share Option Scheme” or “Scheme”).
The Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from the effective date until
20 June 2023 with purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
persons (including the Company’s directors, independent non-executive
directors, employees of the Group and other eligible participants as
defined under the 2013 Share Option Scheme) who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. As the shareholders of the Company
approved share sub-division, the number and exercise price of share
options and the closing price of the Company’s shares at immediate date
before the grant had been adjusted on 6 August 2018. The detailed
disclosures relating to the Scheme including the purposes and the eligible
participants of the Scheme and valuation of options are set out in note 32
to financial statements. The total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 158,956,800 shares which representing
approximately 10.25% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
date of this annual report.
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Movements of Company’s share options under the Scheme during the

year were as follows:
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RERN - ZETEITHARRRBREZSINT

Closing
price of the
Company’s
Number of share options shares at
BREHA immediate
At Date of grant Exercise date hefore
At 31 December of Exercise period ~ price of the grant (c)
1 January Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2019 shareoptions  of share options share BERLE
2019 during the during duing RZE-NE (a) [dd/mmiyy) (dd/mmfyy) options(b) A -%
Name or category SEELRY RZB-1% year  theyear theyear(d) T2 BEBERERE  BREGENE  BRE A0ERH
of participant LY -B-A FRERE FAEGHE FASANW  =t-8 @B/ A/ B (B/ B/ &) fEEL UHEk()
HK$ HK$
Director FE
Mr. Chen Shaojun (e) REERER 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 08/01/15  08/01/16-07/01/21 2575 2485
6,000,000 - - - 6000000 18/03/15  18/03/16-17/03/21 2635 2575
4,000,000 - - - 4000000 16/04/15  16/04/16-15/04/21 3670 3585
- 32,000,000 - - 32,000,000 28/08/19  31/12/19-31/12/20 1,380 1.300
- 32,000,000 - - 32,000,000 28/08/19  01/05/22-30/04/24 1.380 1.300
16,000,000 64,000,000 - - 80,000,000

Other employees RS

In aggregate o) 2,000,000 - - - 2000000 17/09/14  17/09/15-16/09/20 3220 3085

14 18-
5,800,000 - - - 5,800,000 08/01115  08/01/16-07/01/21 2575 2485
7,800,000 - - (1,600,000) 6,200,000 16/04/15  16/04/16-15/04/21 3,670 3585
2,800,000 - - (1,600,000) 1,200,000 2811115 23111/16-2211/21 3190 3185
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 11/0516  11/0517-10/05/22 3170 3.145
11,300,000 - - (800,000 10,500,000 291117 29/1118-28/11/23 2.125 2.0%
- 16,000,000 - (1,600,000) 14,400,000 09/0119  09/01/20-08/01/25 1.500 1.460
- 16,000,000 - (600,000 15,400,000 28/08/19  28/08/20-27/08/25 1.380 1.300
32,700,000 32,000,000 - (6,200,000 58,500,000
48700000 96,000,000 - 6200000 138500000
(@) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant @@ ERENEBHARILBBEITERMBAL -

until the commencement of the exercise period.

(b)  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

(c)  The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at immediate date
before the grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing
price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of the

options.
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(d)  Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme due to
resignation of employees.

(e)  Mr. Chen Shaojun was appointed as chief executive officer of the
Company on 18 April 2016 and then was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 8 January 2018.

During the year, no options granted under 2013 Share Option Scheme
were exercised by any director or any employees or were cancelled.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive Officer in the shares or underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name

=L

Directors

=

Ms. Li Kei Ling
FHR L

Mr. Hung Yung Lai
ARELIE S

Mr. Leung Hong Man
RREREE

Mr. Chen Shaojun
BRAREE SE 4

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated corporation:

Name of Director

EEEH
Ms. Li Kei Ling
FHIGLL

Mr. Hung Yung Lai
RERIIESE A

Report of the Directors
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Number of ordinary shares held, capacity and nature of interest (a)

RFANROEE  BHKRERDRNE ()

Notes

M=E

Name of
associated
corporation

AABEE %
Fortune United

Group Limited

Fortune United
Group Limited

Directly Share Option
beneficially granted
owned EEEN
EERERER B
104,640,000 -
624,000 -
8,377,000 80,000,000

Through

controlled

corporation
miEE Total
AREE wme
588,144,000 692,784,000
588,144,000 588,768,000
100,000,000 100,000,000
- 88,377,000

ESEHRS

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital (%)
KEAR AT
EEITREN
Bk (%)

44.51
37.82
6.42

5.68

PARBSEBA D KRR PR

Number of
Relationship Ordinary
with the shares held Capacity and
Company BEEEER nature of interest
B A B BA R #A BOREREE

the Company’s
holding company
AR BRI B

the Company’s
holding company
AR FHERAF

2 Through a controlled
corporation
B AR

2 Through a controlled
corporation
BiA—fEEE A A

Approximate
percentage of
the associated
corporation’s
issued share
capital (%)
FORpiz)i 7S
2RITIRAH
B2 (%)

50

50
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Notes:

() 588,144,000 shares of the Company are held by Fortune United Group
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Keysmart
Enterprises Limited, which is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling, and Hunwick
International Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai, are each
beneficially interested in 50% of the share capital of Fortune United Group
Limited.

(o) 100,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Toyo International
Investment Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Hong
Man and Mr. Leung Yiu Sing are each beneficially interested in 50% of the
share capital of Toyo International Investment Limited.

(c) 8,377,000 shares of the Company are directly beneficially owned by Mr.
Chen Shaojun and 80,000,000 underlying shares are the share options
granted to him under the share option scheme of the Company. Mr. Chen is
deemed to be interested in the shares which will be issued to him upon his
exercise of options, representing approximately 5.16% of the Company’s
issued share capital as at the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive Officer had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share option scheme”, “Directors’
and Chief Executive Officer’s interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 32 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the following interests or short positions in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
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RIZE-AF+-A=1+—0 REEFLHERK
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register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:
Name Notes Nature of interest
£ st REmEME
Fortune United Group Limited (a) Directly Beneficially owned
BEEEREAR
Keysmart Enterprises Limited () Through controlled
corporation
BBEHARRAE
Hunwick International Limited (@) Through controlled
corporation
e bt INSIES Y <]
Mdm. lu Pun (b) Family interest
st EN L 3
Mr. Li Tung Ming Directly Beneficially owned
FERAXE BEEBERESR
(©) Through controlled
corporation
RIBIEHIA RS
Time Lead Investments Limited (c) Directly Beneficially owned
HEBXE%AR
Toyo International Investment (d) Directly Beneficially owned
Limited HEERER
REBEEFEREGRAT
Mdm. Lo Mei Sai (e) Family interest
BEAHLLT EN L 3
Mr. Leung Yiu Sing (d) & () Through controlled

corporation

BBEHIARRA

ARABRAD AR RS SORREINT

Number of capital (%)
Shares held #1522 F Long position/
FEK B#{TIRA short position
RGHE WEDL (%) HE KB
588,144,000 37.78 Long position
HAE
588,144,000 37.78 Long Position
HE
588,144,000 37.78 Long Position
HE
588,768,000 37.82 Long Position
HAE
224,000 0.01  Long Position
HE
80,000,000 5.14  Long Position
ey}
80,000,000 5.14 Long Position
HRE
100,000,000 6.42 Long Position
HE
100,000,000 6.42 Long Position
ey}
104,330,000 6.70 Long Position
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Report of the Directors
EEgHRE

Name Notes Nature of interest
2 MeF EmME

Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong Q Family interest
KEFLZ LT KRB

(f) Through controlled
corporation
BBITEHAREA

FMR LLC (h) Through controlled
corporation

BT AREE
Notes:

(@  The issued capital of Fortune United Group Limited is equally beneficially
owned by Keysmart Enterprises Limited and Hunwick International Limited
which are in turn, respectively, wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling and Mr. Hung
Yung Lai, Executive Directors of the Company.

(b)  Mdm. lu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to be interested
in the shares of the Company held by Mr. Hung Yung Lai.

(c) The issued capital of Time Lead Investments Ltd. is beneficially owned by Mr.
Li Tung Ming,

(d)  The issued capital of Toyo International Investment Limited is equally
beneficially owned by Mr. Leung Hong Man, the Non-executive Director of
the Company and his father Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

(e) Mdm. Lo Mei Sai is the wife of Mr. Leung Hong Man and is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Hong Man.

() 4,330,000 shares of the Company are held by Dragon Asia Industrial
(Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Yiu
Sing and Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong, his wife, are each beneficially interested in
50% of the issued share capital of Dragon Asia Industrial (Holdings) Limited.

(@9 Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong is the wife of Mr. Leung Yiu Sing and is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

() According to the corporate substantial shareholder notice of FMR LLC filed
for the relevant event dated 31 May 2019 as shown on the website of the
Stock Exchange, the relevant interests of FMR LLC were held via FMR LLC
and its subsidiaries.
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Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Number of capital (%)
Shares held #1522 F Long position/
BEEH E%{TIKRA short position
ROEE WEDL (%) HE %A
100,000,000 6.42 Long Position
TR
4,330,000 0.28 Long Position
Sy
95,236,817 6.00 Long Position
e
B -
(@  Fortune United Group Limited#) 2 2 17 X 7 M

Keysmart Enterprises Limited & Hunwick International
Limited “F¥J EzX # A ° Keysmart Enterprises Limited
K Hunwick International Limited 2 Bl (3 AN 2 &1 B9 A 7T
ERTHR AT RARMBTERERS -

izt RRRRME R AMELE - MR A RRANE K
ERBNARABRD P AR -

Time Lead Investments Limited 89 2 21T AN A =&
REEERES -

TEEREE AR A ANEETRAES RIBAR T
TR ERBER R QBRI S T E
A -

BEBUTRRBEREENEE  SREANRRRR
REBBHNARRRRMD P HEEES -

4,330,000 f& AN A BAR 1 FR & A8 sE AR 32 /9 A B SR B2
EEXEEGRARMSE  REZELEEFRAFN
EHMEBEITRARZRK CERERBAS S T8
BB A 50% S

EFRTR/RBRFEENERE - BIRERNRIEK
FERBNARR R P HEAES -

WM RAERN T BEFMRLLCABAZZ
—NFRA=T—BREEEEFENAREZRE
AN FMR LLCHI MR = Ty A FMR LLC R E KT
NGIES S



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person, other than
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s interests
and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Li Kei Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

Report of the Directors
EEgRE

BEXEEEN RZF-AF+-A=t—H &
BEMAL(RRREEREHRI - BRKRSOHE
HEN EX TEERARRNE D R AER DR K
KR B BTRARBRMLARBEBR D P HEEDN
gk R (AREBESMEGRAIEI6HTNE

BEALTESNCARERNREEEHM  RA
REFIEZE ARATRAAAAEEIRAR
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o

=D

ZOKERTEN B RE  MEMZERSERAR
AZBENERER - BN EERRBFA S LIZZ -

REREZ=S

FHR
E

BB —TE-TF=—RA=++H

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —Z—n4&%: 71



Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI E

EY =x

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 79 to 209, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report

BB R

ERESEE

PR ET S HEREBEHMNBEAE  REEAH
RAMBBREANEIRREENEE - RFFEN
EH MG M ERREBETERIMERAERA
55 BRMATeHZSETREFRRER - 7MY
T s —FRER T EANAEE A RSB AL S

b=
B

BPIEBITARE BB 6 M BERRAA
ENEME] —fANEE  BRAMZEEENR
- 1R RFINET TERERRITREEFED
RAMBHRREAERERMRANWBRTERF - K
PITRIZEFNER - BREBHATEEMRT
MR SRMGBENNEGRASMERREEBERSE
ATERRHETER -

Key audit matter

BREEASEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRWETTNAERRRESSE

Provision for inventories

FERfE

The Group reported inventories of RMB181 million as at 31
December 2019. The Group had exposure to the impairment risks
of inventories with negative margin and obsolete, slow-moving
finished drugs due to expiration. We focused on this area because
inventories were material to the Group as at 31 December 2019 and
the determination of the impairment provision for inventories
involved a high level of management’s judgement and estimates in
future sales.

RZBE-NF+ZA=+—H BE5EFEHRTFLAARBI181ES
T o BEEETFER ENE A KB MOEHK S BT R ERR o
BMAIRE  REA EXER-_Z-—NF+_A=+—HBHHOEE
BEKX  BFEERERENETED REEE LR KEE N = E A E &
flat

The Group’s disclosures about provision for inventories are
contained in note 2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies —
inventories, note 2.5 Significant accounting judgements, estimates
and assumptions — net realisable value of inventories, note 6 Profit
before tax and note 19 Inventories to the financial statements.
EREFATERENREENENMBREM T 2.4 ERGFIK
BHE — 78  WF25FE@7E - st RRE — FENA
IR RE - BT RMANEN KT 19FERA -

We evaluated the inventory impairment assessments made
by management, including expected selling prices and
expiration dates of the related inventories, and the Group’s
future plan of sales. We assessed the ageing reports of
pharmaceutical products, by tracing the production dates
back to the product release reports. We checked the
condition of inventories by physical inspection on a sample
basis.

BT EERBELNFEREMRS  BEERFENE
HEEBRERN UKk BEEEAARKHEEE - HfIE
BEMNERBRERBSEMEEERD KT EEMH
FEEHRE - RMBERMEREMEE  AAFERERET
4F o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

BREESEE

BRETEE (E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRWETTNAENRRESSE

Impairment of goodwill acquired in business combination

REBE O KB B Bl (e

The Group had goodwill amounted to approximately RMB241
million as at 31 December 2019, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries. Goodwill was allocated to the cash-generating unit
(“CGU”), which was expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination.
T-AE+=A=t—R0 BEEEKBNEATSEEEOA
EMZME%‘TE Fﬁ%‘i@ﬁ EEHAREHHRBETFETRS

ELXBM([ReEEBM]) -

Under IFRSs, the Group is required to perform impairment test for
goodwill annually at each reporting period end. The impairment test
was based on the recoverable amounts of the respective CGU to
which the goodwill was allocated. Management performed the
impairment test based on the value in use calculation using
discounted cash flow projections. Assumptions such as the
discount rate and the long-term growth rate were set up applying
estimates and significant judgements

RIEERT B REER - EEEENGFERS HREEHEETRER
& e 7‘)@2@5&”ﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%fﬁiéiﬁmE(\JEIH&@@%ﬁii&ﬁ ol
BEREAEBEHENZETREAR  FABEDNERERREERR
ERAMETE - REFHRERRPLEEZEREFEA T At REEH
B o

The Group’s disclosures about goodwill are contained in note 2.4
Summary of significant accounting policies — business
combinations and goodwill, note 2.5 Significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions — impairment of goodwill
and note 16 Goodwill to the financial statements.

SEEERENRRENINUBEHRRN T 24ERSHAERME
— XA REE Moo TEgstAE - At RERR — BERE
RHIFE16 &N °

We involved valuation specialists to assist us in the
evaluation of the key assumptions and methodologies used
in the impairment analysis, in particular the discount rate
and long-term growth rate.

BB HEZERS R BB AR ERE ST P AR EZ R
REIDE  LERMBRERREHEEER -

We paid specific attention to the forecasts used with
respect to future revenues and operating results by
comparing the forecasts with the historical performance of
the respective CGU and the business development plan.

AARKWA R EEEPTANTN - WiSZE
BERRREBHRSETHLE -

B RDER
BREERSELEMNS

Furthermore, we assessed the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures concerning goodwill in the consolidated financial
statements.

AN - B PIFHE BERERGAUBRRTEYBENRER

BIRE °
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B B &

FHRAHBNHEER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and

to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai Chee Kong.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower,

1 Tim Mei Avenue,

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2020
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REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of an associate

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Basic, for profit for the year

Diluted, for profit for the year

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—h&E+=-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —2-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARETR ARETIT
'ON 4 950,007 948,938
SHERKA (414,138) (353,909)
EF 535,869 595,029
E g A KMz 4 48,071 47,923
HENRDIHE A (84,812) (106,854)
THREA (97,087) (83,184)
H & A (70,809) (59,936)
B E A 5 (5,309) (1,152)
FE(G —fElE & A | 2 B A & B8 (11,829) (14,049)
BR B A 3 A 6 314,094 377,777
FriSai 10 (58,738) (73,817)
AREEER 255,356 303,960
AT B IE R, -
SRAEHER A 255,430 303,960
IR 2 (74) _
255,356 303,960
BAREEREZEEA
EEEREF
12
HAR  LAFEGEFFE RMBO0.1621 RMBO0.1916
g LAFEaMEAE RMBO0.1621 RMBO0.1916
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEETEWER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—Z—NFE+=-A=+—HIFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:

Exchange differences

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARETTT
REERF 255,356 303,960
RS ESBEEBRRN
Hhemikas :
PE H =58 2,498 8,773
REERBAHMEEWRSALE
2,498 8,773
REERBAETE WS ALEE
257,854 312,733
AT &I ¢
BATES A 257,928 312,733
IR (74) -
257,854 312,733
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Right-of-use assets
Construction in progress
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Investment in an associate
Long-term prepayments
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Cash and bank

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and notes payables

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Income tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

31 December 2019 R=Z—hF+=-A=+—H

FRBEE

ME - BB MERE

T Hb{E AR
EREEE

FEREIRE

[k

Hip B\ EE
R—THBERRZRE
REFEM R

B IREE

FERMENEEHRE

hRBEE

TR

FEWE 5 K RIEFIA

B - E UG K

Hib &&=
UARErE R EZ e AR
2B E

B& MRTTER

RBRE

BN E 5 MEEFIA
Hip SRR TEIRE A
ARRITEE
HERE

eSS AL

mEE

T

PR

= o

FRBEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —FE-N\F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P5E AR®T AR®ET T
13 462,832 486,269
14a - 38,093
14b 106,523 -
15 26,945 10,572
16 241,158 -
17 149,663 63,706
18 77,440 29,599
21 - 21,629
28 6,643 5,823
1,071,204 655,691

19 180,759 148,043
20 370,994 346,802
21 186,139 380,737
22 505,830 189,393
23 471,461 645,363
1,715,183 1,710,338

24 156,764 130,417
25 239,907 169,772
26 216,776 -
14c 66 =
5,809 19,945

619,322 320,134

1,095,861 1,390,204

2,167,065 2,045,895
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

31 December 2019 R=Z—h&F+=-A=+—H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Government grants
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the parent

Issued capital

Treasury shares

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

LI Kei Ling
ZH®R
Director

EF

Notes
B 5
FREBEE
BRI HE R 27
FEEFIAEE 28
= 29
HEAE 14¢
IERB A EEEE
BEE
R
BATEE AEGERS
BB 30
EFRG5 31
ke 33
e
s

HUNG Yung Lai
REmLTE
Director

EF
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2019 2018
—2-nE e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFTE
1,200 1,508
66,474 52,987
70,238 70,238
2,841 =
140,753 124,733
2,026,312 1,921,162
82,867 84,197
(161) =
1,942,930 1,836,965
2,025,636 1,921,162
676 =
2,026,312 1,921,162




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREERKR
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE=—ZT—hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATER A RS
Share Capital Share Statutory  Exchange Total Non-
Issued  Treasury  premium redemption option Contributed  surplus fluctuation ~ Retained  equity of controlling Total
capital shares  account  reserve  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve profits the parent interests equity
&% EERH EX BAF  FER

ERIRA  ERRG BOEE BOGG BRERE MARE  ORe  REBRE REEN  RRRE  BEGE  REEE
Notes ~ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
i AR®TR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTZ ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR AR%TR

(note 30)  (note 31) (note32)  (note33)  (note33) (note33)  (note 33)
(HEE30)  (Mzkst1) (Wsk32)  (W3Ees)  (Mikss)  (WE83)  (Mizkss)

At 1 January 2019 W=E-N§-A-R 84,197 - 26,160 4,193 36,943 100,175 291,045 (2,067) 1,380,516 1,921,162 - 1,921,162
Proftfor the year HEEAT . . . . . . . . 25430 255430 (74 255356
Other comprehensive income TEEEMAENE :

for the year:

Exchange differences EXESR - - - - - - - 2,498 - 2,498 . 2,498
Total comprehensive income TEE2ENELE

for the year - - - - - - - 2498 255430 257,928 (74) 257,854
Investments from a non-controling FERERENBAR ZRE

interest to a subsidiary - - 750 750
Final 2018 dividend declared ER-5-\ERERE - - - - - - - - (81,450 (81450) - (81,450)
Shares repurchased and cancelled BEREEVHEZ RN (1,330) - (26,160) 1,330 - - - - (4078 (50,28) - (60,239)
Shares repurchased and subsequently 2 BRI i i 8 2 kA

cancelled - (161) - 161 . (4,516) (4,516) - (4,516)
Equity-settled share option amangements bR {E 2 (i BBR IR i e 2 - - 4,181 - 4,181 - 4,181
Interim 2019 dividend “I-hERERE 1 - - - . . . - 1) )
Transfer from retained profits EREEFIRER - - - - - - 28450 - (28459 - -
At 31 December 2019 R=2-nEt=A=1-A 88 () SSRM A 10017 B195M4 A3 1476012 202563 676 2026312
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * I EEEA AR 1,042,930,000 L (=T —N\F :

RMB1,942,930,000 (2018: RMB1,836,965,000) in the consolidated AR #1,836,965,0007T ) #E K iR & B IS AR R £ &Y
statement of financial position. EESRE -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—Z—NFE+=-A=+—HIFE

At 1 January 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year:

Exchange differences

Total comprehensive income for the year
Final 2017 dividend declared
Equity-settled share option arrangements
Interim 2018 dlvidend

Special dividend

Transfer from retained profits

At 31 December 2018

*

RZ2-\§-A-H

AERER

AEERMEENE
EXER

TEE2ENESE
ER-F-tFRERE
RIS B R 2k
- N\FHERE
KRS
BREERFER

RZZ-\F+=A=1-H

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAAEEAEGER
Share Capital Share Statutory Exchange
Issued premium  redemption option  Contributed surplus fluctuation Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits equity
EERE
BERA RiyeE ANEOEE ERERRE N NEE EXREEE REEH [ dnvitd
Notes RMB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETRT ARETR  ARBTR
(note 30) (note 32) (note 33) (note 33) (note 33) (note 33)
(Hiz£30) (F3x32) (PH3+33) (Piz+as) (Fi333) (P3x33)
84,197 26,160 4,193 31,631 100,175 255,539 (10,840) 1,315,108 1,806,158
- - - - - - - 303,960 303,960
- - - - - - 8,773 - 8773
- - - - - - 8,773 303,960 312,783
- - - - - - - (76,826) (76,826)
k7 - - - 5312 - - - - 5312
11 - - - - - - - (21,036) (21,036)
11 - - - - - - - (105,179 (105,179
- - - - - 35,506 - (35,506) -
84,197 26,160 4,193 36,943 100,175* 291,045* (067  1380516" 1,921,162

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

RMB1,836,965,000 (2017: RMB1,721,961,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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S EA AR 1,836,965,000 (=B —+4 :
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of profits and losses of
an associate
Interest income

Dividend income from financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss
LLoss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets/
Recognition of prepaid land lease
payments
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Fair value gains, net:
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Equity-settled share option expense
Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv_\é EE: ﬁ;ﬁ % %

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—h&E+=-_A=+—HILFE

RETBNRETRE

P A5 A )
TSI

&R
&AL — [EEE & A R 2 &R
K &5
FEMWA
IAREEAEEEHA
Bz VBEENREKA
HEME - BE R&E
15 H W E518
e
B B
FRESERE TiHEE
TE AR

I 2 72 s
252 1 A
A
éﬁZW%ﬁ%

LA B M 2151 0 8 s e A S
TFEMOR = Al 2375 E

T=—
AR AR B B E BB A

Notes

B =

(©]

2019
—E-hF
RMB’000
AR¥T T

314,094

5,309

11,829
(17,041)

(485)
656

49,620
3,814

1,993

(11,466)

(2,396)

4,181

10,142

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 =&

2018

—N\F
RMB’000

AR

BT T

377,777

(

—NEFH

1,162

14,049
32,445)

(258)
346

50,974
656

1,041

(2,959)

(1,400)

(236)

5,312

4,383
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—Z—NFE+=-A=+—HIFE

Impairment of intangible assets
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Expense-off of intangible assets

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and notes receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and
other assets

Increase in deposits and other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade and notes
payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

Decrease in government grants

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

EEERE
WE - BB MRBRE

BRZEBVEE

e
R 5 T RS R A
BNRRR A E
CE),
Fe T 0 MO
B 5 R R R

a0,/ (R2)
H AR BOR RIERE N
BURBHOR D
B R 5

REEPELNESREFR
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Notes

B =

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
6,438 1,697

102 -

- 4,600

376,790 424,689
(39,069) (31,293)
(23,372) (33,588)
(7,515) 3,065
(6,914) (11,180)
26,211 (12,987)
26,883 6,752
(308) (370)
(76,869) (70,794)
275,837 274,294




CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of long-term
equity investments
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary
Increase in term deposits with maturity over
three months and restricted deposits
Purchase of wealth management products
Redemption of wealth management

products

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment and construction in progress

Purchases of intangible assets

Purchase of right-of-use assets

Purchases of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Investment to an associate

Advances of investment in an associate

Proceeds of relocation compensation

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HLERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—h&E+=-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt EE ARBTR ARBT T
RETHNRESRE
EUF S 23,704 33,747
AR EFEREESHA

Bm B EEMRERA 4 485 258
HEYE - WERREER

Ffi 18 2k 18 1,704 154
WM B A R 34 (305,346) =
HERAR B2 B EZ&HETA

Bz 2 BB EEERIA 72,965 98,136
& REAR IR B P15 I8

1,588 =
& —MRK B AR TS RIE - 2,756
EHNEIE A e = @ A 2 E &

17 5% B PR 1177 5K (92,840) 30,330
BEEMER (595,000) (460,000)
i o] 32 B 2=

471,131 449,000
BEVX BERXHEEAR

fEETRR (33,814) (16,863)
BERTEE (40,559) (31,713)
HEEMRAEEE (23,357) =
BENAAAEEBEEEEHTA

BaMBEE (41,479) (167,150)
H—RBEARNERE (38,041) =
TEITHE & N B E K - (21,629)
BB BB ER 29 - 70,238
KEEEEANESREFE (598,859) (12,736)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—Z—NFE+=-A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Repurchase of shares

Proceeds from bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

Payment for lease liabilities

Investments from a non-controlling
interest to a subsidiary

Dividends paid

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing
activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of year

Notes
B aE
AEETHNRERE
EACINGIl ah)
WMERITERTKERRE 26
BERRITEFAZ RS
ERFLE
MEAENK 38

FFEREEH B AR ZRE

EANLES)

METFHEEL(ER)W

ReREFHE

RERBREEEY
(M), R
FURERREFEY

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ 2 &

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Short-term deposits

FRAGRAEEEYN

RERREESEWERDN

Re RIRTTHERF
R EIRTT 175K
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2019 2018
—E-AEF —ZE—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR AR®ET T
(43,282) =
216,776 102,762

- (102,762)

(5,247) (1,152)

(31) -

750 =
(102,879) (203,041)
66,087 (204,193)
(256,935) 57,365
525,363 460,747
(9,807) 7,251
258,621 525,363
105,619 61,563
153,002 463,800
258,621 525,363




CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman lIslands on 20 September 2002 under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The registered office address of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is located at
Units 3001-02, 30/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) underwent a reorganisation on 21 June 2003 to rationalise
the Group’s structure in preparation for the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), pursuant to which the
Company became the holding company of the Group (the “Group
Reorganisation”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 11 July 2003.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
development, manufacture and sale of non-patented pharmaceutical
medicines including intermediate pharmaceuticals, bulk medicines
and finished drugs. In the opinion of the directors, Fortune United
Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R=Z—hF+=-A=+—H
NARAEEER
Rina (ZER)BRARI(TARFNDR=ZEE
ZFENAZTHRBERESHSARIE(—~—
FE=Z6 LEERETNE_TERHE
HEAMK I RERRERAT « RAFZiF
fi ¥ == BE b 31k & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands * 1 3 2 & 3£ b B 7 ik Al &
8 T ST e 5558 338 §E 4L/ 1 0 3018 3001
02% °

BEEBEAR(CARRRENEB AR (5
[(AEEDWRBASHARRNRNERTE
BaRZMERAR ([P ERLER - B
“EE=FRA+—H  RARERSERAE
SENMBARNZERAR(SEEAE]) -

RARRPR-ZEZ=F+ A+ —BREXR
EfRET -

AEBRFRNEEREIETMNEDRE - RiE
RIHE - BIEPHE  REZERKE FER
7 RIB AR R A S A 2 A9 A B Fortune
United Group Limited * ZZNA R R AR A
= -
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=Z—h&F+=-A=+—H

1.

90

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

NEER

Directly held
EEBFE

Dawnrays International Company
Limited

FHEEARAT

Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital (Asia)
Limited

RInEYREER(EM BERAF

Indirectly held
BEHFE

Dawnrays International Company
Limited

RILBRRNARLDE

Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. #
FMNRImBBERRAA]"

Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd.*

HENRmBEMBZARAR"

Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Limited

Rin#E (BR)BRAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
MR R
REEME

British Virgin Islands

RBEBTES

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

B

Mainland China

B ARE

Mainland China

REIRRE

Hong Kong

BB

Issued share/
paid-up capital
B#1T/
EHERA

US$100

10037

HK$100

B 1007

HK$500,000

715 500,000 7T

US$45,000,000

45,000,000 T

US$6,000,000

6,000,000 37T

HK$500,000

8% 500,000 7T

DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED RIs&i%5 (1282) AR AT

REARAEEER (F)

ML R E

AAFZHBARREDT

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
AR R
RETDL

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

TEXRK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding and
sale of pharmaceutical

products

RERBRMHEREER

Manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical products

BUENHEBEER

Manufacture and sale of

pharmaceutical

intermediates

BUERHEBETRE

Sale of pharmaceutical

products
HEBSER



Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d) 1.
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/

registration

Issued share/

Name and operations paid-up capital
MR BR#1T/
DRER REZEME EHERAE
Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Mainland China US$15,000,000
Science and Technology Co. Ltd. *
Rim (Fl) BEM AR AR LaETN 15,000,000 7T
Top Field Limited* British Virgin Islands US$60,000
REARRES 60,0003 7T
Cinmed (Hong Kong) Investment Hong Kong HK$93,855,001
Limited*
B2 (FE)REBRARF" B9 B%93,855,001 7T
Cinmed Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. #* Mainland China US$12,000,000
BREZARAR SEpN 12,000,000 37T
Cinmed Medical Equipment (Putian) Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Co., Ltd. #
BEam(EHE)ERAR HEIARKE AR 1,000,0007T
Nanjing PharmaRays Science Mainland China RMB20,750,000
and Technology Co., Ltd. #
MAREEREEHRARA R HEIRRE  AKR®20,750,0007T
Guangzhou PharmaRays Science and Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd. *
BMNBERERRAR AR * HEIARKE AR 1,000,0007T
s These subsidiaries were registered under PRC law.
* These subsidiaries were newly acquired in year 2019.
@ These subsidiaries were newly established in year 2019.
" Changed its name to Fujian Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. in

March 2020.

31 December 2019

PSR R

RZZE—NF+=A=+—H

REARAEEER (F)

Fi B A T ER (&)
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
ERAEE
REBRDL

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

65%

Principal activities

Manufacture and sale of

pharmaceutical

intermediates
SUERHEBEDHER

Dormant

TE

Dormant

OCE)

Manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical products
SERIHEREER

Dormant

TE

Research and development
of pharmaceutical
products
MRRFAEELEER

65% Research and development
of pharmaceutical
products
o & s B s
** ZEWE A Bl B AR o
* E?%WJ%’&EE/\\fZ TR -
2 ZEMBARN T —NEFKL °
% RZZB_TF= ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁa%%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁi
") o
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

31 December 2019

2.1

S

R=ZZ—hF+=A=+—8

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) (which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss that have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are

rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of the subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED RIs&i%5 (1282) AR AT

2.1

AR

FAMBHRRCREER ST ERESS ([E
BREHEAEEE |) R HBRM % REER
(MBI B #5 s 22 Al ) (B4R PR A BIFR B 75 3R
FEL - ERSFHEA (THEREER]) k&
B) REBCRRHEDINDIKE ZRK MRS - bR bA
AREEREBBAABRS M BEEIN -
BLHBHRRZELKARUGER - YAAR
BTARKDIIR  BREEHERAIN MESHE
B A AERZLTAL -

BHEE
FAEMBHRREBEARRRENBAREEZE
Z-NF+-A=+—RIFENTBEHRE -
HBARDEARRERIMREHNER(E
E—EsBrER) ESEHIRSEREE
BERNNBRESRSREORIGEBHRE
TSI MEEOE T REHEERR
B ERASNIRER D) FEHER

BEUYAREXARERBRIRETAZBREE
KBUNENE - AEEEZEMARBER
HHMBIRIF AR R D E IR E T A FEH
7 B

(@) HEEMREEFEEZBEHROAMRE

b) REMZONBETRERNED K
© AEENRZRMELERTE-

REL B A R IR M IS M EARFNE
Rl @BERTER - HBARRERR
SERGEHREEREEESHAR  I—8
BHAREEEHIRLIERRIE -



2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont’d)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Cont’d)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R=Z—hF+=-A=+—H

R EZE ()

SOFEE ()
BEakAEt2HRESAKTD FBEAEE
BRBIEEANIEERER - BIERRSEH
IR S IR AL AR - AEBAREIRD
BERAE  BHE - WA FXREREEX
BRARMRZEENRERENEHEERE
BRI -

BEERBERKP LM 2 55 = 87T
ERH—ERZEEZE  AEESHTEHEL
BEHNREHR - RMBRAREAEEREE
HE) T SEHHEREEGIE - BIERE

TSR B X8 — T A AR fil 4 - RIIE
IR (VZMBARNEE (BENE) RE
& ~ (i) (AT FE452 B0 2 A BR T B R (i) AP 25 I
MM RFHITEERE  RER()ABRENA
1A - (i) TR B A E R A B K (i) 18258k
FRAE] A B EE AR B s sk BT 18 o BRI E b &
TET R e PO o ) S 5 [ PR A B 1) LA B TR AR R
EEERHEHEAEEXSENHEREEEK

BB AERIRERT (RAEBEE) -
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BiBERIEENSE
DISCLOSURES
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 9, amendments to IAS 19,

amendments to IAS 28 and Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015

2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s

financial statements, the nature and the impact of the new and

revised IFRSs are described below:

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases
— Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model
to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, except for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor
accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from I1AS
17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either operating or

finance leases using similar principles as in IAS 17.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of 1
January 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at 1 January 2019, and the comparative
information for 2018 was not restated and continued to be

reported under IAS 17 and related interpretations.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)
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(Cont’d)

New definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified
asset. The Group elected to use the transition practical
expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 and
IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that were
not identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not
reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease under IFRS 16
has been applied only to contracts entered into or changed on
or after 1 January 2019.

As a lessee— Leases previously classified as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property
and office equipment. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as operating leases based on the assessment
of whether the lease transferred substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under IFRS 16,
the Group applies a single approach to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for
two elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected
on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12
months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term
commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group recognises
depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets
and interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as
finance costs).
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)

(@ (Cont’d)
As a lessee— Leases previously classified as operating leases
(Cont’d)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based on
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019. The
right-of-use assets for most leases were measured at the
amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the statement of financial position immediately
before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on
IAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the right-of-
use assets separately in the statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with
a lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of

initial application

° Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the

contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)
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(Cont’d)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January
2019 was to increase right-of-use assets of RMB65,416,000,
which was reclassified from property, plant and equipment of
RMB27,3283,000 and land use rights of RMB38,093,000.

Since the operating lease commitments as at 31 December
2018 of RMB42,000 are related to short-term leases with
remaining lease term ended on or before 31 December 2019,
with the property and land use rights were fully prepaid, the
lease liabilities was reported as nil as at 1 January 2019.

IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that
affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or
levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain
tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(i) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. Upon adoption of the interpretation, the Group
considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions arising
from the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on the
Group’s tax compliance and transfer pricing study, the Group
determined that it is probable that its transfer pricing policy will
be accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly, the
interpretation did not have any impact on the financial position

or performance of the Group.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to IFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture*

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material’
and IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
. No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on
the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring the business
and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that
occur on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be

affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address the effects of
interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a
gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in
December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material if
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 BEARSTTHERME

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of associates is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Cont’d)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment

loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=Z—h&F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the group companies. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Cont’d)

The functional currency of the Company, Dawnrays International
Company Limited (“Dawnrays (BVI)”), Dawnrays Biotechnology
Capital (Asia) Limited (“Dawnrays Biotechnology”), Dawnrays
International Company Limited (“Dawnrays International”), Dawnrays
Pharma (Hong Kong) Limited (“Dawnrays Pharma”), Cinmed (Hong
Kong) Investment Limited (“Cinmed Hong Kong”) and Top Field
Limited (“Top Field”) (collectively the “Overseas Companies”) is the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these companies are translated into RMB at the
exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rate for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of the Overseas Companies are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the Overseas Companies which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average

exchange rate for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=—Z—h&F+=-A=+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEAETTHEREBE(E)
(Cont’d)
REVENUE RECOGNITION WAER
Revenue from contracts with customers FEELEHZHA
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control REBREE 2 WARE 5 sk RIS B H o

of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable

consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (Cont’d)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)

(@

Sale of pharmaceutical products

Revenue from the sale of pharmaceutical products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the

pharmaceutical products.

Some contracts for the sale of pharmaceutical products
provide customers with rights of volume rebates. The rights of

volume rebates give rise to variable consideration.

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates
are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To
estimate the variable consideration for the expected future
rebates, the most likely amount method is used for contracts
with a single-volume threshold. The requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied
and a refund liability for the expected future rebates is
recognised.

Rendering of pilot test services
Revenue from the rendering of pilot test services is recognised
over the period of time because the customer simultaneously

receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=Z—h&F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Cont’d) WA TR (48)

Other income HHA

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the & W A THAB #5870 & 4 HA LA BR 5 L (01 fE L ERE
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an R o KRR —EIEE L R 2 A EHHAE R
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in FEZEEN ST HMBERBEA -

which they are incurred.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective FEWARBEBRI R AR FELESE  BR
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the =R AN & gt T B fh 5] FB 4 B sk 3 42
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial (FRBERME) B B 2IR & M= XEREYT
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying SEEZM B EERDFENF X -

amount of the financial asset.

i 7 R R U e e
T
LIE e

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to )
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the A& 2

.

economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group o]

EYEV
nm

and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES EHEE

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a MASEGEAE R RBEZTEPA - K
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the BRI R JHEH%(M?T?%H/E)H#EEM &
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are HEE - aHNBERAEEETENRER
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract HﬂU\(TEﬁE@E%EXﬂE%ZE%H%%%%E}E) °

(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the

customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit

or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
where the Group operates.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=Z—h&F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit or
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China (the “Mainland China Subsidiaries”) are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

TERMINATION BENEFITS

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

ACCOMMODATION BENEFITS

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland China are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, an appropriate capitalisation
rate shall be applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants (the Company’s directors, employees of the Group and
other eligible participants) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby eligible participants render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible participants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton
valuation model, further details of which are given in note 32 to the
financial statements. The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an

award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the participants as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the entity or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share (further
details are given in note 12).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade and notes receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade and notes receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” above.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Initial recognition and measurement (Cont’d)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 SRR E ()

(Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows: (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive

income is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows: (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair

value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or
non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as
a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset

out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in
its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or

other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

General approach (Cont’d)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt investments
are considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit
ratings of the debt investments. In addition, the Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
General approach (Cont’d)

Stage 1 —

Stage2 —

Stage 3 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and notes receivables that do not contain a significant

financing component or when the Group applies the practical

expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing

component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating

ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track

changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based

on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established

a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss

experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.
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PR AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=Z—h&F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and notes payables,
other payables, lease liabilities and loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, except for the gains or losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification to the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=Z—h&F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)
DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,

or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(Cont’d)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3 years
Buildings 20 to 25 years
Machinery and other equipment 5to 10 years
Office equipment 3 to 25 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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31 December 2019 R=Z—h&F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at

each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use
or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL) (Cont’d)
Research and development costs (Cont’d)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products commencing from the
date when the products are put into commercial production. The
estimated residual value is zero.

Category =il

Software C/d s

Deferred development costs

LEASES (APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)
LEASES (APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2019) (Cont’d)
Group as a lessee (Cont’d)

(@)
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Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms
Property 3to 5 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)
LEASES (APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2019) (Cont’d)
Group as a lessee (Cont’d)

)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or
a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

LEASES (APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2019) (Cont’d)

Group as a lessee (Cont’d)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted for
as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

LEASES (APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets to the Group, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased
asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease
payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide

a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net
of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases represented by
land use rights are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial
assets, deferred tax assets and non-current assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

TREASURY SHARES

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly in
equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s
own equity instruments.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and

condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on a weighted-average basis

Finished goods and Cost of direct materials and labour and a
work in progress proportion of manufacturing overheads

based on the normal operating capacity

but excluding borrowing costs

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted or pledged as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 ERETTHREE (&)

(Cont’d)

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher
of (i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the
general policy for provisions above; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the amount of income
recognised in accordance with the policy for revenue recognition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)
RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iiy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(viy  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)()) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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R=ZZ—hF+=A=+—8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 2.4 to the financial statements. Initial
capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgements that
technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a
product development project has reached a defined milestone
according to an established project management model.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Cont’d)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Variable consideration for volume rebates

The Group estimates variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sale of pharmaceutical products with volume
rebates.

The Group’s expected volume rebates are analysed on a per
customer basis for contracts that are subject to a single volume
threshold. Determining whether a customer will likely be entitled to a
rebate depends on the customer’s historical rebate entitlement and

accumulated purchases to date.

The Group updates its assessment of expected volume rebates
monthly and the refund liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates
of volume rebates are sensitive to changes in circumstances and the
Group’s past experience regarding rebate entitlements may not be
representative of a customers’ actual rebate entitlements in the
future. As at 31 December 2019, the amount recognised as refund
liabilities was RMB10,061,000 (2018: RMB9,258,000) for volume
rebates.
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Cont’d)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade and
notes receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type and ageing).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the finished drugs sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant
estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade and
notes receivables is disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to
measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions). The
Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as loan
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).

142 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED HEe#I% (28%) AR A 7

25 FEEEHE - A RERR(E)

fhat A REE 4 ()

EWE 558 2 RS BB R
AEEFRBEEEAEREE S MEEFHR
ZHEREEERRE BEXDNERARES
BUBBREANSEZTE 2 &ETH A (AR
BEP RN RS s e A 8GHE -

BERENSENAREBEEEMBENE
MEFE - NEBSFHBIER - FERAELE
HALEEEEBRER - 20N - HEA
KBRS (A A ERE) BN ARR—F
B ERREDILENFHEN - ASAE
BERHE - NBZHRERD  BEAERFSFE
RN TR - W AT AR BEITHAT ©

HBABRMGEOE  BRAKERERAH
CEERBZRANBELETNFEBERM
it BHIEE BB SR BR B R E
REEEHER - AEEBEEEBELCHREE
AEERRNABERRES ARNERED
B ERAEEEKE S EEBRRIR A
FEEBBRNENERMBRRME20HE -

HE — (haHEEEAFIE
EAKERERFIETHENASHE - HE
FRIBEERMEFEHEARE - LEERFIE
RAKERBULERET RS EERESR
EEERIT2EE M ARCIEA m R AL
BEAMBECEMNZFE - Wit - BER
A ERRRT AEE R OFX - 5&
AR B A KB (AN pL I B RT SZ ph B 2 B HO It
BorAmE)  RIAERFEMGR - BABRER
BAZREA AN AKEEANBEREARE
(EFRA ) (E BB ERM KL AIELET
BB E B il 5t (0fY B 2 =] O (8 Bl 8y 15 & =F
Yo

=

I



2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Cont’d)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste or
competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates at
each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2019 was RMB241,158,000 (2018: Nil). Further details
are given in note 16.
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3.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and has two reportable segments as

follows:

(@)  Manufacture and sale of intermediates and bulk medicines (the

“intermediates and bulk medicines” segment)

(b)  Manufacture and sale of finished drugs (including antibiotics
finished drugs and non-antibiotics finished drugs) (the “finished

drugs” segment)

Management monitors the operating results of these operating
segments for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income, non-lease-related finance costs, government grants,
dividend income, fair value gains/losses from the Group’s financial
instruments as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and bank,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are

managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and

corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then

prevailing market prices.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Year ended
31 December 2019

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Unallocated gains

Corporate and other unallocated
expenses

Finance costs (other than interest
on lease liabilities)

Profit before tax
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Intermediates Elimination of

and bulk Finished intersegment
medicines drugs sales Total

TREBR H
R 5 0% DEBHE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETF T ARBET T AR®F T ARBETF T

236,246 713,761 - 950,007
38,637 - (38,637) -
274,883 713,761 (38,637) 950,007
(1,267) 418,035 - 416,768
45,950

(143,377)

(5,247)

314,094
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Year ended
31 December 2018

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Unallocated gains

Corporate and other unallocated
expenses

Finance costs

Profit before tax
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Intermediates Elimination of

and bulk Finished intersegment
medicines drugs sales Total

R 48 & H
[ 4 Pk % DEEHE HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®TT ARBFT AREFTT
210,519 738,419 - 948,938
37,679 - (37,679) -
248,198 738,419 (37,679) 948,938
2,912 489,683 - 492,595
45,118
(158,784)
(1,152)
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3.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2019

Segment assets:

Reconciliation:

Corporate and other unallocated
assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities:

Reconciliation:

Corporate and other unallocated
liabilities

Total liabilities
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Intermediates
and bulk
medicines
PREER
RMB’000
ARBT R

448,157

122,703

Finished
drugs

B 5
RMB’000
ARMBT T

754,425

136,713

Total

ny
RMB’000

ARBT

1,202,582

1,583,805

2,786,387

259,416

500,659

760,075
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\E+=-_A=+—H

Segment assets: PEEE:
Reconciliation: HEE -
Corporate and other unallocated rEREMRSREE
assets
Total assets BmEE
Segment liabilities: SEEE
Reconciliation: FEE
Corporate and other unallocated TEREMRSEAE
liabilities
Total liabilities waff

148 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED HEe#I% (428%) AR A 7

3. ZoEEH
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Total
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3.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

(@  Revenue from external customers

Mainland China NN
Other countries HA xR
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2019 2018
—®-nF —E-0\%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETT
859,305 823,598
90,702 125,340
950,007 948,938

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.

(b)  Non-current assets
The Group’s operations are substantially based in Mainland
China and 95% of the non-current assets, excluding deferred
tax assets and investment in an associate, of the Group are
located in Mainland China. Therefore, no further analysis of

geographical information is presented.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
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Revenue from contracts with customers
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950,007 948,938
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4. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont’d)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

(i)
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Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Segments

Type of goods or services
Sale of goods
Rendering of pilot test services

Total revenue from contracts

with customers

Geographical markets
Mainland China
Other countries

Total revenue from contracts

with customers

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time

Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts

with customers
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Intermediates

and bulk Finished

medicines drugs Total
PREER

R 2% my
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T T AR®TT
232,071 713,761 945,832
4,175 - 4,175
236,246 713,761 950,007
151,693 707,612 859,305
84,553 6,149 90,702
236,246 713,761 950,007
232,071 713,761 945,832
4,175 - 4,175
236,246 713,761 950,007




4. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont’d)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Cont’d)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (Cont’d)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Segments

Type of goods or services
Sale of goods
Rendering of pilot test services

Total revenue from contracts

with customers

Geographical markets
Mainland China
Other countries

Total revenue from contracts

with customers

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time

Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts

with customers

9
S

& R S AR A R A
7 an 5 &
1 (A B R S AR

KEEFEKZBEA

BT

LB PN

HE xR

KEEFEHZBKA

LN

R—EREHEES
R — BRI R ER AR TS

KEEFAHZHBEA

Notes to Financial Statements

Fof %5 S 2 B =
31 December 2019 R=T—hF+=-A=+—H
4. WA - B A R W (4)
REAFEFEHNZWA (&)
()  DTFUAEZH(E)
HE-_T—/\E+-_A=+—HILEE

Intermediates

and bulk Finished

medicines drugs Total
R A

N JRF X % B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTFT ARETT
208,426 738,419 946,845
2,093 - 2,093
210,519 738,419 948,938
127,551 696,047 823,598
82,968 42,372 125,340
210,519 738,419 948,938
208,426 738,419 946,845
2,093 - 2,093
210,519 738,419 948,938
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont’d)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Cont’d)

4.

152 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED HEe#I% (28%) A MRA 7

(i)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of pharmaceutical products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
pharmaceutical products and payment is generally due within
90 days from delivery, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. Some contracts
provide customers with volume rebates which give rise to

variable consideration subject to constraint.

Rendering of pilot test services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and short-term advances are normally required
before rendering the services. Pilot test service contracts are
for periods of one year or less, or are billed based on the time

incurred.

The amounts of transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as
at 31 December are as follows:

Amounts expected to be recognised as
revenue:
Within one year —F AR
All the amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations are expected to be recognised within
one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include variable
consideration which is constrained.

4,

WA~ HWA R Wz ()
REFEFEHZBA ()

(i)

RIS RERRBRANDER

BRAEEROETHNERBURLIT

BEEMKE
BABEERINEEEMETHK - 5K
BEERERORANIEY  HEFK
S B BREZERNRIA - O A
M TEPHENN  EMELETRR
HIEY AT RAE o

re gt B R AR HS

TRBEHORERE —REBREERS
¥ AAERKRBZAIBETZEHREN
o ABARARBEOR —FHARE
Hif - SRIRE MR R E -

R+ZA=+—8 SEHARTKED
BECREXKE D RTK) X HER
SR

2019 2018
—®-hE T N\f
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTFIT
15,463 18,897

FAREHEOEENR HBESTES
E—FNEIER - FARBNSET
IESRAN TR -
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PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R=Z—hF+=-A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont’d) 4. WA -~ EbIg AR iR ()
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Other income Hipg A
Bank interest income IR1THI B UA 17,041 32,445
Dividend income from financial assets AR ERE BEEEHA
at fair value through profit or loss B2 B EENREWA 485 258
Rental income HEUWA 258 1,431
Government grants BRI B 3R 11,589 6,642
Foreign exchange gains FE X Uz 2,298 -
Others HAith 1,586 1,107
33,257 41,883
Gains Wz
Gain on sales of scrapped materials HE R m A s 952 1,445
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEUARBEFEBHEE A
at fair value through profit or loss B 2 P E ER WS 11,466 1,400
Fair value gains, net: NaEWE R
Financial assets at fair value through AAREEBHEZSHAA
profit or loss B 7WisEE 2,396 236
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHWBRAR zWa=E - 2,959
14,814 6,040
48,071 47,923
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5. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
within five years

Interest on lease liabilities

Interest on discounted notes receivable

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold*

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(2018: Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments)**

Research and development costs:

Amortisation of intangible assets
Current year expenditure

5. B%EBHR

ANRFATREENRITER
ZFE

HEREZFE

FE WS ARAGIR 2 FI8

2019 2018
—2-NF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
4,455 801

62 -

792 351

5,309 1,152

6. BRERIRA
REBABRBATEFITVEIER,(GEA) TS

THIREERE -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P5E ARETT AREFIT
EERFERA" 413,382 350,727
M - BE RERETE 13
49,620 50,974
FREEERTE 14
ZE—)\F : AL
e i)~ 1,993 1,041
W7 KBRS
A EE 17 1,762 418
REEZH 47,889 45,934
49,651 46,352
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont’d)

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Auditors’ remuneration:
Statutory audit service
Non-statutory audit service
Non-audit service

Employee benefit expense (including

directors’ and chief executive officer’s

remuneration (note 7)):

Wages and salaries

Equity-settled share option expense
Retirement benefits
Accommodation benefits

Other benefits

Foreign exchange differences, net

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

Fair value gains, net:
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Bank interest income

LLoss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Expense-off of intangible assets

Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019

6. FRBIADER (&)

Notes

Y &

REMN T2 REES

TEEREEREFEZES

AN
RTE R BURTS
FEETE HAZ RS
B IRTE

BERIHAXZ (BREFR
mEM e (7))

TERF=

DA P S ) B B M el S
RIREF

EEEH

HApbra 7|

MENER  FE
BIVEEZRE 17
W% -~ BB MR E 13

FEMRE25RFE

AN EWE - F5
AREFTE BEEEEHA 4
BmMBEE
HRITAEWA 4
HEME  HEREHES
15 B W E1E
HENAREFEBEEES) 4
T AR 2 B EEN WS
& —MEH B ARz W
ERzEREE 17

RZZE—NF+=A=+—H

2019 2018
ZE-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT
- 236

724 -
1,980 1,510
690 780

- 250

2,670 2,540
100,043 95,427
4,181 5,312
8,087 7,821
4,346 3,866
23,001 14,478
139,658 126,904
(2,298) 182
6,438 1,697
102 -
10,142 4,383
(2,396) (236)
(17,041) (32,445)
656 346
(11,466) (1,400)

- (2,959)

- 4,600
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31 Decem

ber2019 W=Z—hF+=A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont’d)
The depreciation of RMB37,816,000 for the year (2018:
RMB40,390,000) is included in “Cost of inventories sold”.

*

ke

7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S

The depreciation of right-of-use assets for the year is included in
“Administrative expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in “Other
expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and

(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Bonus

Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions

H A Fr B -
e RRELEYREN
LA P 4 211 o R s M e S
BREFTEI R
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BRELADER ()

ANEEZHELFT ARKS7,816,0007T (=
— )\ : AR#¥40,390,0007T) Bt ATEE

TFERA]

* ERNEREAENEMALREBRERM (1T

HER] -

o ERAMBTEEREA

EBA-

EERARME

Bk [ HA

RiE AR B & & B A B &5 55 383(1)(a)
O RN RATHENE —H(EEFEE
BHER)FEEFANESERAEMESOT

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
1,300 1,220
3,140 3,092
1,876 2,462
2,395 1,486

66 67

7,477 7,107
8,777 8,327




Notes to Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 7.
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

(A)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

the year were as follows:

Mr. Choi Tat Ying, Jacky BEREAE(RZT—N\F
(retired on 24 May 2018) TR+ BRE)

Mr. Lo Tung Sing, Tony BREETE

Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi EDE, Ronald Hao Xi %t 4

Ms. Lam Ming Yee, Joan ML T (R —N\F
(appointed on 25 May 2018) AA-t+HAEEM)

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2018: Nil).

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R=Z—hF+=-A=+—H

EERAHME (F)

(A) BAFHTES
RERBUIFNTESNRSND

2019 2018
—®-nF —E-0\%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETT
- 175

317 273

317 273

317 183

951 904

REFLEENBIIFRITESNEM
e (—F—NF:8)-
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

7.

(B)

2019

Executive directors:
Ms. Li Kei Ling
Mr. Hung Yung Lai
Mr. Chen Shaojun
(the chief executive officer)

Non-executive director;
Mr. Leung Hong Man

2018

Executive directors:

Ms. LiKei Ling

Mr. Hung Yung Lai

Mr. Li Tung Ming (resigned on
23 February 2018)

Mr. Chen Shaojun (appointed
on 8 January 2018, also the
chief executive officer)

Non-executive director:
Mr. Leung Hong Man

“2-nF

HITES:
FERLL
ERETE
RAERL
(%)

FHTES:
RERRE

—g-NE

H7EE:

FHELT

ERERE
TRARE(R-F-N\&F
“R-t=REML)
REELE(RE-N\F
~ANBEZRA

YR ALE)

FHITES:
RERTE

7. EERBRME (E)
(B) HITESE -  FHITESRAR
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonus expense  contributions  remuneration
& - 20 DA &g
s REWEN #e MNBERERX st EIER ikt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR ARETT ARETT AR%TR  ARET:
42 962 - - 2 1,024
42 592 - - 20 654
- 1,586 1,876 2,395 2 5,883
84 3,140 1,876 2,395 66 7,561
265 - - - - 265
349 3,140 1,876 2,395 66 7,826
4 922 - - 19 982
41 567 = = 19 627
6 84 - - 3 8]
- 1,519 2,462 1,486 26 5,493
88 3,092 2,462 1,486 67 7,195
228 - - - - 228
316 3,092 2,462 1,486 67 7428
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

(B)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (Cont’d)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the period, one director was granted share options, in
respect of the service to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief

executive’'s remuneration disclosures.

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included the chief

executive officer and a director, details of whose remuneration are

set out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining

three (2018: three) non-director and non-chief executive officer

highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions

RS BIHER

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2019

PR AR BT AL

RZZE—NF+=A=+—H

7. EFERAEME (E)

(B)

BITES  FUTESREAR(E)

FAREEENREXRAERZEAME
Bk o

FA —REEARBAEERE MR
BARRBEREA SRR THRE  F
BEN M IRRMTFES2 - ZHLER B H
MNEERERZBREAABERET
FEERBEEAFENBHRR G
EELREERERMEBEE -

8. HuUBRSHES
FARURHEEBEAIL —UES &
FEZMEFHITEN EXHMFET - BRI =((=F
—N\F: D) FEERFRERSFHEER

e R NEYERN
LA P A 60 8 B M el S

FARFMIT :
2019 2018
—B-NF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
3,095 2,856
636 213
36 30
3,767 3,099
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8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont’d) hfuBEHES (B)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive officer, highest &2 T AN EE RIFEHZER

paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is FEMES AR

as follows:
Number of employees
BEAH

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T &% 1,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75#1,000,001 7L E 7% # 1,500,000 7T 3 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7B ¥ 1,500,001 7T 2 75 ¥ 2,000,000 7T - -
3 3

During the year, share options were granted to two non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

160 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED HEe#I% (28%) AR A 7

FA MEFEFRFEHESFMERRER
FRANKBIRG MR TRERE - FEHNM
BHMAME KBRS - ZMERBRENEDS
RERAZBREAAENETREEREEE
REFMHEHRR 2RO E LMIFERIFER
REFHESNFMEREZA



9.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND ACCOMMODATION
BENEFITS

In compliance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), the Company, Dawnrays
International Company Limited, Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong)
Limited, Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Limited and Cinmed
(Hong Kong) Investment Limited have participated in the MPF
Scheme, a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee, to provide retirement benefits to their respective Hong Kong
employees. Contributions to the MPF Scheme are made in
accordance with the statutory limits prescribed by the MPF
Ordinance.

As stipulated by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) state
regulations, the Mainland China Subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement scheme. All employees are entitled to an
annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the average basic
salary amount of the geographical area of their last employment at
their retirement dates. The Mainland China Subsidiaries are required
to make contributions to the local social security bureau at 16% to
22% (2018: 20% to 22%) of the previous year’s average basic salary
amount of the geographical area where the employees are employed
by the Mainland China Subsidiaries.

The Group has no further obligation for the payment of pension
benefits beyond the annual contributions as set out above.

According to relevant rules and regulations of the PRC, the Mainland
China Subsidiaries and their employees are each required to make
contributions to an accommodation fund at 8% to 10% (2018: 8% to
10%) of the salaries and wages of the employees which is
administered by the Public Accumulation Funds Administration
Centre. There is no further obligation on the part of the Group except
for such contributions to the accommodation fund.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no significant obligations
apart from the contributions as stated above.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R=ZF—h&E+=—A=+—H

RABENREEER

EIRCGEHIMERBE A BED) ([RE2 R
RE  ARA - RinBERROHARAGE R
WRE(BR)ARAR  RInEVMREZER(E
MBRARREZ (FE)REBRATC N
A—EBBRESHE (ABILETAEREZER
HHKETE) - RBEBEEBEHEAKER - (58
B2 BIE L MR TIIR IR 18 2 (R B AT AT 7
WARERBERE °

BREREREREE  PEAERNEARAES
HEZRRTE - TAEENREBKAHAE
FEMEREIEMNFHEATSHETL
BIstERFERAS - AR BARZAR
B g RERER  HERIREEZERP
ABEHBARIMEEFHFHEATEH16%
B22% (ZZE—N\F : 20% E22%):tE -

B B FEHRN  ARELEREE
AR RABF o

REFENBERALER - PEKEHRBR
AkFEERERBRREENFHFENTENSS
ZF10%(ZF—N\F : 8% E10%) A—EHAR
BEEBERLERNERESHR - BZIAR
BREEESNOHEFSN  REBYEELMBERE -

R-B-AF+-_HA=1+—H ' KLaHx
Sh > REEWBEMBAREME -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —Z—h =43 161



Notes to Financial Statements

B R AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=F—hFE+=F=+—H

10.

162 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED HEe#I% (28%) AMRA 7

INCOME TAX
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 are:

Current income tax = HpT 1S

Current income tax charge EHMEHT T
Deferred income tax (note 28) EAEFLIE (1 7£28)
Total tax charge for the year REEMBR BB

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an undertaking from
the Governor-in-Council that no law which is enacted in the Cayman
Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits, income, gain or
appreciation shall apply to the Company or its operations. The
undertaking for the Company is for a period of 20 years from 8
October 2002. Accordingly, the Company is not subject to tax.

The subsidiaries incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”)
are not subject to income tax, as these subsidiaries do not have a
place of business (other than a registered office only) or carry out any
business in the BVI.

The Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to tax at a statutory
corporate income tax rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) under the income
tax rules and regulations of Hong Kong. No provision for Hong Kong
profits tax has been made as the Group had no assessable profits
arising in its respective Hong Kong subsidiaries during the year
(2018: Nil).

10. Fri8%%

BE_T—NEFr_ZT—N\F+_A=+—H
IEFEMBSHIENEZEXILHOT

2019 2018
S8 i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARMT
62,322 75,091
(3,584) (1,274)
58,738 73,817

BIEHRSHEMBEHRRE(—NNNFIERTAR)
FoE ARABEESLESRITHRBRE
MRS EEAEHARRHEEEHNMEE
B WA~ RSB E R o WA A A RIE G
BE_FEZE_F+ANBREREX=-TF - H
bt - AR RIBENT o

TP 52 8 4 B AR B S R B SZ RO P B 1 Rl SR ZE
ST RZNBARRRBHER RS
AR (MM EERIN) R EERZE
75 o

REFENMEHARNERG - FENBAR
BREFLEMERE166%(=ZF—/\F:
16.6%) @M - AR AKRBRAFEERTENE
MBARYEELRRAVGH - KU B EE
MSHIELEE (T —\F : &)



10.

INCOME TAX (Cont’d)
According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law effective from 1
January 2008, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are all subject to

income tax at the rate of 25% on their respective taxable income.

On 21 October 2008, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceuticals”) was qualified as a High-New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) of Jiangsu Province. As a result,
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceuticals had been entitled to a
concessionary rate of income tax at 15% for three years
commencing on 1 January 2008 and would apply for renewal of the
qualification every three years.

On 2 December 2019, Cinmed Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Cinmed
Pharmaceutical’) was qualified as a HNTE of Fujian Province. As a
result, Cinmed Pharmaceutical had been entitled to a concessionary
rate of income tax at 15% for three years commencing on 1 January
2019 and would apply for renewal of the qualification every three
years.

All other subsidiaries in Mainland China were subject to corporate
income tax at a rate of 25% in 2019.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the

jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate

is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Notes to Financial Statements

10.

Fof %5 S 2 B =
31 December 2019 R =Z—NE+_A=+—H
Frig#i (i8)
ﬁEB%EAfyj)\E A—BRERNHREEE
SBUE - PRIKFENE R REKRES BER
MWAW%%% EUES G

RZZEZNF+AZ+—B  HFMNEIRRES

PRA B ([FRM R IR B 42 | ) EHUL#RE =8 B i
¥ (R EMEs]) &% - Bt - #NR
BEAEE ST \F—A—HABN="FRNZ
R15%MBBFSH RN T =FRFEREH -

REZB-NFT-_A-R BZEZXFEANF

(B %X |) BEUEEE S HRMEEER -
At B BXARE _FT-NF—A—RHiE
M=FRAEX15%HNEBEMEHERLG=FH
BERE -

REIRERPTA EMmHE R RN =
12 25% HEBMEFAEH

—hFA

IRAR R B EEFTAS R P AR B K B A S A9 S
BRECERINEREESTRARKRE - AR
10% KB R BUTEINH - ZMEE =TT N\F
—A—HBREY WEARZZZLF+=A
=T —HERNAET - MPBEAREEINIEREE
FTfERlE R BRI HEHE - AR RARIK
ETE R o NREE BB AT E 5% © FEt
B2 N\F—F—Hif AEEAREFEH
AR RE ST Y BB 2 B BT 2 AR WO BRI T o P 0 AR
BRITBRENTHERT -
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31 December 2019 R=F—hFE+=F=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 10.
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate for the country or jurisdiction in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense
at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate to
the effective tax rate, are as follows:
Accounting profit before income tax FrS iRl & 55 7
At the PRC'’s statutory income tax rate T BEE S B R 25%
of 25% (2018: 25%) (ZZ—N\F : 25%)

Tax effect of profits entitled to tax concession 7] = Fi{ TEAE 2 )i Hl sk & Hh i B3

or lower tax rate enacted by local authority BITRIER R 2 TR IG5 2
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable 7<% & /R B [ B A 7] 2 7] 2 Bt 71

profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries ZIEMBRE

Frig®t (&)

378 FR DA BR 250 B AR U3 DA AR 2 B I E A 8B 47 BT /a8
DEEMEREEAEREERRFEZHIA
XHENERBERGFEZRAS LR - AR
ERTERERRE 2 HRMT

Adjustments in respect of current income tax A BT FE & BTS2 AR

of previous years

Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2 FsZ

Tax credit for qualified research and & INET R R RO AR BE RS
development costs LTS

Tax losses not recognised RERTIAEE

Tax losses utilised from previous periods I LA BT F E Rl K30 FL T8 fB5 18

At the effective income tax rate of 18.70% BERSHHIE18.70%
(2018: 19.54%) (ZZ—)\F :19.54%)
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2019 2018
—E-AF —ZT—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T
314,094 377,777
78,524 94,444
(30,371) (38,229)
12,753 15,929
2,823 106

633 3,951
(5,009) (4,549)
3,499 2,813
(4,114) (648)
58,738 73,817




11.

12.

DIVIDENDS

Interim — HK$0.015 (2018: HK$0.015)
per ordinary share

REARE

Special — HK$0.075 per ordinary share
Proposed final — HK$0.043
(2018: HK$0.06) per ordinary share
7% 0.06 7T)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the
weighted average number of 1,575,362,000 shares (2018:
1,5686,382,000 shares) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the period is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earmnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

12.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R=ZF—h&E+=—A=+—H

FiRE @RS 0.015 7T
—Z—)\F : B¥%0.0157T)
BRI S« TR EBAREY 0.075 7T -
FORAREAR S AR ER

BHE0.043 T (ZE—N\F -

2019 2018
—®-nF —E-0\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
21,431 21,036
105,179

61,358 81,450
82,789 207,665

REFRIRENRAREFBHEARR AR K
RBFREEA -

RAEERESFEARLERER

i)

FREABFZIZG AR L BEREDSEE AR
HARF & A &FERNE E171,575,362,000 A%
ZINEFH e (=T — \F : 1,586,382,000

R)EHE -

REtEXR B E SRR AN ERE AR
BREEER A AREAFEERN - BIEtE
BRI Z T RBREFAND ET
ERERE - RBEAESREARRT - 10
ErRTRERETT s E R B E R R B R MR
R EEERTHE BRI FIRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=F—hFE+=F=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 12. BRAREBEREZFEARLGERER

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (Cont’d) (&)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based THAEAEFTESRERBN REEEEREA
on: M EEUE -
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —FE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBT T
Earnings X
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders &I A Bl & @Rz E A
of the parent FEMEE A 255,430 303,960
Number of shares
ROEE
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
Thousands Thousands
Foz Tz
Shares Bz 2
Weighted average number of ordinary STESRERBF TR FAN
shares in issue during the year used BT E AR E T
in the basic earnings per share calculation 1,575,362 1,586,382
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEETE — g EmR
number of ordinary shares: AR
Share options AR - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares g E s £ /EH ARE 2
adjusted for the effect of dilution bu%ﬂ?iﬁ T ImAR AR EX 1,575,362 1,586,382
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R—Z—H&E+—HA=+—8H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % BMEKKE
Machinery
Leasehold Leasehold and other Office Motor
land improvements Buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
HEAE HKER
MELH BRIE BF Hihzk N RE #5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost: ;7%
As at 1 January 2018 R=E-\5-A-H 26,127 - 268,866 636,381 1,571 18,133 961,078
Additions RE - - - 1,456 429 406 2,291
Transferred from construction in EETRER (M:E15)
progress (note 15) - - 5,289 6,958 17 593 13,011
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHBAR = = = = (82) (234) (316)
Disposals & - - () (1558) (130) (712) 2,405)
Exchange realignment [ 3 A% 1,399 - 224 - il 27 1,721
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=1- 27,526 - 274,374 643,237 12,030 18,213 975,380
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 wm&%@zﬁ%%&w%m
7a (27,526) - - - - - (27,526)
As at 1 January 2019 (restated) R=Z-hE-F-A(E}) - - 274,374 643,237 12,030 18,213 947,854
Additions RE - 108 - 1,744 2,462 - 4,314
Transferred from construction in TR TRER(Mz15)
progress (note 15) - - 6,062 17,790 320 - 24172
Acquisttion of subsidiaries WEREAR - 2,894 29,559 31,693 1,116 3,257 68,519
Disposals e - (2,894) (525) (5,662) (880) (1,549) (11,510)
Exchange realignment [ 3 A% - - 92 - 29 12 133
As at 31 December 2019 R=Z-n%+=-A=t+-A - 108 309,562 688,802 15,077 19,933 1,033,482
Accumulated depreciation BiTEREE
and impairment:
As at 1 January 2018 R=Z-\F—f—-H 161 - 100,556 319,364 8,528 11,609 440,218
Depreciation provided for the year FNRERRE 33 - 12,443 35,630 929 1,939 50,974
Disposal of a subsidlary LE-RHEAR = = = = (73) (210) (283)
Disposals e - - @ (1,145) (117) (641) (1,905)
Exchange realignment [ 3 A% 9 - 55 - 36 7 107
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=1- 203 - 113,052 353,849 9,303 12,704 489,111
Effect of adoption of IFRS16 RABIRE R £ 16%
a7 (203) - - - - - (203)
As at 1 January 2019 (restated) R=B-h%E-F-H(E3) - - 113,052 353,849 9,303 12,704 488,908
Depreciation provided for the year ERTERE - 433 13,228 32,187 1,599 2,173 49,620
Acquisition of subsidaries (note 34)  YiBEMIB 1 A (fitaE 34) - 2,461 11,225 23,965 840 2,622 41,113
Disposals it - (2,894) (206) (4,168) (730) (1,152 (9,150)
Impairment for the year FNRE - - - 102 - - 102
Exchange realignment fE 5 A% - - 35 - 16 6 57
As at 31 December 2019 W=Z-nE+=-A=+-R - - 137,334 405,935 11,028 16,353 570,650
Net book value: REFE
As at 31 December 2019 R=B-hE+=A=1-H - 108 172,228 282,867 4,049 3,580 462,832
As at 1 January 2019 (restated) R=B-7F-H—H (&5 - - 161,322 289,388 2,721 5,509 458,946
As at 31 December 2018 R=Z2-NE+=A=+-A 27,323 - 161,322 289,388 2,721 5,500 486,269
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=F—hFE+=F=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
As at 31 December 2019, buildings with net book value of
RMB7,272,000 were attached according to the order of the court
(note 41).

14. LEASES

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property and
office equipment used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease
periods of 40 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of office buildings
generally have lease terms between 3 and 5 years. Office equipment
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually
of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@  Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January 2019)

Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R=—ZE—N\&FE—HA—H~

13.

14.

M - BERRE(E)
RZEBE-—AFT+ZA=+—8H BREBEERE®
< BREFER AR 7,272,000 Ty (B
A WEH -

HE

REBEREBEA
AEEERERLETEANSENERRAE
RENEESH - CRAEL —RIERFKAR
BEREEWEHERRIOEE0FNEE i
YARBELT HHENGRTEHEREN
Ko MARBHEENBERIESF - PAE
RENESHBET R 12EAER RS ER
BEEE - —RMmE - NEE A AR E L
SIMNTERRDHEREERE -

(@) ENLHEES(ZFE—NF—H—HA)

Land use Leasehold
rights land Total
3t fsE A ME LT k)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETIT ARBTTT ARETT

BRI (B 39,134 25,966 65,100
Recognised in profit or loss FRRE=EFER
during the year (1,041) (83) (1,074)
Exchange realignment PE 55, R %X - 1,390 1,390
Carrying amount at RZZE—NF
31 December 2018 +=—A=+—H2
AR (A 38,093 27,323 65,416
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14.

LEASES (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)

(b)  Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

As at 1 January 2019 R-_ZE-NE—HA—H

Additions NE

Additions as a result of acquisition WEEMT B ARIMAR
of a subsidiary

Depreciation charge EMR

Exchange realignment bE X TR

As at 31 December 2019 RZE—NEF
+—A=+—8

Notes to Financial Statements

Fof %5 S 2 B =
31 December 2019 R =Z—NE+_A=+—H
14. #HE (&)
AEBEREBEA (B)
(b) EAEEZE
FAREE 2 BEEERRDERZS

R
Prepaid
land lease Office
payments buildings Total
T HERMAR nog k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR

65,416 - 65,416
23,139 3,094 26,233
16,304 - 16,304
(1,613) (380) (1,993)
563 - 563
103,809 2,714 106,523
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B FE SR 3R BT & E
31 December 2019 R=Z—hE+=-F=+—H

14. LEASES (Cont'd)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)

(c) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

14. ¥ME (&)
AEMERERA ()
© MEARE
ERAEEYEEREREEREDD
T

2019 2018

—E-AF —Z—)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—HBZEmEE - -

New leases g 2,876 =
Accretion of interest recognised FRERTH MR

during the year 62 -

Payments B (31) -

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEEE 2,907 -

Analysed into: DA
Current portion mehEl o 66 -
Non-current portion FETRENEL D 2,841 -

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 39

to the financial statements.

(d)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (@)

are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Expense relating to leases of short-term leases

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

HEABEMNIIHBE SR M BHRERME
394K 5% -

Bz AR R ERRR RZI T

2019

—E-NEF

RMB’000

ARETR

HEaEME 62
FREEENERS 1,993
EIGHIFA E SRR X 724
B RER AR 2,779
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15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

16.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R=ZF—h&E+=—A=+—H

15. EETRE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETIT
As at 1 January m—A—H 10,572 9,991
Additions NE 40,545 13,592
Transferred to property, plant and AW - BE &&E(MFE13)
equipment (note 13) (24,172) (13,011)
As at 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8 26,945 10,572
GOODWILL 16. HE
RMB’000
ARETT
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated impairment R _Z—F—HA—HZHKAK -
MR EFHRERFE -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) Wk — M E A A (Fi5E34) 241,158
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2019 RZE—-NF+ZA=+—RH2Z
B R BR R B 241,158
At 31 December 2019: R-ZE—AE+=-_A=+—8:
Cost B R 241,158
Accumulated impairment 25HRE -
Net carrying amount BREFE 241,158
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B R AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=F—hFE+=F=+—H

16. GOODWILL (Cont’d) 16. BE (&)

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
related finished drugs business cash-generating unit for impairment

testing.

The recoverable amount of the finished drugs business cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 18% and the
cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using a
growth rate of 3%, which was the same as the long term average
growth rate of the pharmaceutical industry.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the finished
drugs business cash-generating unit for 31 December 2019. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the three years immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements, and expected
market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are after tax and reflect

specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development
of finished drugs and discount rates are consistent with external
information sources.

The management of the Group assessed that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of the finished drugs business cash-generating unit
to exceed its respective recoverable amount as at 31 December
2019.
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BBEBEHESNHED A EAAREMMRESE
BREEEBLDETRER °

REFEGREELEGNTRESTRRIE
ERREHDAET  BHEERERBRE
B R E TN BRI RRAR S
REBAE - BARR SR ERUOHR %
B18% T A K R BB 8%
ERERY - R EERNETENRETY
SEREIAR -

EZZE-—NEFT+A=+—HHOKREXBERS
EABUNEREBEFETERTRR - AT
i TEREERNERSRETAETEER
BRI A B {EI RS 5 R AR -
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HNERE R AR — 2L
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:

As at 1 January

Additions

Expense-off

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 34)

Disposal of a subsidiary

Disposals

As at 31 December

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment:

As at 1 January

Amortisation provided
for the year

Impairment during the year

Disposal of a subsidiary

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 34)

Disposals

As at 31 December

Net book value:
As at 31 December

As at 1 January

B :

“—A—H

NE

BRI
WERBAR
(FizE34)
HE-—BHBAT
HE

Rt=A=+-H
R BERAE -

m=A—H
FREH

ERRE

HE—RIBAR

WERBAR
(Fi7E34)

HE

R+t=BA=t-H

BREFE
W+=A=+—8

Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R—Z—H&E+—HA=+—8H

17. HittBEEE
2019 2018
~E-nF It IR
Deferred Deferred
development Customer development

costs Software  relationship Total costs Software Total

i 135K Bt EFHEE e RERERA gt Fk L]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR#TRE AR¥ETRT AR®Tn AR%TR ARETr ARETT ARBT
82,214 2,501 - 84,715 52,227 2,474 54,701
37,159 200 - 37,359 34,587 326 34,913
- - - - (4,600) - (4,600)

44,201 657 24173 69,031 — = =
- - - - - (15) (15)
(4,798) (383) - (5,181) - (284) (284)
158,776 2,975 24173 185,924 82,214 2,501 84,715
20,252 757 - 21,009 18,137 816 18,953
1,762 440 1,612 3,814 418 238 656
6,438 - - 6,438 1,697 - 1,697
- - - - - (13) (13)

9,952 229 - 10,181 - - -
(4,798) (383) - (5,181) - (284) (284)
33,606 1,043 1,612 36,261 20,252 757 21,009
125,170 1,932 22,561 149,663 61,962 1,744 63,706
61,962 1,744 - 63,706 34,090 1,658 35,748
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B R AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=F—hFE+=F=+—H

18.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets IEFEE
Goodwill on acquisition W RE R A P

As described in the Company’s announcement dated 14 December
2016, Dawnrays Biotechnology, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, and Zhongshan KF entered into the Joint Venture (“JV”)
Agreement and establishing the JV Co. The total investment amount
of the JV Co is RMB243,470,000, comprising the total registered
capital of RMB1483,800,000 and the capital reserve of
RMB99,670,000. The aggregate investment amount to be
contributed by Dawnrays Biotechnology is RMB150,000,000 in
cash. By the end of year 2019, Phase 1 and Phase 2 registered
capital of RMB50,330,000 and RMB59,670,000 have been paid
respectively. According to the JV Agreement, Dawnrays
Biotechnology shall invest the remaining capital of RMB40,000,000,
as per the completion of the clinical trial of the project by AD
Pharmaceuticals.

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:
Place of

incorporation/
registration

18. R—EBEQTRZRE

2019 2018

S —=— N5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF 5 AEBF T
38,068 29,599
39,372 =
77,440 29,599

BIARRARRZE—ARFET A THAK A
Frift - AREE2EME A R RInED R ILE
FEIMNEEMERKNIEEAR - AERF
BT B HE A AR 243,470,000 © BIEAGE
& A A R # 143,800,000t R EARATEAR
99,670,000 7T ° RImEM AR 2 XIEA
A R 150,000,000 T K 21 E 5 R = F
—NEFK F—HERF_HAMERDE A
AR ¥ 50,330,000 7T & A R # 59,670,000 7, *
B2 f - RIEGEHR @ RinEWHBERE
AR A TRIEENBRAABRIEAARLE
40,000,000 TLFIBRE A o

TRBERNFZFROT

Percentage of

ownership interest

attributable

Name and business to the Group Principal activity
= EER AEBEGHEERE

£ R i B EREDL FEXEK

AD Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. Mainland China B Research and development

BT (BR)BEER QA B AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019, AD Pharmaceuticals Co.,
Ltd. reported a loss of RMB33,797,000 for the year 2019, included
the research and development costs and administrative expenses of
approximately RMB34,561,000 in total. As a result, the Group
shared, in proportion to the investment percentage, an investment
loss of approximately RMB11,829,000 (2018: RMB14,049,000).

of biotechnology and
bio-pharmaceutical products

DA Ko A W) 8 B A BT R

R-E-NE+-_A=+—HBILFERXN  FEa
B (BR)BEERAR AN T —NEARE
BARME 33,797,000 « BIEHE R SEITH
BB HF AR 34,561,000t © Ett - AN
EEEELOEREREBRIOARE
11,829,000t( = & — AN F: AR &
14,049,0007T) °
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18.

19.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont’d)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information in

Notes to Financial Statements

respect of AD Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences

in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

financial statements:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership
Group’s share of net assets of the associate,
excluding goodwill
Goodwill on acquisition

Carrying amount of the investment

Revenue
Loss for the year

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

Less: provision

MBEE
FRBEE
mEAE
FRBAE

FEE

REBEHRBELD

2 IR (44
(FREEE)
UG S 7 2

REMREE

L'ON
AEERER

R #
&M
SR

RIFEE

18.

19.

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R=ZF—h&E+=—A=+—H

R—EEE QT ZRE (&)
TRINTRBE ST B ] 2= 2 H S B I E At
BRERANREELSRORERE S (BR)BEE
BRABIMEMEERIEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFT
34,369 29,326
87,356 96,256
(9,382) (21,013)
(3,577) (20,000)
108,766 84,569
35% 35%
38,068 29,599
39,372 -
77,440 29,599
(33,797) (40,140)
A=
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARKETT
65,368 38,231
62,098 39,768
64,449 76,160
191,915 154,159
(11,156) (6,116)
180,759 148,043
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B R AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R—Z—HE+—HF=+—H

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables JEWE 5 FIE
Notes receivable FEUW = IR TN IR
Impairment RBE

Notes:
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The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally three months for major
customers. Each customer has a credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to manage credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade and notes receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

20. BREZREERIA

Notes

P &

Trade receivables FEWE 5 3KIE
Outstanding balances with ages: IZERECE] D BY R R BREE ¢
Within 90 days 90 B A
Between 91 and 180 days 91180 H
Between 181 and 270 days 1812 270H
Between 271 and 360 days 2712360 H
Over one year —F Ak

2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
207,379 199,614
163,615 147,188
370,994 346,802
370,994 346,802

BETEP —RFJREAGIRIN - AEBEEZRE
EFREEFRS  MERRFEEH—RAE
=@A - BUFFHREEERE - REEK
EEREREERWGOR - YREEREZER
MEREERR SREEEESEHRG8
HIRGR - ENA LRI R B BT ANE B R B E
HREFRAETRES - B &= EET
MEERE - BIE 5 R EEFRIBIFFE -

HRBRRMRBEERAEY - NRSHROE
WE SRR RRE DT

2019 2018
—2-hE —T\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMETTT
171,276 170,203
16,380 20,030
11,161 7,621
3,630 1,742
4,932 18
207,379 199,614




20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

)

(i)

(Cont’d)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

From 1 January 2018, the Group has applied the simplified approach
to provide impairment for ECLs prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
To measure the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The ECLs
below also incorporate forward-looking information. The impairment is
determined as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R—Z—H&E+—HA=+—8H

20. BWESKRRERE &)
s - ()

0

Expected credit loss rate TRHEEEA R
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) REMESH(ARETIIT)
Impairment (RMB’000) BEARETT)

Notes receivable are held with a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling as the Group
sometimes endorses notes receivable to suppliers prior to their expiry
date. These are classified and measured as debt instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income and presented as trade
and notes receivables.

Financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

At 31 December 2019, the Group endorsed certain notes receivable
accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed Notes”) with a carrying
amount of RMB18,638,000 to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the
opinion of the directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks
and rewards, which include default risks relating to such Endorsed
Notes, and accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the Endorsed Notes and the associated trade payables
settled. Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group does not retain
any rights on the use of the Endorsed Notes, including sale, transfer or
pledge of the Endorsed Notes to any other third parties. The aggregate
carrying amounts of the trade payables and other payables settled by
the Endorsed Notes during the year to which the suppliers have
recourse were RMB9,136,000 and RMB9,502,000 as at 31 December
2019, respectively.

At 31 December 2019, the Group discounted certain notes receivable
accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Discounted Notes”) with a carrying
amount of RMB19,399,000. In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include default
risks relating to such Discounted Notes, and accordingly, it continued
to recognise the full carrying amounts of the Discounted Notes and the
associated short-term borrowings. Subsequent to the discounting, the
Group does not retain any rights on the use of the Discounted Notes,
including sale, transfer or pledge of the Discounted Notes to any other
third parties. The aggregate carrying amount of short-term borrowings
arising from the Discounted Notes was RMB19,399,000 as at 31
December 2019.
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MEEFEHANBRBRSRTEBEKLE
- RETERHEEEHE  BRESFTIRER
EAAERRRFENARARIEETHAE - A
TEHEREBEESANELES RERER
W

2019 2018
—Z2-hE —T—N\F
<0.1% <0.1%
207,379 199,614
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21. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 21. FEIR -  HERREREMEE
ASSETS
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Current B
Prepayments TEI K 15,650 8,905
Deposits and other receivables & Rk H At fE Y IR 30,489 21,832
Wealth management products 9 B = i 140,000 350,000
186,139 380,737
Non-current IR E
Long-term prepayment* REBFEI R - 21,629

*

Long-term prepayment as at 31 December 2018 represented the
prepaid instalment payment for investment in an associate.

As at 31 December 2019, other receivables of the Group were
considered to be of low credit risk and thus the Group has assessed
that the ECL for other receivables is immaterial under the 12-month

expected loss method and no impairment provision is required.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which

there was no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of the prepayments, other receivables and
other assets approximate to their fair values.
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

Listed equity investments, at fair value
Listed debt investments, at fair value
Other unlisted investments, at fair value

Notes:

(i)

ERERERE - BARE
EHERKRE - BanE

Listed equity investments represented the Group’s investments in
public listed companies, which are quoted in an active market. The fair
value of the listed equity investments is based on their quoted prices
as of 31 December 2019 in an active market.

Listed debt investments represented the Group’s investments in
financial bonds issued by China Development Bank, which are quoted
in an active market. The fair value of the listed debt investments is
based on their quoted prices as of 31 December 2019 in an active
market.

The above listed equity investments and listed debt investments at 31
December 2019 were classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as they were held for trading.

The above unlisted investments at 31 December 2019 were floating
interest rate principal-preservation type of wealth management
products. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest. The fair value of wealth
management products is based on the bank’s quoted expected
returns.

Bt EmERE - BofE
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22. URAREFEBESETT ABR 2B
BiE
2019 2018
—E-AE —ZT—\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARETx AREET T
(i) 9,557 8,149
(i) 37,630 70,478
(i) 458,643 110,766
505,830 189,393
B3 -

(i
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23. CASH AND BANK 23. BERBITER
2019 2018
—E-AF —ZT—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Cash and cash in banks IR NIRITTER 105,619 61,563
Short-term deposits v EEE 365,842 583,800
471,461 645,363
Term deposit with maturity over three months  EI| 58 B #2:@ = { A &9 5& HifF 3% 210,000 120,000
Restricted bank deposits (note 41) ZRRFIRITER (HI5E41) 2,840 =
212,840 120,000
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRSEEY 258,621 525,363

As at 31 December 2019, bank accounts with net book value of
RMB2,840,000 were frozen according to the order of the court (note
41).

As at 31 December 2019, the cash and bank balances and short-
term deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB430,621,000 (2018: RMB618,364,000) in Mainland China. The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks (including the restricted bank deposits and term
deposit with maturity over three months) earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of the trade payables and notes payable as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

Outstanding balances with ages: IRBRE S 5 B (M R EREE -
Within 90 days 0 HA
Between 91 and 180 days 91F180H
Between 181 and 270 days 1812270 H
Between 271 and 360 days 2712360 H
Over one year —F

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
on 90-day terms. The carrying amounts of the trade and notes
payables approximate to their fair values. The aggregate carrying
amount of the trade payables settled by the Endorsed Notes during
the year to which the suppliers have recourse was RMB9,136,000
as at 31 December 2019 (note 20).

24.

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R=ZF—h&E+=—A=+—H
BREZREEFIE
R E AR ER E 5 R EN R BEFIERER 5
Mo -

2019 2018
—®-nF —E-0\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
102,243 83,169
53,942 46,661

143 114

100 34

336 439
156,764 130,417

BB S BENEFB R —RIENL T AR
M - BENESREBRFBZEEEREA
RERE RZT—NE+A=+—H" &
BEEEBRINCHERNEEREZENES
K2 BBREE A A R #9,136,0007T (FiiFE20)
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B R AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R—Z—HE+—HF=+—H

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HitFEERRFERE A
2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR®TR ARET T
Contract liabilities BHBE (i 15,463 13,897
Accruals BIRER 85,340 80,761
Taxes other than corporate income tax {2 FT S SMNh i IE 14,229 20,167
Payable for purchases of machinery Frid ik e g R SR FE K
and construction of buildings 14,540 3,495
Payable for purchases of intangible BEELEENENR
assets - 3,200
Other payables HAth FEAT X (i) 110,335 48,252
239,907 169,772
Notes: Bt
i) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (i) SRBEBEFBNOT
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
—B-nEF —F—)\F —T\F
+=—B=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT AREFIT
Short-term advances received W& P E B2 BFFE (170
from customers
Sales of goods EmiHE 14,713 13,147 13,841
Rendering of pilot test services RHE AR RS 750 750 -
Total contract liabilities EHEEERE 15,463 13,897 13,841
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver BRABEBERESR RHARAE RGN
pharmaceutical products and render pilot test services. RERTALIR o
(ii) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average (ii) HMENRDTAFERFHLEERANE
settlement term of six months. The carrying amounts of other payables Ao Bt ENFREIRIRE A REEEE AR
and accruals approximate to their fair values. The aggregate carrying BRE R-F-AFT-A=1T—R 38
amount of other payables settled by the Endorsed Notes during the BEEERI N HEmARERE BN
year to which the suppliers have recourse was RMB9,502,000 as at 31 2 HEREE A AR 9,502,000 T (KiFE 20) °

December 2019 (note 20).
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31 December 2019 R=ZF—h&E+=—A=+—H

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 26. sTERITEE
2019
—E-hEF
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity Original Equivalent
BRI (%) A R £
HK$°000 RMB’000
BT T AR®TR
Current =5
Bank loan — secured EEMHRITER 3.70%-3.75% 221,540 197,377
Bank loan — secured BEEFRIRITER 2.85%-2.97% 21,638" 19,399
243,178 216,776
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T
Analysed into: paw =
Bank loans repayable: RITE KA EFE]
Within one year or on demand DA —F S IRE K 216,776 -
(@  The bank loan was secured by the corporate guarantees of the (8) HERITEKEARBERAER -
Company.
()  The bank loan was arising from the Discounted Notes (note 20) b) ZERITEFRBEREZRE(HIF20)

and secured by the notes receivable accepted by the banks. W A IRITE XA EBCR IR o

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had aggregate bank facilities of RZFB-AFFTZA=1T—H  AKEMIRT
approximately RMB1,307,585,000 (as at 31 December 2018: EEEBENARY1,307,58500T (R -F

—N\F+=-—A=+—8: AR¥1,402,762,000
JL) © HEh A R# 223,238,000 (R =Z — )\
F+ZA=+—H: AR¥102,762,0007T ) &
TEEEEARABHEARIER -

RMB1,402,762,000), of which bank facilities of RMB223,238,000 (as
at 31 December 2018: RMB102,762,000) were secured by
corporate guarantees of the Company.
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31 December 2019 R=F—hFE+=F=+—H

27. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 27. BUFTFHEEFR
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
At 1 January n—H—H 1,508 1,878
Released to the consolidated statement FALGZEBRE
of profit or loss (308) (870)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8 1,200 1,508
28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IRIEFIIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FRNREEHEEERBEZEHAT
are as follows:
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS EEBBEEE
Accrued Government
expenses grants Provisions Total
FEREH BT BE me
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2018 R-_ZE—N\F—HF—H 1,969 141 2,578 4,688
Deferred tax credited/(charged) SRR AIERE
to the consolidated statement HAFHEB) 2
of profit or loss during EEFRRIE (FIEE10)
the year (note 10) 339 27) 823 1,135
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—)\F
1 January 2019 +=—A=+—8xK
—E-NF—A—H 2,308 114 3,401 5,823
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRRERE BRI
to the consolidated statement HAFHB) 2
of profit or loss during EREFIR (FEE10)
the year (note 10) (799) (24) 1,643 820
At 31 December 2019 N_ZE—NF
+=—A=+—H 1,509 90 5,044 6,643
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PSR R

31 December 2019 R=ZF—h&E+=—A=+—H

28. DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d) 28. IEFERLIE (4E)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Cont’d) EEHIEEE (&)
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of AEERFPRAEHSHBEEARK
RMB14,882,000 (2018: RMB33,109,000) that will expire in one to 14,882,000t( = T — )\ F: A R &
five years and tax losses arising from the Company and its Hong 33,109,0007T) ' A AEEKEFEN —ERHF R
Kong subsidiaries of RMB111,441,000 (2018: RMB86,722,000) for BEAR R R ER T m A - AR R REBF BN
offsetting against future taxable profits for which no deferred tax BAESEHIEEEARE 111,441,0007t (=
assets have been recognised, as they have arisen in subsidiaries that Z—)\F : AR¥86,722,0007T) A F 1EHK 5
have been loss-making for some time and it is uncertain that taxable ANRERDR A - e FEIE A e RN A
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. BENKER AEHERELEBEE B
FREIMME AR - TEESS E A EAREE
A RREIHZ S IAEE -
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES EERIBEEE
Fair value
adjustments
Fair value of financial Depreciation
adjustments assets at fair allowance in
arising from  value through excess of
acquisition of profit and related Withholding
subsidiaries loss depreciation taxes Total
NAREE
BHZH
WM B AR FTABHEZ
EEN MHREE FESBE
ARERAE  WAAERE  BBEERNE BB ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F—H—H - - - 53,126 53,126
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FRARGRBERING/
the consolidated statement of profit (FtA) ZEFER A (HiE10)
or loss during the year (note 10) - 125 856 (1,120) (139)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-\F+=R=1+—H
1 January 2019 k=E-nF—F—H - 125 856 52,006 52,987
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) Weka B A 7] (PisE34) 16,251 - - - 16,251
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to ERNRABERGIA)/
the consolidated statement of profit b 2 EIERIE (3 10)
or loss during the year (note 10) (935) 310 482 (2,621) (2,764)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=R=1+—H 15,316 435 1,338 49,385 66,474

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

RIBHBEEEMSHE - R BIAREEKIZESN
BRECEMIIHREETSRNRE - A
10% R R BB - ZREB —FTT/N\F
—A—BREN WEAR-—ZETLF+_H
=t —RERNERF o i BIAREEEIEIREE
PERDERR DR RE HE R RARE
HFE R - REBHERHRE 5% © Fitt -
B-TZEN\F—H B AEEARETE
R BE R S RO P 88 22 B AT EE A B9 B R T 20 e B B
BREITRRIRIIRAET o
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B R AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R=F—hFE+=F=+—H

29. OTHER LIABILITIES

7 fikh £,

Government relocation compensation received  BfT i@ B2 (& 5%

The government relocation compensation was part of the
compensation received under the relocation compensation
agreement entered into between the People’s Government of
Wuzhong Economic Development District, Suzhou City and Suzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group.

30. SHARE CAPITAL
SHARES

Authorised: YETE

29.

30.

Hit& &
2019 2018
—®-nF —E-0\%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETT
70,238 70,238

B BRERSREHFNTRDEEFRER
ARBUTERAE B 2 & I8 2 B RN R S 5%
BRRBIHE 2 B R ERHRKEI WD 72

7 (i 2k
BE(E TN -

20,000,000,000 (2018: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000 & (= Z— )\ :

ordinary shares of HK$0.05 20,000,000,000 %) H X E1E
(2018: HK$0.05) each B 0.05 L (ZFE—N\F -
FEH£0.0570) B E @Ak
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :
1,556,581,000 (2018: 1,586,382,000) 1,556,581,000 % (==& — )\ :
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 1,586,382,000 %) FAx A&
(2018: HK$0.05) each BEE0.05 L (ZE—N\F -
75 0.0570) B E @R
Equivalent to RMB’000 FEARETT
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2019 2018

—E-hF —T—N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

1,000,000 1,000,000

77,829 79,319

82,867 84,197
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PSR R

31 December 2019 R=ZF—h&E+=—A=+—H

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d) 30. A (48)
SHARES (Cont’d) & (48)
As the share sub-division approved by the shareholders of the HREARRNRIRRMENROIFAER=Z
Company became effective on 6 August 2018, the total number of —N\FENRARBER  HAREFEFRAAA
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and 31 RZE-—NEFE+ZA=+—BERZZ—N\F
December 2018 are presented in this report as follows: T A=+ —HAZEETRMEHEBELRAT
SRR
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
28T
R EE EETRAE % 173 8 FEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2018 R=ZF—N\F—H—H 793,191,000 79,319 16,657 95,976
Effect of the share IR Al 52 2
sub-division 793,191,000 — — —
At 31 December 2018 and R=ZZE—NF+=A
1 January 2019 =t—BRZZE-HF
—H—H 1,5686,382,000 79,319 16,657 95,976
Shares repurchased and BN ARG &
cancelled in 2019 MN_E— N Tl (29,801,000) (1,490) (16,657) (18,147)
At 31 December 2019 R-_F—NF
—A=1+—H 1,5656,581,000 77,829 - 77,829

During the year, the Company repurchased 29,801,000 of its
ordinary shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for a total
consideration of HK$42,941,000 before expenses. The repurchased
shares were cancelled during the year. The nominal value of the
cancelled shares of HK$1,490,050 (equivalent to RMB1,330,000)
was transferred to the capital redemption reserve, and the premium
on repurchase and the related costs incurred for the share
repurchase of HK$16,657,000 (equivalent to RMB26,160,000) and
HK$24,793,950 (equivalent to RMB24,078,000), respectively, were
charged against the share premium account and retained profits of
the Company.

FW - AN AR AZFTEE B 29,801,000 IR AN A
AERARGO TEBRAZEREARBE
42,941,0007T * FEE B AR GF TN o B5E
SEAR D FEAR S 2 E588 % 1,490,050 7T (1B
AR 1,330,000 7T ) B B E & AR S ] 74 -
i A% 17 B8 181 Fr <) 2 v (B SR AR A B A 99 Bl 2L
16,657,000 7T (5 A K # 26,160,000 7T) &
7 #524,793,950 7T (18 F 7 A K #5 24,078,000
JL) B AR A Rl Z B0 i B AR AR s Al o
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31.

32.
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TREASURY SHARES

The Company repurchased 3,593,000 of its ordinary shares on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange for a total consideration of
HK$5,026,110 before expenses in December 2019. The nominal
value of those shares of HK$179,650 (equivalent to RMB161,000)
was transferred to the capital redemption reserve, and the premium
on repurchase and the related costs incurred for the share
repurchase of HK$4,846,460 (equivalent to RMB4,516,000) in total
were charged against the retained profits of the Company. The
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled on 17 February
2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme in 2013 (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible persons (including the Company’s directors, independent
non-executive directors, employees of the Group and other eligible
participants as defined under the Scheme) who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. The Scheme became effective
on 21 June 2013 and remained in force for 10 years from that date
until 20 June 20283.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible person in the Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive officer or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.
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32.
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3,593,000k AR A EMmiR) - TEBRZA
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) 32. HEMEESTEI(E)
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days BT ERENERENEZ B R 21 BRE
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of B ABRAEZENEREREAINEMR
HK$10 by each grantee with no other consideration being payable B HASTMNBEAOTHRBARE - BES
by the grantee. An option may be exercised in accordance with the SERLERE B HEMETA R BRES
terms of the Scheme at any time during a period commencing on EEgERHBRERBEN B EEREH
such date on or after the date on which the option is granted as the HEREFIE - IR (BRI NS HRAREH
Board may determine in granting the option and expiring at the close B HA B ST T ) IRIBZ T 2V IR TR TR R ARAE -
of business on such date as the Board may determine in granting
the option but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date
of grant.
The exercise price of share options is determined by the directors, BRENTEEHEZESET - EPNEERNUT
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing BHENRSE (AR ABROAREERES
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share HEER S FTAT IR UL (B © K (i) AR AR 7
options; and (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the SR AR AR S A ER R ATATHRA T
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding HEHE - HITEETE LR ARF L ARM
the date of offer, provided that the exercise price shall not be less RN
than the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the Company.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to RN ER THBEATZERESNRER
vote at shareholders’ meetings. 2 _LIREMRER o
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme AN Bazat SR G RARITE R BE AR
during the year:
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—)\F
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
hn#E pilik>3
FigITHEE BREHE FIITHE(E ifib g2 S ¢!
HK$ HKS$
per share ’000 per share ‘000
BEGR G
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 2.842 48,700 2.835 52,000
Granted during the year FAREED 1.400 96,000 = =
Exercised during the year ~ ERXNE{T{E - - - -
Lapsed during the year FRBERM 2.565 (6,200) 2.731 (3,300)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1.855 138,500 2.842 48,700
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

32.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019

Number of options

BRERA
’000

2,000
11,800
6,000
10,200
1,200
3,000
10,500
14,400
15,400
32,000
32,000

138,500

2018

Number of options

FERERE
'000

2,000
11,800
6,000
11,800
2,800
3,000
11,300

48,700

*

Exercise price*
TR

HKS$ per share
BEER

3.220
2.575
2.635
3.670
3.190
3.170
2125
1.500
1.380
1.380
1.380

Exercise price*
THEE"
HK$ per share
ISR

3.220
2.575
2.635
3.670
3.190
3.170
2.125

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the

case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the

Company'’s share capital.
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v )
REEHR - RITEA BRI TR RITE A
AT :

—E-NF

Exercise period

TESE

17-09-2015 to = 16-09-2020
08-01-2016 to £ 07-01-2021
18-03-2016 to = 17-03-2021
16-04-2016 to = 15-04-2021
23-11-2016 to £ 22-11-2021
11-05-2017 to & 10-05-2022
29-11-2018 to £ 28-11-2023
09-01-2020 to £ 08-01-2025
28-08-2020 to £ 27-08-2025
31-12-2019 to £ 31-12-2020
01-05-2022 to £ 30-04-2024

—E-N\F

Exercise period

1T

17-09-2015 to & 16-09-2020
08-01-2016 to £ 07-01-2021
18-03-2016 to & 17-03-2021
16-04-2016 to & 15-04-2021
23-11-2016 to £ 22-11-2021
11-05-2017 to = 10-05-2022
29-11-2018 to £ 28-11-2023

* R ETTHAR S B TA KA R BB A HBR E A
BUED  RIRRENTTIRER T AHE -



32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated
as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. This value is inherently subjective and
uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitation of the
valuation model used. The following table lists the inputs to the

model:

Date of grant REAH 17/9/2014  8/1/2015 18/3/2015 16/4/2015 23/11/2015 11/5/2016 29/11/2017
Dividend yield (%) BEE %) 097 12 118 08 104

Expected volatiity (%) TAEEKIE (%) 4 43 43 43 43

Historical volatiity (%) B (%) 4 43 4 43 43

Risk-ree interestrate (%) E@BITAR(%) 1584 1.365 1.290 1.085 1,183

Expected life of BIRER 6 6 6 6 6

options (year) EH(%)
Fair value at the date i =pi 245 1.92 1.97 282 242

of grant (HKS) DRfE (%)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over
the past five years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 138,500,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 8.90% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 138,500,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company,
additional share capital of HK$6,925,000 and share premium of
HK$249,966,500 (before share issue expenses).
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31 December 2019 R=F—NF+=A=+—H
Wi E (&)
RIAEREENBRENRA BTN TS
RESBUENR — FRNEERX G5
I B E R T EBREA IR R - SR E
BRREAERNGEEXFERS - GHER
REZEEXD R IEERE - TRIIEZER
A A BE -

9/1/2019 28/8/2019 28/8/2019 28/8/2019

1.06 270 6.25 .44 744 744
43 41 42 42 42 42
43 41 42 42 42 42

0.969 1.586 1.840 1.004 1.004 1.064
6 6 6 6 1 5
2.34 1.21 0.36 0.21 0.14 022

BREEAFHIRBEEEAFNELENE
T OARLBEBRNTERBREN TN - BHIKIE
REREBERIE A BN AR K BB HRER - HEARK

WA H M % FERENERIA AL BRGTE
B o
RZZE-—NAF+=ZA=+—8  AARREZ
=T 8% 5 138,500,000 17 B P& A& it AR SETT(E -
HEREBARRBEBETRMA8.90% © 1RIR
RNARIREFH)E RN - BEITER T HERE
1551 B A T 217 138,500,000 B FA SN E 378 A%
07 6,925,000 7T K AR A8 DA K A% 17 155 1B 7

#& 249,966,500 7T (T & RN BEITHZ) °
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33. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 83 to 84 of the financial
statements.

(i CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS
The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation as set out in
note 1, and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor.

(i) STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE (THE “SSR”)
In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
articles of association of the Mainland China Subsidiaries, each
of the Mainland China Subsidiaries is required to allocate 10%
of its profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the
PRC generally accepted accounting principles, to the SSR until
this reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital. Part of the
SSR may be converted to increase the paid-up capital,
provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is

not less than 25% of the registered capital.

(il EXCHANGE FLUCTUATION RESERVE
The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries.
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33.
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AEBRBENRAFERBEFENSRNES
EHRPBERRESBAEAANGEERE
XA -

() BAZESR
AEBEOBABRIERENE1FTED
SEBEAMRENBARERNGEEE
EFEEARR REEE B EEMET
MR R E{E R Z 5

(i) EEBHRLES
RIBHRBEQBERT BN EARNAR
iz PEMBARSEARTELR
BEFER - BEBRENE10% D EE
EEBRRLTED  BEEEATEHKHLAES
R E M E AR 50% © B DA &R
NIED AT E R R IR AR A IR - 1
B ARE 1R B BR N AHE R R B A EY
25% -

(i) EXREEE
BEE 54,2 B 7% 4 75 A {E R B3R S 51 B Y /B
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION
On 7 May 2019, Dawnrays International Company Limited, the
Group’s subsidiary, acquired a 100% interest in Top Field Limited
from Supper Fort Holdings Limited at an aggregate consideration of
HK$436,470,000 (approximately RMB376,132,000). Top Field
Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the research,
development, production and sale of drugs. The acquisition was
made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand its market share of

cardiovascular medicine. The purchase consideration for the

acquisition was in the form of cash.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Top Field

Limited as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Other intangible assets

Trade and notes receivables
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets
Inventories

Long-term investment*

Cash and bank

Trade and notes payables
Other payables and accruals
Deferred tax liabilities

Income tax payable

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

Goodwill on acquisition

Satisfied by cash

*

on the profit and loss in 2019.

The long-term investment was disposed to a third-party with no impact

Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R=ZF—h&E+=—A=+—H

34. EEH

R-ZT—hERA+LH REBERBAR R
BURE B0 A PR A &) () B 7 HE 436,470,000 7T (49
HER ARE 376,132,000 ) B E %2 WEL 5 &
AR A FUEE Top Field Limited 2 100% %4 ©
Top Field Limited & H B &8 A 7 = ZH F 521
W - % EEREE - ARBRALRS
[ 53 RE ) — ZB10 AR O M B B 355 58 o
WENREBRNARS I -

MUk BE B HA Top Field Limited &Y A] 3% 51 & &= &

BEMAABENT
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
W EE R RERR Y
AREE
Notes RMB’000
Bt aE ARBT T
M - B RFME 13 27,406
EREEE 14b 16,304
Hinm & E 17 58,850
FEWE 5 R EBEFIA 820
TERTRR ~ H b ERCRIE R E At & B 7,825
rE 3,789
REAE 1,588
RE RIRITHFER 70,597
ENEB S KEERIE (136)
Hitnfe (SRR TBIRE A (35,407)
BELEHIBEE 28 (16,251)
FES FTISHR (411)
AR EFTER ] #AEEFEE 134,974
BE Wy B T EE AR O P R 16 241,158
LIRS 376,132

* REREREGRFE=H  H_T-NFERT

=
37 30

AN ]
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

34. EAH(E)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:

ERUNE-RHNBARNRERESNNAT

RMB’000
ARETT
Cash consideration BeRE 376,132
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BAR & RIRITIF (70,597)
Less: Settled by netting off other receivables due R B L B R4S B B IR A Bl FT R &Y

from Supper Fort Holdings Ltd. Hib B REE (189)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included HAREEHRES RESEEY R L EE
in cash flows used in investing activities 305,346

Since the acquisition, Top Field Limited and its subsidiaries
contributed RMB60,683,000 to the Group’s revenue and
RMB23,329,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the
revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year would
have been RMB964,479,000 and RMB254,867,000, respectively.
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F Uk B8 B #E5T » Top Field Limited K £ Ff B A &)
REE-_ZT-NF+_A=T—HIEFEAX
EE WA TEIA R 60,683,000 TTA & BirE
w A B Bt A R 23,329,000 7T ©

BRIMAEHBEREY]  2EAEBZWARAK
S8 2 mHen 5l A AR 964,479,000 7T &
AR 254,867,000 7T °
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets HHEE

Trade and notes receivables  ENE 5 REEE

Financial assets includedin st ATETE: - Eftfell
prepayments, other FEREMEES

recelvables and other assets BT AE
Financial assets at farvalue ~ HAR EE BEED
through proft or loss TABRHBEE
(Cash and bank RERBOER

Financial liabilities

Trade and notes payables
Financial liabilities included in

other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

31 December 2019 R=ZF—h&E+=—A=+—H

BERE D 2 EMTA
BEREHR  SESRTANKREENT :

2019 2018
Z8-NE “T)\E
Financial
Financial assets at Financial assets
assets at Financial fair value Financial assets Financial atfair value
fair value assetsat  through other atfair value assefsat  through other
through profit amortised  comprehensive through profit amortised  comprehensive
or loss cost income Total orloss cost income Total
RRETE RRAEE
URRETE BEZHHA PYNERES EZEA
BEZHTA REERE  Et2EUE BEZHHA REHRA  AfRENE
BH HHEE TECAIKEE EIHBEE BE BEOBEE HE/HHEE LHHBEE 2%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT NS AR®FT NS NS
- 27319 163,615 370,094 - 199,614 147,188 346,802
- 170,489 - 170,489 - 371,832 - 371,832
505,830 - - 505,830 189,393 - - 189,393
- 471,461 - 471,461 - 645,363 - 645,363
505,830 849,329 163,615 1,518,774 189,393 1,216,809 147,188 1,663,390
b 3R 2019 2018
—B-hF —E-)N\F
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
REENATE IREHEKAGTE
ZHBEaE ZHBRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
N E 5 R FEERIR 156,764 130,417
FAHMENRRERERZ
MEaE 179,653 107,171
AERITEE 216,776 -
HEAE 2,907 -
556,100 237,588
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36. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2019:

36.

THMTREZARERER

TRIAREESHMTENAAR BT EER :

REZB-—NFF+_H=+—HEAREFEL
,é“/z

Fair value measurement using

BEANTREETAAENE

Quoted prices
in active markets
REBTSENEE

(Level 1)
&
RMB’000
ARBTR

Financial assets at fair value AR EERHEH:F A

through profit or loss BaBBEE 47,187

Significant Significant
observable inputs unobservable inputs
EANBEERAE EXTTBEGAE
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E-; =R G
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
458,643 - 505,830

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2018:

R-B-NF+_HA=+—ARAREFESN
5/%

Fair value measurement using
ERAATSEETARBEHE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active markets observable inputs  unobservable inputs
REREMHENEE EATBEREAE EATITERBAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E— FH E=8 =H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at fair value AR EREBEEHA
through profit or loss BaHBEE 78,627 110,766 - 189,393
During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, HE_Z-NF+_A=T—HBLEFEK
there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 _)\i‘f‘—ﬂ =t+—HIEFE- %—?&iﬁifﬁ:
and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. RETEAREAEERE  TEEASBHE
=F
The carrying amounts of cash and bank, trade and notes receivables, Re RBITER - BRE S REEFIE - BN
trade and notes payables, financial assets included in prepayments, B5 REEFA  FEARMNK - HtbEEFR
other receivables and other assets, interest-bearing bank borrowings, REMEEZMBEE  sHEETEE  HE
lease liabilities and financial liabilities included in other payables and BE  FFARMENRNERER ZMBEE

accruals approximate to their fair values.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group does not have any significant investment outside of
Mainland China. However, the Group has transactional currency
exposures. These exposures arise from sales of the Group’s
subsidiaries denominated in currencies other than the subsidiaries’
functional currencies. Approximately 9.55% of the Group’s sales for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 13.21%) were
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of
the subsidiaries. Upon receipt of currencies other than the
functional currency, the subsidiaries sell them to the banks at
suitable time.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. cREAMRESEEEREE (E)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (Cont’d) SPEE BB (48)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRINREMBEMA]ERZEFTTE 2 1FN
possible change in foreign currency exchange rate, with all other T ZRER B B BR A A ) N B 2 3R S 88
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to AN ERE(HREKEERBBENA
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). REZEEF) -
Change in Increase/
foreign (decrease) in
currency rate profit before tax
HBRBADRF
HIEEREEH 28N (D)
RMB’000
AREEFT
2019 —E-NE
If RMB strengthens against the United States dollar ~ fitf A R % 3 2 T FHE +5% (4,535)
If RMB weakens against the United States dollar WMARE X ETRE -5% 4,535
2018 —T-NF
If RMB strengthens against the United States dollar ] A R#& 3 2= T FHE +5% (6,567)
If RMB weakens against the United States dollar W AREE L ETRE -5% 6,567
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivables and balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of
credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty. There are no

significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or unwillingness of a
counterparty to meet its contractual obligation. The Group has no
concentration of credit risk from third party debtors. The carrying
amounts of cash and bank balances, trade and notes receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

All cash and bank balances were deposited in high-credit-quality

financial institutions without significant credit risk.

The Group has continued the policy to perform an assessment at 31
December 2019, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering to
group its other receivables into Stage 1 and Stage 2, as described

below:

Stage 1 — When other receivables are first recognised, the Group
records an allowance based on 12-months ECLs

Stage 2 — When other receivables have shown a significant

increase in credit risk since origination, the Group
records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs

Management also regularly reviews the recoverability of these
receivables and follow up on the disputes or amounts overdue, if
any. Management is of the opinion that the risk of default by

counterparties is low.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. EREMEERERHE (&)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK (Cont’d)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as of the
reporting date with the risk of default as of the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected
credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. The
expected loss allowance provision for these balances was not
material during the year ended 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the credit rating of other receivables was
performing. The Group assessed that the expected credit losses for
these receivables are not material under the 12-month expected loss
method. Thus no loss allowance provision was recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables and other receivables are
disclosed in note 20 and note 21.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. cREAMRESEEEREE (E)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK FBESER
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring AEBZAFAKLEURDESFHETA - &
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its RELESRBRNER HWTESEEESHT
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and BRI EE (WEKRE Z5IE) R H R A K
projected cash flows from operations. REKEEBMERRSRE -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of R EHARNEERIBES OREBENFETED
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted MBREZ 2R GMAT

payments, was as follows:

2019
ZE-NF
3toless
Less than than 1to5 Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5years Total
ZEDR
RER SR=MEA +=f8A -Z5f FEHNE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARETR

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5+ BR{TEE - 12,374 204,402 - - 216,776
Lease liabilities HEAE - 17 49 2,841 - 2,907
Trade and notes payables ERNE S REETIE 5,382 96,003 55,379 - - 156,764

Financial liabilities included in -~ 5t A E i ERT %
other payables and accruals ~ TAIRE R 2 8175

=L 179,653 - - - - 179,653
185,035 108,394 259,830 2,841 - 556,100
2018
—T-N\F
Lessthan 3 toless than 1105 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
ZEIR
REK  AR=EA TZEA —ZEAF AFMNE et

RVB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARBTL ARBTR ARETT ARETR

Trade and notes payables ERNESRREFR 7,296 43,234 79,887 - - 130,417
Financial liabilities included in -~ 5t A AR Z K
other payables and accruals ~ TEIRE B2 87
BE 107,171 = - - - 107,171

114,467 43,234 79,887 = = 237,588
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. EREMEERERHE (&)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt includes trade
and notes payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
bank borrowings, lease liabilities, less cash and bank. Capital
includes the liability component of convertible bonds and equity
attributable to owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end

of the reporting periods were as follows:

Trade and notes payables BINE S5 M EEFRIA

Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHERITEE
Lease liabilities HEAE

Less: Cash and bank

Net debt FEE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio BEREBELX
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Hi BN L ERER

AEXER
AEEEREANERZARRREARENG
BRERNRERFRBRENEARLE  UAXEHR
iR METTREE

AEEgREERRE(CEREEARBL S
HEHHAE - RERARBEARE  A5E
FEFBN TRROBRERE  REEART
BRERFETHRD - RBEE_T-NF+ A
=t—ARZE-NF+ZA=+—HLEE
N BREAEEMNBER  BRRKBREYEE
HAEREE -

AEERBEAABLXEREEABER - M
BEARBLERTFABRACHBEANFER
BZBANFE - FRBEEERNEZRERK
B EtENREERER  FERTEE
HMEAE IHRRSRRITER - EAERE
AERESNAEHD MR REE ARLE
o RMEMRZEABBLEMT

2019 2018
—E-hE —T—\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
156,764 130,417
239,907 169,772
216,776 =
2,907 =
(471,461) (645,363)
144,893 (345,174)
2,025,636 1,921,162
2,170,529 1,575,988
6.7% 21.9)%
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. mERTREBRME
CASH FLOWS
(a) CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING (a) HBRMEETHELNAESSD
ACTIVITIES

Interest-bearing

bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
STEBTHEE HEas
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTR
At 1 January 2019 R-_ZE—-h&—H—H - -
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRHEH 216,776 (31)
New leases HEE - 2,876
Interest expense B H - 62
At 31 December 2019 R-E—NE+=-_A=+—8 216,776 2,907
(b) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES (b) HEZHBEESR
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated PREGGHSRERNNEERRS
statement of cash flows is as follows: M
2019
—E-NEF
Within operating activities KRB A 724
Within investing activities KEEBA 218
Within financing activities BEEBA 31
973
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39. COMMITMENTS 39. EiE
(@) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (a)
The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are

negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:

Within one year —FR
(b) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (b)
Contracted, but not provided for: BET4) - [ERVERME
Plant and machinery R 55 Mt 25
Capital contributions payable to RS — R A a2 AR

an associate
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REHERE
AEERBEEHELHABRETHA
YE - MERENFHERRNF =50
F2MH e

RZE-—NAFE+ZRA=+—H A&H
R TR SRR B 1R AR R FEN
REEEFIREEMNT

2019 2018
—E-NF —ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
232 42

BAEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
24,919 4,460
40,000 79,670
64,919 84,130




40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

41.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT AL

31 December 2019 R=ZF—h&E+=—A=+—H

40. AR5

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Ha - ZEEYER
Employee share option benefits B TR IRERET

Pension scheme contributions ERE IR
Total compensation paid to key
management personnel

Further details of the directors’ and the chief executive officer’s
emoluments are included in note 7 to the financial statements.

OTHER EVENT

In August 2019, Cinmed Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Cinmed
Pharmaceuticals”) and Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical”), a subsidiary of the Group,
received a statement of claim against them. On 2 November 2019,
the Intermediate People’s Court of Putian City, Fujian province
dismissed the plaintiff’'s claim. The plaintiff filed an appeal but finally
withdrew it to end the lawsuit on 2 March 2020. Cinmed
Pharmaceuticals and Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical were not
required to pay any legal costs or compensations. As at 31
December 2019, certain of Cinmed Pharmaceuticals’ buildings and
bank accounts with net carrying amounts of RMB7,272,000 and
RMB2,840,000 were attached or frozen according the order of the
court. The buildings and bank accounts were unattached and
unfrozen on 25 March 2020 and 26 March 2020 respectively.

TEEBEAEMEER

41.

FEETEEEAEMS
2019 2018
—2-NF —T-N\fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
6,920 7,315
180 1,741
155 128
7,255 9,184

EXREEMEHEHNTERRMET -

Hith=818

RZF-NFNA BREXFERAR(EL
Gz ) EAEE B A RN RITHESR
A ([ BRN R B S 2 |) B #5251 ARk &5 AR AE

N

HE R_E-NAE+-A_BREEHET
EP%&/\Eiﬂ%¥‘Ji§&%§@J?i)\ﬁ’\]uﬁa’&%;%/\

REAGRE LF KRR -_ZE-_TF=A—
H#E R AR FE % éﬁﬂlﬁim*”
BABXNEMARRERRE R_F—N%F

ToA=t+—BELEELT @+&ﬁﬁ$ﬁ
BR M JF B A R #7,272,000t & A R #
28mmmﬁamﬁiﬁﬁ%wéﬁﬁﬁﬁ’
BFERBITERFESINR_ZE_ZF=A
:+£H&:ﬁ:+xﬂ%%%§ﬁ&ﬁmo
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42.

43.

206 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED HEe#I% (28%) AR A 7

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 30 December 2019, Lanzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceuticals Co.,
Ltd. (“Lanzhou Dawnrays”) was established as a fully owned
subsidiary of Dawnrays International Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The registered capital of Lanzhou
Dawnrays is US$25 million, of which, US$4 million was invested by

Dawnrays International Company Limited on 16 March 2020.

On 24 December 2019, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical”) signed an agreement with
Nanjing Haina Medical and Pharmaceutical Technology Company
Limited, an independent third party, with regard to the transfer of the
marketing authorization holder of Febuxostat tablets (40mg, 80mg)
and bulk medicines for gout treatment. The total consideration is up
to RMB240 million (including a fixed payment of RMB40 million and
4% of the Group’s revenue from the sale of Febuxostat Tablets for
10 years from the date of obtaining the marketing authorization
holder and starting the sale of Febuxostat Tablets (up to RMB200
million)). Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical paid the first instalment
of RMB20 million for the transfer in accordance with the agreement
in January 2020.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the
Group adopted IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
amounts in the financial statements were not restated and continued
to be reported under the requirements of the previous standard, IAS
17, and related interpretations.

42.

43.
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AZE-NF+ZA=18 " BMNRmREES
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44, AT IR T
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Rk AR A R MBS R AR T -

2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NGOk 270,904 300,195
Total non-current assets IEmBEELTE 270,904 300,195
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, other receivables and TER R~ H A FEWGRIE &
other assets B & E 272 211
Financial assets at fair value through AR EFEBEEEH AR
profit or loss B EE 9,557 8,149
Cash and bank & MIRITER 5,311 2,494
Total current assets MBNEEARE 15,140 10,854
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HihEN AR TEIRE 1,388 483
Total current liabilities MENE BB 1,388 483
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE 13,752 10,371
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERRBARS
LIABILITIES 284,656 310,566
Net assets BEE 284,656 310,566
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 F#H A EGER
Issued capital B EITRR A 82,867 84,197
Treasury shares ERER ) (161) -
Reserves HE 201,950 226,369
Total equity EREE 284,656 310,566

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 —Z—n &« 207



Notes to Financial Statements

B R AR BT RE

31 December 2019 R—Z—HE+—HF=+—H

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. RN TFIBEAR R ()
COMPANY (Cont’d)
Note: Bz -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RRARZREBRENT -
Share Share Capital  Exchange
premium  Contributed option  redemption  fluctuation Retained
account surplus reserve reserve resenve profits Total
Bk  E4AER  ELRY
RIDGEE  BABE & i @l REBRT B
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARSTr ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 R=F-/\F—A—H 26,160 100,175 31,631 4193 (74,501) 116,323 203,981
Profit for the year RERRT - - - - - 201,342 201,342
Other comprehensive income for the year: AEEEMPEKE
Exchange differences EHESE - - - - 18,775 - 18,775
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERANHEE - - - - 18,775 201,342 220,117
Final 2017 dividend declared EE-E—LERGRE - - - - - (1682  (1682)
Equity-settled share option arrangements MABRRE S 4 R B R B 20 - - 5,312 = = = 5312
Interim 2018 dividend “E-\FHHRE = = = = = (21,036) (21,036)
Special dividend RIS - - - - - (105,179)  (105,179)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019~ R=E—\E+=A=+—-HBR
—E-NE-A-H 26,160 100,175 36,943 4,193 (55,726) 114,624 226,369
Profit for the year AEEHF - - - - - 113,381 113,381
Other comprehensive income for the year: AEEEMEEKES
Exchange differences ERER - - - - 14,163 - 14,163
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERANEESR - - - - 14,163 113,381 127,544
Shares repurchased and cancelled BRIz KD (26,160) - - 1,330 - (24,078) (48,908)
Shares repurchased and subsequently [BY-{ERZEY gl ()
cancelled - - - 161 - (4,516) (4,355)
Final 2018 dividend declared ERZE-\FRARE - - - - - (81,450) (81,450)
Equity-settled share option arrangements MABRRE S 4 R B PR I 20 - - 4,181 - - - 4,181
Interim 2019 dividend 2 NERHRE - - - - - (21431)  (21,431)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+ZA=1+—H - 100,175 41,124 5,684 (41,563) 96,530 201,950
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44.

45.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Cont’d)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of
the then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation referred to in note 33(i), over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the
financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
issued capital account and the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits

should the related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 27 March 2020.

Notes to Financial Statements

44,

45.
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RRBMFIRR R ()

ANA B B B ERIN BT 5E 33() Pt i8 AR HR 5
SHFRREHRBARERNGEEEFERS
RARABRREEEEMBITHARRRGE
BRI -

BREFRBEEERLERNRTERBERENR
AfE HE-TERFRUBHRERMFT2.4K
XA EHBRERA - EEHBERBEETRE
B HEESEEERTRARERNEE
i REAEBREDHSREUER - EHE
=R o

Lup e E: ok
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Five Year Financial Summary

EEMBBE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements, is set out below.

RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses
of an associate

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

ES

WA
HERA

EF

H WA R Mg
HERDHER
TR E A

Hip & A

F75E B
fEfE—HBERF 2
BN KRR

BRBL AT A
FRiSH

REEBF

AN B IEEAR

BREEBA
FRIE Rt an

BERERE

maE
weE
FEE

ATARAEERNBERBVRFEZ2EE EER
BEME - WREEEC AMKSERMBRE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—EB-hF ZT-NF E—tF —T—RF FT—AHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTT AR®Tr ARBTET

950,007 948,938 882,483 824,351 985,000
(414,138)  (353,909) (320,934) (312,872) (415,612)
535,869 595,029 561,549 511,479 569,388
48,071 47,923 30,372 24,425 31,481
(84,812)  (106,854) (88,086) (98,895) (94,471)
(97,087) (83,184) (82,491) (64,625) (74,940)
(70,809) (59,936) (48,946) (38,928) (52,745)
(5,309) (1,152) (13) (157) (1,524)
(11,829) (14,049) (6,682) = =
314,094 377,777 365,703 333,299 377,189
(58,738) (73,817) (72,725) (67,382) (74,991)
255,356 303,960 292,978 265,917 302,198
255,430 303,960 292,978 265,917 302,198
(74) = = = =
255,356 303,960 292,978 265,917 302,198
2,786,387 2,366,029 2,181,211 1,886,364 1,803,736
(760,075)  (444,867) (375,053) (249,608) (329,860)
2,026,312 1,921,162 1,806,158 1,636,756 1,473,876
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

(i) from Monday, 25 May 2020 to Friday, 29 May 2020, both days
inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitiement to
attend and vote at the 2020 AGM. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the 2020 AGM, all transfer of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and the appropriate
share transfer forms must be lodged for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 May 2020 with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited, at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

(i) from Thursday, 4 June 2020 to Friday, 5 June 2020, both days
inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to
the proposed final dividend. In order to establish entitlements to the
proposed final dividend, all transfer of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and the appropriate
share transfer forms must be lodged for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 3 June 2020 with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, no
transfers of shares will be registered.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2020 AGM will be held on Friday, 29 May 2020. Details of the 2020
AGM are set out in the notice of AGM with constitutes part of the circular
to Shareholders sent together with this annual report.

Information for Shareholders
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2019 AGM

Announcement of 2019
interim results

Announcement of 2019
annual results

2020 AGM

DIVIDENDS

2019 Interim dividend
Payment date for 2019
interim dividend

Proposed 2019 final dividend

Ex-dividend date for 2019
final dividend

Book closing dates for 2019

final dividend

Payment date for proposed 2019

final dividend

212 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED HEs%i% (%) B A )

24 May 2019
27 August 2019

27 March 2020

29 May 2020

HK$0.015 per share
10 October 2019

HK$0.043 per share

2 June 2020

4 June 2020-5 June 2020

on or about 17 June 2020

B# R

—ENFRRBFRE
R B NFPEEE

MME—BE-NFRFEE

R RERRBFRE

IRE
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& B H
BHERE T —NF
RIS
“E-NFEREKRE
GSNER
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EL@F A
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R EIRS B H
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—TE-ZFERA-+ANE

FRBEE0.0157T
—T-hFt+A+H

GRAE0.0437T

NARA
—ETERATERAR
CEES



22 Tlanllng Road Wuzhong Econo mic [
PESTEE BN TR EE R B R E

www.dawnrays.com



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Group Structure
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Five Year Financial Summary
	Information for Shareholders
	Back Cover



